Interim Report for the six
months ended 30th June 2009

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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Important

The board of directors (the “Board”) and supervisory committee
(the “Supervisory Committee”) of Tianjin Capital Environmental
Protection Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
Directors (the “Directors”), supervisors (the “Supervisors”) and
senior management confirm that the information in this 2009 interim
report (the “Interim Report”) does not contain any false
information, misleading statements or material omissions, and accept
joint and several responsibility for the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of the contents of this report.

Mr. Wang Zhanying and Mr. An Pindong, the executive Directors,
have not attended this Board meeting due to business engagement
and have entrusted Mr. Gu Qifeng, the Vice-chairman, and Ms. Fu
Yana, the executive Director, to vote on their behalf respectively.

The interim financial statements of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2009 are unaudited.

None of the controlling shareholders of the Company or its associates
has misappropriated the Company’s funds.

The Company did not provide external guarantees in violation of
any specified decision-making procedures.

The person in charge of the Company, Mr. Gu Qifeng, the person in
charge of the accounting function, and Ms. Shi Zhenjuan, the person
in charge of the accounting department of the Company (executive
in charge for accounting), have warranted the truthfulness and
completeness of the financial statements in this Interim Report.
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Il. Company Profile

(I) Basic Information of the Company

Legal Chinese name
REBERREBERMNERAA]

Abbreviation of the legal Chinese name

BIRIR

English name
Tianjin Capital Environmental
Protection Group Company Limited

Abbreviation of the English name
TCEPC

Place for listing of the A Shares
Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “SSE")

Short form of the A Shares
BIZEIRIR

Stock code of the A Shares
600874

Place for listing of the H Shares
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE")

Short form of the H Shares
Tianjin Capital

Stock code of the H Shares
1065

Registered address

No. 45 Guizhou Road

Heping District

Tianjin

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")

Address of the Company’s office
TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road
Nankai District

Tianjin

The PRC

Postal code
300381

Website
http://www.tjcep.com

E-mail address
tjcep@tjcep.com

Legal representative of the Company
Ms. Ma Baiyu
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RATARKE :
600874
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Secretary to the Board
Ms. Fu Yana

Telephone number
86-22-23930128

Facsimile number
86-22-23930126

E-mail
fu_yn@tjcep.com

Correspondence address

TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road
Nankai District

Tianjin

The PRC

Company Secretary in Hong Kong
Mr. Lo Wai Keung, Eric

Telephone number
852-2218-0920

Facsimile number
852-2501-0028

E-mail
cosec@tjcep.com

Correspondence address
22/F, Worldwide House,
Central, Hong Kong

Securities Affairs Representative
Ms. Guo Fengxian

Telephone number
86-22-23930128

Facsimile number
86-22-23930126

E-mail
guo_fx@tjcep.com

Correspondence address

TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road
Nankai District

Tianjin

The PRC

Newspapers for Information Disclosure
Shanghai Securities News

Website designated by China Securities Regulatory
Committee (“CSRC"”) for disclosure of the Interim
Report

http://www.sse.com.cn

Place where the Interim Report is available for Inspection
Office of the Secretary to the Board at

16/F, TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road, Nankai District,
Tianjin, the PRC
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Other basic information: 7

Date of first registration of the Company
8 June 1993

The first registered address of the Company
No. 10 Hubei Road, Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC

Dates of changes in registration of the Company
26 August 1998, 8 January 2001,
23 July 2001 and 25 February 2003

Change in registered address of the Company
No. 45 Guizhou Road, Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC

Number of Business Licence of the Company
Qi He Jin Zong Zi No. 009079

Tax Registration Number of the Company:

State tax registration number
Guo Shui Jin Zi 120114103065501

Local tax registration number
Di Shui Jin Zi 120114103065501

Name of PRC auditor appointed by the Company
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public
Accountants Limited Company

Correspondence address of PRC auditor appointed by
the Company

11th Floor, PricewaterhouseCoopers Center

202 Hu Bin Road

Shanghai, the PRC

Name of International auditor appointed by the
Company
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Correspondence address of International auditor
appointed by the Company

22/F, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong
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() Principal accounting data and financial highlights as
prepared in accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards

1.

Major accounting data and financial indicators

Total assets wEE
Equity interests mEEER
(or shareholder’s Equity) (SRR %)
Net assets value per share BREEE
(Yuan) (7o)
Operating profit b
Total profit bR
Net profit beZilbE

Net profit after deduction of
extraordinary items e AINE

Basic earnings per share HEARGRE
(Yuan) (7t)

Basic earnings per share MR IEE R
after deduction of BB ER
extraordinary items (Yuan) Bz ()

Diluted earnings per mEER
share (Yuan) Yrgs (7T)

Return ratio on net assets (%) 5 & & Wz F (%)

Net cash flow from MR E £
operating activities RemeFa

Net cash flow from BREETEH
operating activities per EERR S

share (Yuan) mEFE ()

As at

the end of
this reporting
period

EHEHK

7,663,110.00
3,158,626.00

2.21

Reporting
period
(January to
June)
&
(1-6A)

143,222.00
148,807.00
108,013.00

HRFFEEHEEERA

103,825.00

0.08

0.07

0.08

3.42

740,710.00

0.52

(D) BEFESFRAGROETZSTHREN

MBEBE
1 FREHBENMBER
Unit: ‘000 Currency: RMB
B T BE:ARK

Comparison between
the end of this
reporting period
and the end of

last year
Increase/
decrease (%)
As at the end of RAHEHR
last year EEFEHRR
LEEHKR B (%)
After Before
adjustment adjustment
BER HAEA
7,560,263.00 1.36
3,107,702.00 1.64
2.18 1.38
Comparison

between this
reporting period and
the corresponding

period of
last year
Increase/
decrease (%)
Corresponding period of AEED
last year EEERS
LERH B (%)

After Before

adjustment adjustment
135,838.00 128,168.00 5.44
135,799.00 128,129.00 9.58
100,308.00 95,643.00 7.68
100,337.00 95,672.00 3.48
0.07 0.07 14.29
0.07 0.07 —
0.07 0.07 14.29
3.31 3.26 Increased by
0.11%
H00.11{8
BAH
218,804.00 218,804.00 238.53
0.15 0.15 246.67

ARAXBREEBROVERL2AGO-_ZZANEEFHRRSE
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Extraordinary profit and loss items and amounts

Extraordinary profit and loss items

FREMEREAE

Government grants charged to income statement,
except for those closely relating to the Company’s
normal operations and continuous enjoying based on
certain amount or quantity according to
the relevant regulation of the State

Other non-operating income and expenses except for
those described as above

Impact of income tax

Total

Difference in accounting standards between the PRC
and overseas

Difference in net profit and net assets does not exist.

2~

FREMBEBRENEHE

Unit: ‘000 Currency: RMB
B T %BE: AR

Amount
-}
FAE BB IRFEE
BERARAR)IER & EEK
ZTYAERE  FABRRKEABATE -
BR—TIEEFTHEITERE
= BB 8 B B A1 5,534
B bl =38 2 SN E At 2 ZE S
W AR 51
Fiiefis 2% -1,397
BEr 4,188
3 BRANETENER

NEEFMNEMFEENEZR -
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lll. Changes in Share Capital and

Shareholders

0)

Table of share changes

Before the changes

AREHA

New
shares
issued  Bonus issue

L i

Quantity  Percentage
g8 ]
(%)
l Restricted circulating shares
ARERLRERR
1. State-owned shares
Bxfk
2. State-owned legal person shares
BEEATR
3. Shares held by other domestic entities
EHRERR
Including: Shares held by domestic
non-state-owned legal persons
ER: RMFERLARK
Shares held by domestic natural persons
BRERARR
4. Shares held by foreign entities
ShERRk
Including: Shares held by overseas legal persons
Ef: o BAEARK
Shares held by overseas natural persons
FIERAER
Total restricted circulating shares
EREMRARARN RS
Il Non-restricted circulating shares
ERERARERD
1. RMB ordinary shares
NRBERR
2. Domesticlisted foreign shares
SR ERANER
3. Overseas listed foreign shares
B LR ER
4. Others
=
Total non-restricted circulating shares
BRERMTERDAS
Il Total number of shares

kg

664,086,598 4653 - -

664,086,598 4653 - -

423141832 29.65 - -

340,000,000 B8 - -

763,141,832 5347 - -

142728430 100 - -

Approvals for the share changes

Pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Share Segregation
Reform Proposal approved at the relevant general meeting for
the A shares shareholders of the Company held on 20 March
2006, as at 20 April 2009, there were an aggregate of
664,086,598 restricted circulating A shares of the Company
circulating in the market.

Increase/reduction (+, -)

AREBRH+ -)

T REEBREBERER

(—) Bpr2EERE
Unit: shares
B |’

After the changes
KREEH
Transfer
of surplus
to capital
g Others  Subtotal  Quantity Percentage
L A it L il
(%)

664,086,598 664,086,598 0 0

664,086,598 664,086,598 0 0

76.18

664,086,598 664,086,598  1,087,228,430

- 0 0 340,000,000 B8

664,086,598 664,086,598 1427,228430 100

- 0 0 1427.28430 100

BOSBHHERER
B AR F20065E3 A 208 A AR T35 4

AR R RAN(RESERETR)N
H @ HEE 20094 48 20H X B

664,086,598/% A R & &4 M WA _E TR
@ °
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(I) Shareholders and the actual controller of the Company
1. Number of shareholders and their shareholdings

Total number of shareholders as at the end of the reporting
period:

104,942 shareholders, including 96 shareholders holding H
shares

Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders

Nature of the Percentage
Shareholders shareholders of shareholding
BRER RRHUE KRLA
%)
(%)
Tianjin Municipal Investment State-owned 54.24
Company Limited (“TMICL") CiE
RETHEAERAA ((THRE])
HKSCC Nominees Limited Others 23.65
BAPREE (RBA) BRAT £t
Zhou Jun Others 041
EES At
Shenyang Railway Coal Dealing Co., Ltd. Others 021
BRHERRAEERLA At
China Southern Securities Co., Ltd. Others 0.19
EVEGE At
BOC - Shanghai Shenzhen 300 Others 0.14
Index Securities Investment Fund Bt
hERT-REER 300
REESRERES
Wang Ming Li Others 0N
i At
Huatai Securities- BOC- Huatai Others 011
Zijinding Bubuweiying Umbrella Asset ~~ Jtflt
Management Plan
ERES--EREER
SERBTEARERENE
Pan Zhi Hong Others 0.09
BB Afh
Accounting Centre of China Aviation Others 0.07
R EEREEAT £t

(Z) RERMEEREZEH AER
1~ RREEBMZFRER
REHRBRA

104,942F » EFHERREI6F

A+ ERREFERER
Total
number of Number of
shares held restricted
during the circulating
reporting shares held
Increase/ period KEERE

Decrease REHR RERE
R BREZ L

(Shares) (Shares) (Shares)
(&) (&) (&)
774,111,445 -873,000 0
337,536,900 104,000 0
5,922,035 -57,965 0
3,000,000 0 0
2,725,000 0 0
1,975,166 -104,800 0
1,510,000 -62,200 0
1,500,000 1,500,000 0
1,228,020 0 0
1,000,000 0 0

8 Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited ¢ 2009 Interim Report

Number of
shares
pledged or
frozen
EAGRS
HRH#E
(Shares)
(&)

Pledged
ER
387,490,000

Unknown

A

Unknown

A

Unknown

A

Unknown

A

Unknown

A

Unknown

A

Unknown

K

Unknown

A

Unknown

A



Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted
circulating shares shareholders

Shareholders
BRREH

TMICL

HKSCC Nominees Limited

Zhou Jun

Shenyang Railway Coal Dealing
Co., Ltd.

China Southern Securities
Co., Ltd.

BOC - Shanghai Shenzhen
300 Index Securities
Investment Fund

Wang Ming Li

Huatai Securities- BOC — Huatai

Zijinding Bubuweiying Umbrella

Asset Management Plan

Pan Zhi Hong

Accounting Centre of
China Aviation

MHERE

EETAGEE (REA) BRAR

AE

RS EBR R HAR AT

MBS ARAT]

RERIT-RERBAR
300 EHEH R ELS

JERARE

ERFEH BT
ERRERIFER
TEABEEETE

AL

HEMEAEBREERR

Notes on the connected relationship or parties acting
in concert among the above shareholders

It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship

among the top ten shareholders.

It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship
between the top ten non-restricted circulating shares
shareholders and the top ten shareholders.

1. According to the register of members of the Company as
provided by HKSCC Nominees Limited, those H shares
held by it were held on behalf of various clients. There
was no client who owned 5% or more interest in the
total share capital of the Company.

2. The top ten shareholders are not strategic investors of

the Company.

AT EERERERBEROBRRERER

Number of
non-restricted
circulating
shares held

BEERERYT
RERGHE
(Shares)

(AR)
774,111,445
337,536,900
5,922,035
3,000,000

2,725,000

1,975,166

1,510,000

1,500,000

1,228,020

1,000,000

Type of shares
RADEE

RMB Ordinary Shares
AR E R

H Shares

H R

RMB Ordinary Shares
AR E R

RMB Ordinary Shares
AREEE R

RMB Ordinary Shares
AREEE R

RMB Ordinary Shares
AR E R

RMB Ordinary Shares
AR EBR
RMB Ordinary Shares
AR TR
RMB Ordinary Shares
AR TR

RMB Ordinary Shares
AR TR

Lt IR R BB R R — B AT AV B A

FIBRER10RBRZMRAREFER

BrRER -

A+ 2 R & R B ) R AN AT+ 2

BRZERMREFERBB R

1. REFBRAR

B o

BERBAARA
Al(HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED)
RUESBRERAM - EfHE ZHBRR D
BREZEEFPHAFHAE » LEMEM
BRI P 5 B AR R A AR5 % 3 A
b2t -

2. AITEBRRHTEARTNEER

ARAXBREEBROVERL2AGO-_ZZANEEFHRRSE
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Changes in controlling shareholder and actual
controller of the Company

During the reporting period, there were no changes in
controlling shareholder and actual controller of the Company.

Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company

As at 30 June 2009, the following entity, other than Director,
Supervisor or chief executive of the Company, had interests
and/or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”):

2~

ERBRRREBEFHABERR

A 45 45 BPO A 2L AR IR IR TR BB A
REBERE -

FTERRREMALTRARRRGRAE
BROTFHERR HKXR

HZE2009F67308 - A TEE (KQA
EE - EEARSTHRABRIIN RARQ
RO RABBRR D R B RBE(ESF R H
EIED) (FREEFESTIE) ([BERY
B%RHIl) E336BEFEN T LM ER
B ERR KRR

Approximate
percentage

in the total issued
share capital of

Approximate
percentage
in the relevant

Name of shareholder

BRRE®

TMICL
[zEs

ISIS Asset Management Plc.

HSBC Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited

ESRBER (BF)
BRRA

Note:

Capacity
&t

Beneficial owner

EGHBEA

Investment Manager
REgE

Investment Manager

RELE

Number and
class of securities
EHHERER
(Note 1)

(t1)

774,984,445 Shares
774,984,445 %

17,286,000
H Shares (L)
17,286,000 %
Hix (5F8)

20,000,000
H Shares (L)
20,000,000 f&
Hix (#72)

1. The letter “L” represents the entity’s long positions in the shares.

Save as disclosed above, there is no person (other than Director,
Supervisor or chief executive of the Company) who, as at 30
June 2009, had an interest and/or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

class of securities the Company
REEESEH REXTS R
HBNEDL ARTHENEIH
71.28% 54.30%

5.08% 1.21%

5.88% 1.40%

MEE -
1. [HEIEZEBRROTNGER -

B EatEsh - 720096 A30H - & A
T (RRRIES EE&EaTBRABR
M) AR B K AR B IR 1D R B IR IR
FHENEEIENEICKREEFENER
Mgk KA -
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior EFX EFNSREEA

= o
Management EREAR
() Changes in the shareholding of the Directors, () ES EESNSREEASEREY
Supervisors and senior management
There was no change in the shareholding of the Directors, BRERANRRAES  EFREREEA
Supervisors and senior management during the reporting Eﬁﬁxﬂﬂ“i“ﬂ: °

period.

(D) XRFEE - EEREETHRAEBRAER
AREABEEERS - AEROREST
HERKHRE

() Directors’, Supervisors’ and the Company’s chief
executives’ interests and/or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations

720096 H30H » ARRIESE  BEER
RRTBRABRARRSHEMEEE
EREF LB BEAIEXVER) KD - 18

As at 30 June 2009, the interests and/or short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company o P
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV Faﬂx@&{,ﬁi B Tﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁ/\ Sl
of the SFO), which would have to be notified to the Company IRGIEXVER R 7 K85 B & AR A K

and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the X PO e (@E%” 7 RAR RO 8
ERBRRERNERRAR)  KEBERE

&% N H1 160 85 352 16k AC B 1 7% 16k DIl B
M BT ES - HBREY Qﬁﬁui‘
HEMARR(TEWRAD) FRECET R
EXETRFRHNRE —rﬁ‘J>>%Df->ZIK
AR T E R ROARIT

SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
otherwise, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE (“Listing
Rules”), to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as

follows:
Approximate
percentage
in the total issued
share capital
of the Company/
The Company/ associated
name of associated Number corporations
corporations and class RARQTHEEE
Name b N Capacity of securities ERTERKPH
k=S HEEE RS Egv) HEBE RER BMAOBED
(Note)
(Ktat)
Director
=2
Wang Zhanying The Company Beneficial owner 6,850 0.00048
ThHE NN BEmBEAA domestic
shares

(non-restricted
circulating shares) (L)
6,850 I & %
(ERE R mBEN,)
(5F8)

ARAXBREBROVERL2AG-_ZZAEESFHRE N
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The Company/
name of associated

corporations
Name b NI Capacity
i HEEE A 51
Supervisor
E=E

Nie Youzhuang The Company

Note:  The letter “L” represents the person’s long positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
chief executives of the Company, who, as at 30 June 2009, had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
would have to be notified to the Company and the HKSE
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or otherwise, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, to be notified to the Company and the HKSE.

Beneficial owner

BAT ZA/NS] EmfEB A

Approximate
percentage
in the total issued
share capital
of the Company/
associated
Number corporations
and class RAARAT AAHZEZE
of securities ERTERKPH
HHHE RER BMAOBED
(Note)
(Ktet)

959 0.00007
domestic
shares
(non-restricted

circulating shares) (L)

959 IR E B

(ERERIPRBRD)

(41R)

M FEIFRIRERAARREMAEEE
Rty - HBERD REBESFTHETR -

A EEE SN - FR2009F6830H © A AH
BF  EEdmmTRAEBERADR
SEAEMAEERE (TERFSHRHEK
BIZEXVER) B9 - HERD REBFESH
PIEBIREES LA RIIEXVEETR
8 PR B E AR N T B P A R
=R E - NBERBESRAEGIISE
3521 BN L G DI Fig 2 B i it 2 4
w0 HARE ETRAEBE(ETARE
FETELFR G ZBRETADMERRQT]
R P2 R ERSOAE -
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(Ill) Recruitment or removal of the Directors, Supervisors
and senior management

)

2

3)

®

At the 26th meeting of the Fourth Board of the Company
held on 5 March 2009, the resignation of Mr. Liu Wenya
and Mr. Jia Liang as deputy general managers of the
Company, Ms. Chang Xiaolan as chief economist of the
Company, and Ms. Chen Yinxing as chief accountant of
the Company due to work allocation, and the
appointment of Mr. Zhang Qiang, Mr. Yang Guang and
Mr. Deng Biao as deputy general managers of the
Company (among them, Mr. Deng Biao would continue
to hold a concurrent position as the chief engineer of the
Company), Mr. Gu Wenhui as the chief economist of the
Company and Ms. Shi Zhenjuan as the chief accountant
of the Company, were considered and approved.

Due to work allocation, Mr. Li Yuging, a member of the
Fourth Supervisory Committee of the Company, has
applied for resignation as a Supervisor of the Company.
At the Eleventh Meeting of the Supervisory Committee
of the Company held on 28 April 2009, Ms. Qi Lipin was
nominated as a Supervisor of the Fourth Supervisory
Committee of the Company. The nomination was
approved at the 2008 Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 17 June 2009.

At the 30th meeting of the Fourth Board of the Company
held on 30 June 2009, the resignation of Mr. Deng Biao
as the chief engineer of the Company due to working
need and the appointment of Mr. Li Yuging as the chief
engineer of the Company were considered and approved.

On 21 July 2009, due to job rearrangement, Ms. Ma Baiyu,
the Chairman and an executive Director of the Company,
tendered her resignation as the Chairman and an
executive Director of the Company and Mr. Zhang
Wenhui, the chairman of the Supervisory Committee,
tendered his resignation as the chairman and a Supervisor
of the Company’s Supervisory Committee. TMICL, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, proposed and
nominated Mr. Zhang Wenhui as an executive Director
of the Fourth Board of the Company and Mr. Li Yang as a
Supervisor of the Fourth Supervisory Committee. The
nomination will be submitted to the 2009 First
Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company to be
held on 8 September 2009 for consideration.
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V. Report of the Board

() An overview of the overall operations of the Group

during the reporting period

During the first half year of 2009, the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) recorded an operating income of
RMB587,660,000, representing an increase of 14.38% over
the corresponding period of 2008, and an operating profit of
RMB143,222,000, representing an increase of 5.44% over the
corresponding period of 2008, and a net profit of
RMB108,013,000 (excluding minorities’ profit or loss),
representing an increase of 7.68% over the corresponding
period of 2008.

The increase in operating income was mainly attributable to:
(i) the increase in the processing volume of the Company’s
sewage water treatment plants which results in the increase in
the income as compared to the same period of 2008; (ii) the
income of Xi‘an Capital Water Company Limited for the same
period of 2008 only being the aggregate sum between 17
May and June 2008, as this company commenced formal
commercial operation on 17 May 2008, which made a
substantial increase in the income for the first half of 2009 as
compared to the same period of 2008. The increase in the
income led to the increase in operating profit and net profit.

(I) Operations of the principal businesses of the Group

1. Operations by industry

During the reporting period, the Group processed a total of
365,566,000 cubic metres of sewage water, an increase of
18.45% over the same period last year. During the reporting
period, the Group and its subsidiaries proactively carried
out operational management of its existing projects as well
as actively explored markets. Entrusted operation projects
such as Hanshan County Sewage Water Treatment Plant
and Huogqjiu County Sewage Water Treatment Plant in Anhui
province were newly added. During the reporting period,
the Group was entrusted to manage operating capacity of
365,000 cubic metres per day, and has processed sewage
water of 40,169,100 cubic metres. Income from entrusted
operation services was RMB8,914,100.

During the reporting period, the tap water uploading
volume of the tap water business was 16,930,200 cubic
metres, representing a decrease of 11.09% as compared
with the same period last year, which is due to the
continuous zero flow of Qujing Tap Water Plant No.3 since
the end of 2008 and normal water supply was restored
until the early of June 2009, resulting in a slight decrease
in tap water output for the first half of 2009 as compared
with the same period last year. During the reporting period,
recycled water business recorded water sales of 1,272,800
cubic metres, representing a growth of 1.89% over the
same period last year. During the reporting period, the
Group recorded an income of RMB24,249,000 from the
toll collection business, a slight increase from the income
of RMB23,157,000 for the same period of 2008.
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2. Principal business by industry 2. EEEBSTEBRE

Unit: ‘000 Currency: RMB
B T BE:ARK

Increase/
Increase/ Increase/  decrease in
decreasein  decreasein profit margin
operating operating from
income as costas operations as
compared with compared with compared with
the same the same the same
period period period
Profit last year last year last year
Operating ~ Operating  margin from EERA EERA  EXAEE
By industry income cost  operations HEFEEE HEFEH  LEERH
IXHES BEWA BERA  EENER BREE ERIEE by
Income from sewage 57K EMA
water treatment 515,916.58  228,468.65 55.72% 17.07% 19.56% -0.92%
Toll fee income BEWA 24,249.17 3,560.05 85.32% 4.72% 0.00% 0.69%
Income from water KB BERB R
recycling pipe I ON
connection and
water supply 21,072.00 16,969.90 19.47% -6.07% -4.50% -1.32%
Income from BAUKEOK R E A
provision of tap
water and others 18,845.75 18,460.62 2.04% -0.37% 47.63% -31.84%
Notes: The cost of the Company’s tap water supply business i3 ARKERENAS  ERAAAAR
comparatively increased significantly as a result of the uplift PYINGYIE S5 % NN S )i

of water resources fee.
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3. Principal business by geographical locations

Tianjin
Guizhou
Quijing
Fuyang
Baoying
Hangzhou
Honghu
Wendeng
Xi‘an

Chibi

Anguo

Total

Rz
M
5
&%
1
M
HOH
XE

[k

St
[

Operating
income

EEL/ON

404,479
18,167
25,510
15,814

5,068
57,891
4,463
11,739
34,466

1,287

1,200

580,084

Operating
income for
the same
period

last year
LR
EE LN

367,643
16,174
26,864
14,399

5,096
56,480
3,105
7,328
8,106

3 FEEBIBEBRRK

Unit: ‘000  Currency: RMB

By For

Increase/

decrease in

operating

income as

compared

with the same

period

This year last year
minus EERA
last year b EFRH
REREF 1B
36,836 10.02%
1,993 12.32%
(1,354) -5.04%
1,415 9.83%
(28) -0.55%

1,411 2.50%
1,358 43.74%
4,411 60.19%
26,360 325.19%
1,287 —
1,200 —
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(Ill) The Company’s investments

1.

Utilisation of the proceeds

During the reporting period, the Company did not raise
any funds, or no balance of funds raised in previous years
was brought forward to the reporting period.

Projects made out of funds other than proceeds
raised

During the reporting period, the Group won the bid of
Fuyang Yingdong Sewage Water Treatment Plant project,
and on 10 August 2009, Fuyang Capital Water Company
Limited, the Group’s subsidiary, officially entered into the
“licensed operation agreement” and the “sewage water
treatment service agreement” with the government of
Yingdong District, Fuyang.

The Fuyang Yingdong Sewage Water Treatment Plant
adopts a BOT licensed operation mode, with a licensed
operation period of 30 years. The project is designed with
a size of 150,000 cubic metres per day, of which the first
stage work is 30,000 cubic metres per day, the second
stage work reaches 90,000 cubic metres per day and its
long term capacity reaches 150,000 cubic metres per day.
The water outflow quality is designed to be grade A.

During the reporting period, the environmental evaluation
report and feasibility research report in relation to the
upgrading and reconstruction of the Company’s four
sewage water treatment plants in Jizhuangzi, Dongjiao,
Xianyanglu and Beicang of Tianjin have been approved
by the relevant departments of Tianjin. The total
investment amount for the upgrading and reconstruction
is approximately RMB1.04 billion. The upgrading and
reconstruction of the Xianyanglu and Beicang sewage
water treatment plants commenced during the reporting
period. As at the end of the reporting period, an aggregate
sum of RMB2.37 million has been invested. The main
upgrading and reconstruction of the four sewage water
treatment plants are expected to be completed in 2010.

(IV) Liquidity and financial resources

There were no seasonal changes in the Group’s borrowings
requirement. As at 30th June 2009, there were no bank loans
and interests outstanding nor repayable upon maturity. Details
of the bank borrowings of the Group are stated in the notes to
the condensed consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2009 of the Company.

In accordance with the accounting report prepared in
accordance with the PRC Enterprise Accounting Standards, as
at 30 June 2009, the gearing ratio was 56.31%.
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(V) Foreign exchange risk

Main receivables and payable items of the Group are
denominated in RMB. Therefore, there is no material impact
on the Group’s operation resulting from the fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates, and there was no hedge activity made
in respect of the foreign exchange risks.

(V1) Employee and emolument policy

As at 30 June 2009, the Company had 561 employees. During
the reporting period, remuneration paid to staff of the
Company was approximately RMB 24,170,000. The Company
determined the income of the management in accordance with
their management skills, the content of the management work
completed, the risk and responsibility borne by the
management and corporate economic effectiveness. The
Company adopted a salary-point system for wages. For
operating staff, their incomes were determined in accordance
with their skill level, labour intensity and difficulty and corporate
economic effectiveness. Wages were paid according to their
posts and skills.

(VIl) Industry analysis and operation plans of the Company

for the second half of the year

In the first half of 2009, in order to realize the goal of “growth
maintenance”, the central government executed proactive
fiscal policies and loosened monetary policies, and thoroughly
implemented a series of plans in response to the international
financial crisis. Positive changes were found in the operation
of macroeconomics, and the general trend turned out to be
stable and good, which set favorable external conditions for
industrial development. With the gradual weakening of impact
of the economic crisis, all the industrial participants looked out
for breakthroughs and accelerated their development, through
frequent occurrence of capital operation manners such as
merger loans, acquisition of equity interests, replacement of
assets and strategic cooperation. Meanwhile, foreign capital
was invested into the water market in the PRC in increasingly
diversified manners, which further increased the industrial
competition. The environmental protection standards were
raised, which promoted the upgrade and renovations of the
water plants in various regions, and the capacities in technology,
workmanship, design and building imposed an increasingly
important impact on the competitive edges of enterprises. In
addition, the State Council ascertained 12 key directions for
deepening the reform of economic system in 2009, of which
the items relating to the water industry included the
acceleration of reform in municipal public facilities, promotion
of social investment, enlarging the scope of licensed operation,
adjustment of water price as well as the discharge right trading
pilot. The long term development of water industry would no
doubt benefit from the effectively settlement of these problems.
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The Group’s overall operation strategies and operation plans
of 2009 have been described and explained in the 2008 annual
report. In the second half of the year, the Company will go
through with its established operation plans, operate its water
plants well, and increase efforts on engineering construction
and market development.

(VII) Analysis of risk factors

In July 2005, the Municipal Government of Tianjin issued the
“Administrative Measures on the Licensed Operation of
Municipal Public Utilities of Tianjin” (“Administrative
Measures”). Rule 22 of the Administrative Measures stipulates
that: existing municipal public utilities projects within the
required scope can be directly granted to the original operators
for licensed operations after a review by the municipal
construction administrative authority and the approval by the
Municipal People’s Government. The municipal construction
administrative authority will sign a licensed operation
agreement with the operator. The Group has submitted an
application to the Tianjin construction administrative authority
to apply for the licensed operation of four sewage water
treatment plants in the central area of Tianjin after the
implementation of the Administrative Measures in November
2005. Currently, the Group is in the deep negotiation over the
licensed operation agreement with the Tianjin construction
administrative authority.

The main requirements in respect of licensed operations under
the Administrative Measures are as follow:

a. licensed operators for new projects are generally
determined by way of public tender;

b. the municipal construction administrative authority is
authorised to organise and implement the licensed
operations of municipal public utility services;

c. licensed operators shall follow the price and service charge
standards for municipal public utility services of the PRC
and Tianijin;

d. the term of licensed operations shall not exceed 30 years ;

e.  existing municipal public utilities projects can be directly
granted to the original operators for licensed operations
after a review by the municipal construction administrative
authority and the approval by the Municipal People’s
Government and the municipal construction
administrative authority will sign a licensed operation
agreement with the operator.
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(IX) Contingent liabilities

(X)

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 30 June 2009.

Rights of debt

As at 30 June 2009, pursuant to the “Sewage Water Processing
Agreement” and the “Sewage Water Processing Interim Service
Agreement” and “Sewage Water Plants Fee Agreement”
entered into between the Company and Tianjin Sewage Water
Company, total receivables and long-term receivables of the
Company from Tianjin Sewage Water Company amounted to
RMB1,001,097,000, approximately 13.24% of the total market
capitalization of the Company as at 30 June 2009.

During the reporting period, Tianjin Sewage Water Company
settled a total of approximately RMB780,000,000 of its debts
to the Company.

(XI) Charge on assets

The Group did not charge any assets of the Company or its
subsidiaries as at 30 June 2009.

(XII)Acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries

During the reporting period, the Company did not acquire or
dispose any of its subsidiaries.
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VI. Major Events N EERER

(=) ALBRREWER

() Corporate governance of the Company

During the reporting period, the Company strictly complied
with the requirements under the Company Law and Securities
Law of the PRC, the relevant rules and regulations of the CSRC,
the provisions under the relevant listing rules of SSE and the
“Code on Corporate Governance Practices” as set out in the
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company devoted a lot
of effort to improve its corporate governance structure and
standardize the operation of the Company.

The Company had a sound system for the general meetings,
the Board and the Supervisory Committee, and achieved a
clear division of responsibility and authority and an effective
balance between its power authority, decision-making body,
supervisory authority and management level. The organization
and business of the Company were independent of its
shareholders. The controlling shareholder of the Company
acted in a regulated manner and did not misappropriate the
Company’s funds. The Directors and Supervisors of the
Company duly performed their duties.

In accordance with the requirements of the CSRC and SSE,
during the reporting period, the Company made continuous
effort to improve its internal control system and has currently
established a relatively sound internal control system. The
Company has established a strict approval and control
procedures for its internal major operation and investment
decisions and a sound financial management system, which
are strictly implemented. The Company has established a
prudent information disclosure system and investor relationship
system to ensure the timely, fair, true, accurate and complete
disclosure of information.

During the reporting period, the Company made amendments
to its Articles of Association in accordance with relevant
requirements and further ascertained the dividend distribution
policies of the Company so as to safeguard the interests of all
shareholders.

Corporate governance is a long term exercise. The Company
will continually improve its corporate governance and enhance
its regulated operation in strict compliance with the relevant
requirements of relevant regulatory authorities so as to boost
the healthy and steady development of the Company and
protect the interests of all shareholders.
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() Implementation of the profit appropriation plan

during the reporting period

In the 2008 Annual General Meeting, the 2008 profit
appropriation plan was considered and approved. The
Company made a payment of RMB0.04 (including tax) in cash
per share to holders of A shares and RMB0.04 (equivalent to
HK$0.04536) (including tax) per share to holders of H shares.
The Company published an announcement relating to dividend
payment to A shares shareholders in the PRC on 31 July 2009.
The shareholding registration date was 5 August 2009. The
Company also published a notice of the 2008 Annual General
Meeting in Hong Kong on 28 April 2009. The shareholding
registration date was 15 May 2009. Distributions of the
dividends to the holders of A shares and H shares have been
completed on 12 August 2009 and 6 August 2009 respectively.

(1) Implementation of the cash dividend payment policy

during the reporting period

1. The cash dividend payment policy of the Company:

Pursuant to Article 195 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, the Company may distribute dividends by
the following ways: the Company may, after making up
any prior years’ losses and setting aside funds for statutory
surplus reserve and discretionary common reserve,
distribute dividends by cash or shares according to its
actual profit and cash flow.

The Company shall draw attention to reasonable return
to investors when making distribution on profit. If the
Board of Directors of the Company does not make a cash
dividends distribution proposal, it shall disclose in its
regular reports the reasons thereof and the Independent
Non-executive Directors shall give their independent
opinion thereon. In case the fund of the Company is
appropriated by a shareholder illegally, the Company shall
make a deduction to the cash dividend distributed to that
shareholder in order to repay the fund appropriated
thereby. If the Company records a profit in the reporting
period but does not make a cash dividends distribution
proposal, it shall disclose in its regular reports the detailed
reasons thereof and how the undistributed profit be used
by the Company.

The Company shall maintain a continuous and stable
profit distribution policy. The Company may distribute
interim dividends in cash.
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2. Implementation of the cash dividend payment
during the reporting period

In the 2008 Annual General Meeting, the 2008 profit
appropriation plan was considered and approved. The
Company made a payment of RMB0.04 (including tax)
in cash per share to holders of A shares and RMB0.04
(equivalent to HK$0.04536) (including tax) per share to
holders of H shares. The Company published an
announcement relating to dividend payment to A shares
shareholders in the PRC on 31 July 2009. The shareholding
registration date was 5 August 2009. The Company also
published a notice of the 2008 Annual General Meeting
in Hong Kong on 28 April 2009. The shareholding
registration date was 15 May 2009. Distributions of the
dividends to the holders of A shares and H shares have
been completed on 12 August 2009 and 6 August 2009
respectively.

(IV) significant litigation and arbitration

The Company had no significant litigation or arbitration during
the reporting period.

(V) Shareholdings of the Company in other listed
companies and financial enterprises

The Company has no shareholdings in other listed companies
and financial enterprises during the reporting period.

(VI) Asset acquisition and disposal and mergers during the
reporting period

The Company did not have any asset acquisition and disposal,
or mergers during the reporting period.

(Vi) Major connected transactions of the Company during
the reporting period

The Company did not have any major connected transactions
during the reporting period.

(VIll) Major contracts and their implementation

1. Custody, subcontracting and leasing
(1) Custody

The Company did not provide any custodian during
the reporting period.

(2) Subcontracting

The Company did not provide any subcontracting
during the reporting period.

(3) Leasing

The Company did not have any leasing matters
during the reporting period.

2. BEHMARESDAEREER

ARAR2008FRRBAFALESZR
BT ARRRI008FFEFMBHE S
X MARBREEIRREERES AR
#0.0470 (B F)  MHBKRES1K
K ARE0.047T » B10.0453678
(&) - "ARMA2009F7A31H
ERATETABRSLAREASE - &
R H A200948 A5H + 522009
FA4F28BESE B TIE T 20084F %
RAFRERE  BREELAHA
2009458158 : A% AT F #2009
F8A12EDIRTEE - HIRA A A
2009F8H6H DR TE -

() EXFRNBEE
AMERARNREEANFA  FEHEE -

(B) ARAFEREM LT RARRE - 2RER
EERERR

A E AR R ESA M AR RE
M2keRbRRENER -

(R) BEHAELAABBREEEE - RS
i

AiERAR R EME & B EEEMRK
BHFEE-

() BREHAX QXA ERBBERZEE

ARERARFBEEAMBHIHEE -

N) EXERREBBTER
1~ RE A8 -HEEE
(1) EEBF

AR ERARREFTERE -

(2) EBBER

A EHRARREABREE -

(3) MHEBR
ARERARAEREEER -
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2. Guarantee 2. EREBR
Unit: ‘000 Currency: RMB
B T BE: ARE

External guarantee granted by the Company
(excluding guarantee provided to the subsidiaries of the Company)

AARYIMERIER (FEEHFARANER)

Total amount of guarantee granted during HwEHNERELRA
the reporting period (excluding guarantee (TBEEFARINER)
provided to the subsidiaries of the Company) 0

Total amount of outstanding guarantee as at the end of ~ $REHIRIERHBEBE T (A)
the reporting period (A) (excluding guarantee provided — (TEEH TR AIHIHER)
to the subsidiaries of the Company) 0

Guarantee provided to the subsidiaries of the Company

RARYFRFHERER

Total amount of guarantee provided to the subsidiaries ¥R EIRE T A RIERIEEFES T

of the Company during the reporting period 0
Total amount of outstanding guarantee provided to HREHRE T ARIERBREAET (B)
the subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period (B) 744,800

Total amount of guarantee granted by the Company
(including guarantee provided to the subsidiaries of the Company)

RARERBERER (BEHFITHER)

Total amount of guarantee (A+B) FER4BEE (A+B) 744,800
Percentage of the total amount of guarantee to BRABEARDFFEENLLD (%)

the net assets of the Company (%) 23.58
Of which: Hep
Amount of guarantee provided to the shareholders, BRI - BRI S A K B

actual controller and other related parties (C) RHEREAEEEC) 0

Amount of guarantee provided directly or indirectly to EESREELSEEBEEREIR70% 0

the borrowers with gear ratio of over 70% (D) IR YR B EEER S 5(D) 0
Total amount of guarantee exceeds 50% of net assets (E) YE{RAATEMEF A ZE 50 % 5D HIEEE (F) 0
Total amount of the above three guarantees (C+D+E) il =IEERESFESFT (C+D+E) 0

3. Trust arrangement 3 ZEEEHER
The Company did not make any trust arrangements RREMARNREEFBTEIE -

during the reporting period.

4. Other major contracts 4 HMEXRER

During the reporting period, there were no other major RRERRAABEEAMERER o
contracts entered into by the Company.
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(IX) Implementation of commitments (W) ZRABEBITER

Commitments made by shareholders who hold or continued BB % A PR R E BRI R AE RS
to hold over 5% of the shares and their actual controllers during AR A REBRN AR R EETE
the reporting period and their implementation 5R
Commitments Content Implementation
AHEBH AEAR BTER
Commitment of (1) Pursuant to the requirements under Article 27 in As at the end of the reporting period,
Share Segregation the “Administrative Measures in respect of Share relevant shareholders had been in strict
Reform Segregation Reform of Listed Companies”, all the compliance with their commitments made
& kR original non-circulating shares shall not be traded in the share segregation reform.

or transferred within 12 months commencing from  ZIEHREHEK @ BERRHESET T
the date of implementation of the Share Segregation 7ERAE 5 & 2 BF AT H 7 & B ©
Reform.

R (ETRRRES BEREEEINE) ETH1E

BRE - FTERIERBERRN BRENDBERERR

itz B TEART MR I EEE -

(2) TMICL undertakes that upon expiry of the aforesaid
commitment period, the number of shares sold
through the SSE shall not exceed 5% of the total
number of shares of the Company within 12 months
and shall not exceed 10% within 24 months.
MHERE AGh - ERITEAG MR - BB LA
R ZHERD - HEBEEAR RN EHEY
LAE+ —EARNTEBE S 2 - £ +m{E A
ATHBBEDZ T o

(3) In the event the amount of shares sold through the
SSE attained 1% of the total number of the
Company’s shares, an announcement shall be made
within two working days of the occurrence of such event.
BB RS Z S HENRNEE - EIAQF)
Bm@gEsz—8  EEZFEEEZ HEME

TERARMEAE -
(1) As at the date of this interim report, was there any business (1) BEATHREAH  EE5FEW
commitment not yet fully performed: None. AEEBITNERAG - B
(2) As at the date of this interim report, was there any (2) BERPHGHEEHS  EEFEMN
commitment for asset injection or consolidation not yet RTER2BITHEIAEE  BEES
fully performed: None. S
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(X) Appointment and dismissal of accounting firm

Any change of accounting firm:

No

(XI) Punishments and rectification to listed companies and

its directors, supervisors,

senior management,

shareholders and actual controllers

During the reporting period, the Company and its Directors,
Supervisors, senior management, shareholders and actual
controller were not subject to any investigation, administrative
punishments and criticisms by the CSRC or public reprimand

by any stock exchange.

(XII)Other major events and their effects and explanation

of solutions

The Company did not have any other major events during the

reporting period.

(X)) Information Disclosure Index

Subject
S

Announcement relating to the discharge of the
pledge and the pledge of part of shares held by
the Company’s controlling shareholders

)N e PG 4 it e

Announcement of the Resolutions Passed at
the 26th Meeting of the Fourth Board
ENEEELE T NgRRELE

Announcement of the Resolutions Passed at
the 27th Meeting of the Fourth Board
ENEEELE_TURERRELE

Name and page of
newspaper

TR BT EBRIRE

“Shanghai Securities News” page A12
(EBEHR) M2iR

“Shanghai Securities News"” page C36
(LBEFR) C36R

“Shanghai Securities News” page C104
(EBEHHR) CI04HR

(1) BE - BBEHAEEMER
RENBETMEB &

(t-)ETRARARHEES B2 SREEA
B KRR BERZFIASSERENER

ARERAARREES  EFE AT
BAB - RR - BERESHAGRZHEE
EenREE  THES - BRI RES
MM AFRER -

T HERBERAESENERTRND T

&t B

ARERARAEEMEARNFIRA

(tz) BB ERS

Date of
publication

SEAEE

13 February 2009
200962 A 13H

5 March 2009
20093 A5 H

25 March 2009
200943 A 25H
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Website and path of publication
HBNERBRURRRET

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

HKSE: www.hkex.com.hk;

IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
A F#IE www.sse.com.cn i
BT A8 S www.hkex.com.hk :
MRS AR R AIA
http:/fwww.ifn.com.hkfir/tjcep/

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

HKSE: www.hkex.com.hk;

IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
R ETABUE www.sse.com.cn
B X T8 www.hkex.com.hk :
SRES IR AR A A48
http:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/ticep/

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

HKSE: www.hkex.com.hk;

IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
A F#IE www.sse.com.cn i
B33 488 www.hkex.com.hk i
ARSI AR R AIASE
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/



Subject
ES

Announcement relating to the listing of
restricted circulating shares
BREGHORBR LTRBNLE

Announcement in relation to the resolutions
passed at the Eleventh Meeting of the
Fourth Supervisory Committee

FUEEFEF T REIRELE

Notice of 2008 annual general meeting

2008 FREAFASBMNE

2008 Annual Report
2008 £

Announcement of final results for
the year ended 31 December 2008

BE2008F 12 A3 BEFEZ2FEENE

Announcement of the Resolutions Passed at
the 28th Meeting of the Fourth Board
FNEEFEE_T/\REFRELE

Name and page of
newspaper

T BT EBRIRE

“Shanghai Securities News” page C33
(LBEFR) C3BIR

“Shanghai Securities News” page C80
(E7B&EZH®) C80HR

“Shanghai Securities News” page C80
(LBEFR) CB0MR

“Shanghai Securities News” page C80
(LBEFR) CB0MR

“Shanghai Securities News"” page C80
(LBEFR) CBOMR

REBER

Date of
publication

SEAEE

14 April 2009
2009F 4R 14H

28 April 2009
2009F 4 A 28R

28 April 2009
200964 A 28R

28 April 2009
200964 A28 H

28 April 2009
2009F 4 A28 H

28 April 2009
200964 A 28R

REBROGAERIE =

Website and path of publication
HBNERSRURRREE

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

HKSE: www.hkex.com.hk;

IFN Financial Press Ltd.:

http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
A F#RE www.sse.com.cn i

B SR A8 S www.hkex.com.hk :

RIS AR A AIAS

http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

HKSE: www.hkex.com.hk;

IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
R ET8 www.sse.com.cn i
B 32X BT 484 www. hkex.com.hk :
RSB BR N A4
http:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/ticep/

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

HKSE: www.hkex.com.hk;

IFN Financial Press Ltd.:

http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
B www.sse.com.cn i

B %2 488 www.hkex.com.hk :

MRS N BIR R AIASE

http:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

HKSE: www.hkex.com.hk;

IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
B SR A8 8 www.hkex.com.hk :
AN AR A RIAS
http:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/ticep/

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

HKSE: www.hkex.com.hk;

IFN Financial Press Ltd.:

http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
A F#BIE www.sse.com.cn i

B X T8I www.hkex.com.hk ;

RSN BB A4S

http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/ticep/

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;
HKSE: www.hkex.com.hk;

IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
L RF8 www.sse.com.cn i
B2 498 www.hkex.com.hk :

ARSI AR AIADE
http:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
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Subject
S

2009 First Quarterly Report
2009 FE—FRES

Supplemental announcement related to
the 2008 Annual Report

AAR 2008 &
FHREBESEN
BRAL

Announcement on the resolutions passed at
the 2008 annual general meeting

2008 R
BERGREDE

Name and page of
newspaper

TIBB BT EBRIRE

“Shanghai Securities News” page C80
(L/BE5R) C80 MR

“Shanghai Securities News” page A16

(E8EHH) A16HR

“Shanghai Securities News” page C6

(LBEFR) C6iR

Date of
publication

SEAEE

28 April 2009
200954 A28 H

15 May 2009

200954150

17 June 2009

200946 A 178
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Website and path of publication

TISB B PRURRRRT

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

HKSE: www.hkex.com.hk;

IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
A F#BIE www.sse.com.cn i
B ST A8 S www.hkex.com.hk :
MRS BR A A
http:/fwww.ifn.com.hkfir/tjcep/

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

HKSE: www.hkex.com.hk;

IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
L RET8 www.sse.com.cn i
B 32 A8 www.hkex.com.hk :
MRS BB A A4
http:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/ticep/

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

HKSE: www.hkex.com.hk;

IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
A F#IE www.sse.com.cn i
B33 488 www.hkex.com.hk :
RN AR R AIASE
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/



VII. Financial Accounting Report

(unaudited)

(1) Prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30 JUNE 2009

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated )

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Intangible assets
Land use rights
Investment in an associate
Available-for-sale financial assets
Trade receivables due after one year
Long-term receivables
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Prepayments
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

BE
FRBEE

ES ) By
8= YE
BVEE

T Hb{E AR
REME AR
AftHESREE
RHEVE BB MGR
R YEOR
HitIFREEE

RBEE

&

B S RUGK
HA 8 YUK
AN IR

Ao RIRTTHREE

BEAE

t BHEEHRSE
(K & # &)

(—) REEBHMBRELEARR

HHAGEPHEEAGER
20096 H30H

(BRIFFRIERTE 2 HEM G BARE T L)

Note As at
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
Unaudited Audited
bt 20094 20084
6H30H 12A31H
REEST BE
5 2,192,655 2,192,537
117,221 118,692
5 1,938,626 1,884,264
372,472 393,135
6 38,951 39,878
4,000 4,000
7 697,763 697,763
8 322,040 331,254
9 49,841 47,252
5,733,569 5,708,775
8,929 9,448
7 418,925 798,869
67,824 52,137
115,399 81,987
1,318,464 909,047
1,929,541 1,851,488
7,663,110 7,560,263
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30

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
the Company’s equity holders

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained earnings

- Proposed final dividend
- Undistributed

Minority interests
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Advances from customers
Wages payables
Income tax payable
Other taxes payable
Dividend payable
Other payables
Borrowings

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assests/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited ¢ 2009 Interim Report

B

AREEREFAEA
BEERR#E
N
HitbfH
RE &N

— BRI S

—ARARB

DHRRER
EEEE

&
FRBAE

(H £k
B TA

BEEFTSHEE

RBRE
EE L ANE
JAWH IR
JRE <Y B T 525 M
P {S7H
Hippe s
A~} SR
H At FEA 58

&

BEAE

EEREEARE

REBEE/ (RBAM) FE

REERABEE

Note

Kt

10

11

12

11

6,258,382

As at
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
Unaudited Audited
20094 20084
6H30H 12A31H
REFES RETT
1,427,228 1,427,228
636,431 636,431
1,094,967 1,044,043
— 57,089
1,094,967 986,954
3,158,626 3,107,702
120,315 118,496
3,278,941 3,226,198
2,954,949 2,449,069
24,492 23,640
2,979,441 2,472,709
57,986 17,841
245,560 228,716
2,972 5,054
34,060 18,783
7,188 4,895
59,130 2,048
129,433 99,848
868,399 1,484,171
1,404,728 1,861,356
4,384,169 4,334,065
7,663,110 7,560,263
524,813 (9,868)

5,698,907



CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

Revenue
Business tax
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income - net
Administrative costs

Operating profit
Finance costs - net
Share of (loss)/profits of an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income for
the period, net of tax

Total comprehensive
income for the period

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Earnings per share for
profit attributable to
the equity holders of
the Company during
the period
(in Rmb per share)

- basic
- diluted

Interim dividends

HEWA
BERBE
HERA
EF

HitbUras — 558
1T E A

BERF
BB — 38
FELEERR (BB /&8H

BRFT S BLAT B R
FS®

Y EERF
ERBLE R 2 FINS

FEEXHRSEAE

FE1h:
RARERIFA A
DB RS

HEAARDRAESRFEA
EhEERNERER
(UEBRAR® TS

—#5

RHIRE

HHEETHEERER

B Z2009F6 H30H 1F 7516 A B
(BRI ISR T B & B E 19 BA KRBT T)

Note
Htat

4(a)

4(a)

13
14

15

16

17

Unaudited
KREEEG
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6 H30RHIEAEA

2009 2008
2009 F 2008 &
580,084 509,144
(21,168) (20,159)
(267,459) (221,573)
291,457 267,412
10,434 3,400
(42,103) (48,104)
259,788 222,708
(110,054) (88,428)

(927) 1,519
148,807 135,799
(38,975) (33,810)
109,832 101,989
109,832 101,989
108,013 100,308

1,819 1,681
109,832 101,989

0.08 0.07

0.08 0.07
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN EQUITY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

Balance at 1 January 2009
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income
Dividends

Balance at 30 June 2009

Balance at 1 January 2008
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income
Dividends

Balance at 30 June 2008

2009 £ 1 B 1 HiEER
EHEF
Hip2EbE

K&
2009 £ 6 A 30 B 48k

2008 £ 1 B 1 HiEER
EHEF
Hip2EiE

45

2008 5 6 A 30 B&#R

HRRETHESZBREX

B Z2009F6 H30H 1E 7516 A B
(BRI ISR AT B & B E 19 BA KRBT T)

Unaudited
REEEE
Equity holders of the Company
ARFEBEAA
Share Minority
Note capital Reserves  Sub-total interests Total
fizt BR& HittfR e it DBRRER Y E
1,427,228 1,680,474 3,107,702 118,496 3,226,198
— 108,013 108,013 1,819 109,832
17 — (57,089) (57,089) — (57,089)
1,427,228 1,731,398 3,158,626 120,315 3,278,941
1,427,228 1,506,498 2,933,726 117,358 3,051,084
— 100,308 100,308 1,681 101,989
17 — (57,089) (57,089) — (57,089)
1,427,228 1,549,717 2,976,945 119,039 3,095,984
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM CASH FLOW STATEMENT ST HELRER

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 #HZ2009F6H30H 1F7~ 16 A 2
(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated) (BRIERFIERTE 2R E G BARETT)
Unaudited
RGEE

Six months ended 30 June
BZ6 B30 HIEAREA

2009 2008
2009 2008 &

Net cash generated from/ (used in) H&EL (XH) 2FHE

- operating activities —EEEY 740,710 218,804

- investing activities —REEH (55,722) (787,129)

- financing activities —REE) (264,471) 840,373
Net increase in cash and

bank balances e RBITERZILINFEE 420,517 272,048
Cash and bank balances

at beginning of the period AR & R aRATAEER 887,047 324,971
Cash and bank balances

at end of the period* HMRRESRIIBITHER* 1,307,564 597,019

* Excluding restricted cash and bank balances of Rmb10.9 million as at 30 June * ABE2009F6A30BZRE Z2IMITEB O AR
2009, representing collateral deposit as guarantee for project bidding (30 June 1,0908 7t * LR HRIT A ATEE RIZRES (2008
2008: Rmb39million). F6A30H : ARM3,90087T) -
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL

INFORMATION
(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

GRS P B ERME

(B IERRIER I E 2 R EM G RARETT)

Company profile and principal activities

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
(the “Company”) was established on 8 June 1993 in Tianjin, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) as a joint stock limited liability
company.

In 2008, the name of the Company was changed to Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection Group Company Limited from Tianjin

1 AFEMTREBREE

KEBERREERNDBER AR ([ARQF]) 2
R1993F6 ASAEHREARLRE ([FE])
MR BER AR ©

2008F AN AIZHAKRXZEIXEREHERA
AMARZAERREERHBBERAR -

Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited.

This condensed consolidated interim financial information was

approved for issue on 21 August 2009.

This condensed consolidated financial information has not been

audited.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) include processing of sewage, tap water, recycled water

and receipt of toll road collection as described below:

(a) Processing of sewage

Pursuant to relevant agreements (“Sewage Processing
Agreements”), the Group currently provides sewage processing

services via the following plants:

Location
NE

Agreement date

T B

On-going agreements signed in prior years:

WU BT FEZ AT EBITH) A [F]

Dong Jiao, Tianjin 10 October 2000

RAE R 2000108108
Ji Zhuang Zi, Tianjin 10 October 2000
RE T 20004 10A10H
Xian Yang Lu, Tianjin 10 October 2000
RA R 2000108108
Bei Cang, Tianjin 10 October 2000
XK= dbE 20004 10A10H
Guiyang, Guizhou 16 September 2004
' &5 2004F9H16H
Bao Ying, Jiangsu 13 June 2005
Thr EHIE 200546 413H
Fuyang, Anhui 18 December 2005
ZH BE 20054128 18H
Qujing, Yunnan 25 December 2005
EH B 2005 128258
Hong Hu, Hubei 29 December 2005
Mt B8 2005412 A29H

ANERRAR A R EA S A RN 2009F 8 A21 H &L
Ho AR o

AEAESTHUEEHREERZ

RARIREMBAR ([AEE])NEZEKE
FESSKERIR o B AROKER K+ AR 7RO 2 B U B
¥ AT

(a) BRKEEEXR

KBEEHE ([CSRERZTWH
YD) o REBERBIA T KEIRRIR G
SEIKERIE RS ¢

Customer

R

Tianjin Sewage Company (“TSC")
RAEMHRRE (THEAKRREF])

TSC

Bk

TSC

Bk ]

TSC

Bk ]

Guiyang City Administration Bureau (“GCAB")
EEmEmERR ((EGHER])

Baoying Construction Bureau

HEEBRERR

Anhui Fuyang Construction Committee (“AFCC")
ZRERGTERZES (EHEER)

Quijing City Water General Company (“QCWG")
35 T T R Bk AR~ B (B Bk R E])
Honghu Construction Bureau

AT ERRE

34 Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited ¢ 2009 Interim Report



Location

TE

Agreement date

W B

On-going agreements signed in prior years:

BT FEZ T ERTTAE A

Hang Zhou, Zhejiang 12 November 2006

AT A 20064F11 H12H
Jing Hai, Tianjin 12 September 2007
RE BB 20079 A12 A

Wen Deng, Shandong 19 December 2007

IR X 200712 A19H
Xi An, Shanxi 18 March 2008
pREE A% 20084 3 A 18 H

The principal terms and the pricing formula as set out in the
relevant agreements are briefly summarised below:

Dong Jiao

The Company will have full recovery of actual operating costs,
including depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and
equipment, excluding interest expenses and foreign exchange
gains or losses and at minimum:

(i) earnsareturn of 15% per annum of the average balances
of the monthly net book value of property, plant and
equipment (as defined in the agreement) of the plants;
and

(i) incentive pricing adjustments will be made for cost saving

and/or when actual processing volume exceeds the
minimum processing volume as stipulated in the
agreement.

Ji Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang:

Based on the supplementary agreement reached with TSC on
10 March 2006, the Company is entitled to a pre-determined
sewage processing fee from the completion date of
construction to the completion date of inspection of the Ji
Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang plants. After the
inspection of these three plants is completed, processing fee
will be collected from TSC based on the same principle as for
Dong Jiao plant as described above.

REA X

Customer

BF

Hangzhou Sewage Company

MM BEKBR AR

Tianyu Science Technology Park Administration Committee
of Tianjin New Technology Industry Area
RAENMBMEXRERRAFREEEESR
Wendeng Construction Bureau
XEMREED

Xi An Municipal Infrastructure Construction Investment
General Company
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(b)

(9

All other sewage processing plants :

Initial sewage processing prices are predetermined, thereafter
processing price may be revised after considering various factors
including renovation of equipment, additional investment,
power and energy and labour force, and other significant
changes of government policy;

All sewage processing plants outside Tianjin are guaranteed a
minimum processing volume by their respective customers
except for Gui Yang. If the actual volume is lower than the
guaranteed volume, processing fee will be settled using the
guaranteed volume.

On 6 December 2006, Guiyang Price Bureau confirmed a new
price for the year 2007 which will allow full recovery of all
actual costs, including operating cost, amortisation, income
tax and a return of 8% on budgeted net assets of the plant.

Tap water supply business

Pursuant to an agreement reached with Qujing City Water
General Company on 25 December 2005, a subsidiary of the
Company, Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd., will provide tap water
supply service to Qujing City via the Yunnan Quijing tap water
processing plant at pre-determined pricing. In addition:

(i)  Processing price as pre-determined above may be revised
after considering various cost factors based on contract
terms; and

(i) Qujing City Water General Company guarantees a
minimum supply volume. If the actual volume is lower
than that guaranteed, supply fee will be settled using the
guaranteed volume.

Toll road collections

Tianjin Municipality Engineering Bureau (“TMEB”) granted
collection right for six toll stations from 1 July 2003 to 28
February 2029 to the Company but it is not allowed to transfer,
lease or pledge the right to other parties without TMEB’s
consent.

In tandem, the Company entered into an agreement (“Toll
Collection Agreement”) with Tianjin Toll Collection Office on
24 July 2003 with the following principal terms:

e the Company engaged the Toll Collection Office to collect
the tolls at the six toll stations on its behalf for which it
will pay a management fee;
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e  the Company is to receive the actual tolls collected from
the six stations for the corresponding period/year, subject
to minimum toll fee for each period/year based on the
forecast traffic flow and tolls for the corresponding period/
year as stipulated in a traffic flow and tolls forecast report
for the six toll stations issued by a professional consulting
company in July 2003; and

e any shortfall to the Company between actual and the
agreed minimum will be compensated to the Company
by the Toll Collection Office.

Basis of preparation

This condensed consolidated interim financial information for the
six months ended 30 June 2009 has been prepared in accordance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting. The condensed
consolidated interim financial information should be read in
conjunction with the annual financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2008, which have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

Accounting policies

Except as described below, the accounting policies applied are
consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008, as described in those annual financial
statements.

Taxes on income in the interim periods are accrued using the tax
rate that would be applicable to expected total annual earnings.

(a) The following new standards and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2009.

HKAS 1 (revised), Presentation of financial statements

The revised standard prohibits the presentation of items of
income and expenses (that is “non-owner changes in equity”)
in the statement of changes in equity, requiring “non-owner
changes in equity” to be presented separately from owner
changes in equity. All “non-owner changes in equity” are
required to be shown in a performance statement.

Entities can choose whether to present one performance
statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or two
statements (the income statement and statement of
comprehensive income).

The Group has elected to present one statement: a statement
of comprehensive income. The interim financial statements
have been prepared under the revised disclosure requirements.
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HKFRS 8, Operating segments

HKFRS 8, Operating segments, replaces HKAS 14, Segment
reporting. It requires a “management approach” under which
segment information is presented on the same basis as that
used for internal reporting purposes. This has resulted in a
change in reportable segments presented, as the previously
reported sewage water processing services segment has been
split into Tianjin plants, Hangzhou plant and other plants
segments, in addition, previous reported tap water supply
segment has been combined into sewage water processing —
other plants segment. There has been no impact on the Group’s
financial position or operating results except for disclosure.
Comparatives for 2008 have been reclassified.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as managers operating meeting that makes strategic decisions.

Amendment to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: disclosures

The amendment increases the disclosure requirements about
fair value measurement and amends the disclosure about
liquidity risk. The amendment introduces a three-level hierarchy
for fair value measurement disclosures about financial
instruments and requires some specific quantitative disclosures
for those instruments classified in the lowest level in the
hierarchy. These disclosures will help to improve comparability
between entities about the effects of fair value measurements.
In addition, the amendment clarifies and enhances the existing
requirements for the disclosure of liquidity risk primarily
requiring a separate liquidity risk analysis for derivative and
non-derivative financial liabilities. It also requires a maturity
analysis for financial assets where the information is needed to
understand the nature and context of liquidity risk. The Group
will make additional relevant disclosures in its financial
statements ending 31 December 2009.
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(b) The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations are mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1 January
2009, but are not currently relevant for the Group:

HKAS 23 (amendment)

HKAS 32 (amendment)

HKAS 39 (amendment)

HKFRS 2 (amendment)

HK(IFRIC) 9 &
HKAS 39 (amendment)

HK(IFRIC) 13

HK(IFRIC) 15

HK(IFRIC) 16

Borrowing costs

Financial instruments:
Presentation

Financial instruments:
Recognition and
measurement

Share-based payment

Reassessment of embedded
derivatives & Financial
instruments:

Recognition and
measurement

Customer loyalty programmes

Agreements for the
construction of real estate

Hedges of a net investment in
a foreign operation
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(c) The following new standards, amendments to

standards and interpretations have been issued, but

are not effective for the financial year beginning 1

January 2009 and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 1 (amendment)

HKAS 7 (amendment)

HKAS 17 (amendment)

HKAS 36 (amendment)

HKAS 38 (amendment)

HKAS 39 (amendment)

HKAS 39 (amendment)

HKFRS 2 (amendment)

HKFRS 3 (revised) &
HKAS 27,
HKAS 28 and HKAS 31
(amendment)

HKFRS 5 (amendment)

Presentation of financial
statements (effective from 1
January 2010)

Statement of cash flows
(effective from 1 January
2010)

Leases (effective from 1 January
2010)

Impairment of assets (effective
from 1 January 2010)

Intangible assets (effective from
1 July 2009)

Financial instruments:
Recognition and
measurement on eligible
hedged items (effective from
1 July 2009)

Financial instruments:
Recognition and
measurement (effective from
1 January 2010)

Share-based payments
(effective from 1 July 2009)

Business combination &
Consolidated and
separate financial
statements, investments in
associates and interests in
joint ventures (effective from
1 July 2009)

Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations
(effective from 1 January
2010)
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HKFRS 8 (amendment)

HK(IFRIC) 9 (amendment)

HK(IFRIC) 16 (amendment)

HK(IFRIC) 17

HK(IFRIC) 18

Operating segments (effective
from 1 January 2010)

Reassessment of embedded
derivatives (effective from 1
January 2010)

Hedges of a net investment in
a foreign operation (effective
from 1 July 2009)

Distributions of non-cash assets
to owners (effective from 1
July 2009)

Transfers of assets from
customers (effective from 1
July 2009)

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these
standards, amendments and interpretations on the financial
statements of the Group in the initial application.
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Revenue and segment information

An analysis of sales and contributions to operating profit for the
year by principal operations is as follows:

(@

(b)

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and other income

Revenue from principal
operations (Note 4(b))

Other income - net ,H\ﬁﬂﬂﬂl/\ — P

Operating segment analysis

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
managers operating meeting. This meeting reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

The meeting considers the business from both an entity and
service perspective. From a service perspective, management
assesses the performance of sewage water processing, tolls,
water recycling and pipeline connection and other operations.
Sewage water processing is further evaluated on an entity basis
(Tianjin plants, Hangzhou plant and other plants). Tianjin plants
represent sewage water processing plants of downtown Tianjin
located at Dong Jiao, )i Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang
respectively.

The managers operating meeting assesses the performance of
the operating segments based on a measure of net profit after
tax, which is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
financial statements.

The revenue from external parties reported to the managers
operating meeting is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the condensed consolidated interim statement of
comprehensive income.
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Unaudited
RGEE
For the six months ended
BZ6 A30HLAAEAR
30 June 2009 30 June 2008

2009 F 2008 £

580,084 509,144

10,434 3,400

590,518 512,544
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Segment revenue
Sewage water processing
- Tianjin plants
- Hangzhou plant
- Other plants
Tolls
Water recycling and
pipeline connection
Other principal operations

Sub-total of principal operations
Others

Segment expenses
Sewage water processing
- Tianjin plants
- Hangzhou plant
- Other plants
Tolls
Water recycling and
pipeline connection
Other principal operations

Sub-total of principal operations
Others

Segment results
Sewage water processing
- Tianjin plants
- Hangzhou plant
- Other plants
Tolls
Water recycling and
pipeline connection
Other principal operations

Sub-total of principal operations
Others
Share of (loss)/profits of an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax

Profit for the period

DEREEEE
NERN L
— REM
— R R
— E{th [ R

BB TS

KRR R EBER
Hit T BEE

FEBEN
Hh

T EPE A
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Hit T BEE
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FEERF

Unaudited
RIGEE
For the six months ended
BZ6 B30 HIEAMEA
30 June 2009 30 June 2008

2009 & 2008 &
358,922 322,052
57,891 56,480
117,713 85,021
24,249 23,157
21,072 22,434
237 —
580,084 509,144
13,321 5,466
593,405 514,610
(238,704) (220,639)
(54,944) (54,741)
(125,480) (84,569)
121 153
(20,901) (18,080)
(876) (388)
(440,784) (378,264)
(2,887) (2,066)
(443,671) (380,330)
120,218 101,413
2,947 1,739
(7,767) 452
24,370 23,310
171 4,354
(639) (388)
139,300 130,880
10,434 3,400
149,734 134,280
(927) 1,519
148,807 135,799
(38,975) (33,810)
109,832 101,989
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Depreciation
Sewage water processing
- Tianjin plants
- Hangzhou plant
- Other plants
Water recycling and
pipeline connection
Other principal operations

Others

Amortisation
Sewage water processing
- Tianjin plants
- Hangzhou plant
- Other plants
Water recycling and
pipeline connection
Other principal operations

Others

Capital expenditures
Sewage water processing
- Tianjin plants
- Hangzhou plant
- Other plants
Water recycling and
pipeline connection
Other principal operations

Others
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Unaudited
RIGEE
For the six months ended
BZ6 A30HLAAEAR
30 June 2009 30 June 2008

2009 F 2008 &
46,163 42,433
5,332 4,114
40 592
51,535 47,139
1,350 1,350
52,885 48,489
4,760 4,330
10,329 10,329
26,997 26,969
18 9

— 20
42,104 41,657
— 141
42,104 41,798
1,548 242
92 280
98,266 762,661
58,558 222
158,464 763,405
— 2,822

158,464 766,227



Segment assets
Sewage water processing
- Tianjin plants
- Hangzhou plant
- Other plants
Tolls
Water recycling and
pipeline connection
Other principal operations

Investment in an associate

Additions of other property,
plant and equipment

Disposals

Depreciation

Net book value, at end of period

THEE
TEKER IR RS
— RE
— TR
— A [ B

BEA R L

IKEEIE R EEER
Hih FREE

RERERE]

Unallocated ROBL
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 5.
(a) Property, plant and equipment
Net book value, at beginning of period  #J#;FE
Additions in construction in progress
in respect of: eI ZIE NN
- sewage plant construction projects — V5K BRIR MR R T 12
- sewage water recycling —FRAEFKEIETIE
project of subsidiaries
- others —HAfh
Acquisition of sewage water
process plant 155 /K R IR R

Hip¥2 - s RREE N
BRE
nE

IR FE

Unaudited Audited
RIGEE RETT
30 June 31 December

6 A30H 12A31H
2009 2008
2009 & 2008 &
3,991,364 3,996,686
798,355 819,383
1,748,571 1,678,800
412,635 350,295
518,655 493,689
23,678 22,309
7,493,258 7,361,162
38,951 39,878
130,901 159,223
7,663,110 7,560,263

(a) ¥ WBERZREB

Unaudited
RGBT
For the six months ended

BZ6 A30BLEAEA

30 June 2009

30 June 2008

2009 F 2008 &
2,192,537 2,185,826
1,354 2,281
43,268 35,412
1,900 4,727

— 2,138

6,162 317
(1,152) (1,953)
(51,414) (47,042)
2,192,655 2,181,706
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(b) Intangible assets

Concession rights - R -
Net book value, at beginning of period ~ Ei¥I/#&
Addition &m
Amortisation charge B

Net book value, at end of period HRHE

Certain of the concession rights with net book value of Rmb267
million (31 December 2008: Rmb272 million) have been
secured against loan facilities (Note 11(a)(v)).

Investment in an associate

Beginning of the period AR
Share of loss FiG &R
End of the period HR SR

Tianjin International Machinery Co., Ltd. (TIMC) is a sino-foreign
joint venture registered in the Tianjin Economics Development Area.
The principal activities of TIMC include research and development,
production and sale of environment protection equipment;
engineering technical consultation; trading; manufacturing and sale
of general equipment. The Group held 27.5% equity interest of
TIMC as at and for the period then ended 30 June 2009.

(b) BEEE

Unaudited
KRESEG
For the six months ended
BZ6 A30HIEAREA
30 June 2009 30 June 2008

2009 & 2008 &
1,884,264 1,174,341
90,791 726,452
(36,429) (25,077)

1,938,626 1,875,716
BFEAARE2678 57T (2008F 128
318 1 272BBn) BT ELED WIE
BEFERY B 11@)(v) °

REBMERT

Unaudited
KREEEG
2009

2009 F

39,878
(927)

38,951

KEBBEEBRER AR B RaMR R EHE
BREMAZENFINGELE  AEBHER
RREWERENASRENHEE  BRESR
HEREEARIERMZER  ELHAES - B
AHRENEEHRES - AHREZ200956 A
30B 1 AEEHBREZEBEMERA A
27.5% 2 BRHE -
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7. Trade receivables

Details of the trade receivables are as follows:

Due from TSC for: FEYHE K AT -
- Construction of plants — KRR R R
- Water processing services — KR TR AR

Less: Portion deemed non-current

B R

Items with significant individual amount FIHEESEEK
Other items with insignificant HiBIRSHEIEXR

individual amount

(a) Pursuant to an agreement (“Construction Agreement”)
between the Company and TSC dated 24 September 2001,
the Company is to provide construction services to TSC in
respect of the three plants of Xian Yang Lu, Ji Zhuang Zi and
Bei Cang. The principal terms of the Construction Agreement
are summarised below:

a fee will be paid by TSC during the period of construction
as a reward to remunerate the Company for accepting
the responsibility to construct the sewage water
processing plants;

a fee is payable by TSC in advance on a monthly basis
according to the percentage of completion of the
respective construction projects estimated by the
Company. The percentage of completion of each project
will be adjusted on a quarterly basis according to the
certifications issued by qualified independent surveyors
or engineers;

the Company is responsible for the funding of the
construction cost of these plants; and

upon commencement of operations of the these sewage
water processing plants, the rights and obligations
between the Company and TSC will follow the terms as
specified in the Sewage Water Processing Agreement as
applicable to the Tianjin plants (Note1(a)).

EE2) L&

B REWEBEENT -

Unaudited Audited

REGEET BB

30 June 31 December

6 A30H 12H31H

2009 2008

2009 F 2008

466,185 466,185

534,912 955,992

1,001,097 1,422,177
(697,763) (697,763)

303,334 724,414

115,591 74,455

418,925 798,869
(a) MRIBEADFR2001F9A24 8 BEEKAF

HEMOSTKER (82) ER TRk E
) ((RRRBHE])  AATRHKA
TRUREFNBE  RETRLAZ=(
5K BRI IRAS o Lk A0 B K
W

RiEWHHE - AR BEAESKER
BEZTREZRYM Bk ER
EAARAXNERER  FR&E
B AR R AR RS KR I WA
T2 -

BRERBBEHR  BIRKRRES
ARBARRGRENEHEEERE
AZMEEER AN EmARR AL
BRER AREBFTELERE
REB A SR TRATE 2 TK
TRREZZEFHAERE

RRRMEBESKEEHERZLIR
BEEENEE IR

RIBEAR QB EBEK AR RO
& EELSKEERMARES
% EITHNRNEREBRRRS
KEEREHBHROEBREHNT (I
BYEE1 (a) L) o
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(b) On 25 August 2003, the Company entered into an agreement
with TSC (“Co-operative Agreement”). The principal terms of
which are:

the Company would be responsible for the overall
execution of the construction of the three plants;

TSC would be responsible for making use of the original
loans from two foreign banks (the “Foreign Loans”) to
fund certain property, plant and equipment used in these
plants; and

TSC will sell to the Company these Foreign Loans funded
property, plant and equipment after their installation and
the receipt of the relevant verification reports, at their
carrying value. On 17 April 2004, TSC confirm its intention
to settle its debt due to the Company with these
mentioned assets.

As mentioned, the construction of these assets was completed
in late 2005,and based on the third party completion
verification reports dated 27 December 2007 which Tianjin
Finance Bureau approved, the verified value of these completed
assets amounted to about Rmb698 million.

(c) Settlement plan:

on 17 April 2007, Tianjin Construction Administration
Committee, (“TJCAC"), the government body overseeing
the management of construction and operation of
infrastructure in Tianjin, reconfirmed that the Tianjin
Municipality has agreed to the settlement of the
Company’s debts in manner as agreed by TSC in (b)
above. In addition, the remaining debt outstanding after
such assets settlement will be settled by way of cash.

on 8 April 2008, TJCAC confirmed that there will be no
legal obstacle to the above mentioned assets settlement.

in December 2008, Tianjin Finance Bureau approved TSC
to sell the assets above to the Company.

on the basis that the above assets settlement will
eventually be finalized, about Rmb698 million due from
TSC as at 30 June 2009, representing the verified cost of
the assets has been reclassified to non- current trade
receivables (31 December 2008: Rmb698 million).

during from January to June 2009, TSC settled about
Rmb780 million of its debts relating to sewage water
processing services to the Company.

(b) ZARAFIH2003F8A25H EHEKARIEE]

T A e (TA fER)) © %
& EtHE -

ARRBRSKEEREZTIZR
BREEN

BRRABBENAEERKMEINE
RITABHRIEER([INEE
) FARRBIE TS KEERAE
BOME - BERRE AR

BKRARFAIINEEREENY
¥ MENEBEEERTETLER
NRBRAERE—IRERBEKAR]
AR EEEZE TAAGE - 72004
F4R178 » KA RIFEREFIA £
MEEEEBRANBMNKE -

ot KR A 2 RR HL 20054F R EARTEA
BIE2007FE 12827 HE=F L AN
KAEMHEBHOENE T RERSE

(c) #E&
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BREERERSERARKEE.98(ETT °

K

FOEMEMBMERFEE VBT
FEBI-REMEREEZES
(ITTEZ])M2007F4F178 £ A
AHEH BRTBACREHEKA
A LA (o) Pt /9 75 = (8B H R A AR
NAIMEL  FEB>RESH

7 o

i

2008F4H8H » MiEE A LA
BEFEEBORS T FEEL T
ERIER -

2008128 » Bk G L EE
EREANRN LT ES R EME
BB AE -

EREMNEEBSEBEBNR S &
IREEMTERK - B E 2009 6730H
BARBEEBNEEREENA
AR¥6.98BT - HEMNE S EIK
ERENPEERYPEHEWK
(2008 12A31H : AR¥6.98(8

JC) °
2009F 1A =6 A 8 - KI=EMHEK

NAMBEEMRARRGKEREHK
PDARETBRET -
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(d) Aging of trade receivables prior to the reclassification is mention (d)

in (c) as follows:

Within one year
One to two years
Over two years

Long-term receivables

Receivables from toll road concession

Receivables from toll road concession represent minimum guarantee
toll fee from Toll Collection Office, calculated with reference to
forecast traffic flow over the concession period.

Other non-current assets

Total restricted bank deposits ERRITER
Less: Due within one year included

in bank balance —FREEE D
Deposits due over one year (note (i)
Others Hith

note

(i)  Asat 30 June 2009, the restricted bank deposits represent deposits for
entrusted loan due after one year.

—FALRIEE S (ZE)

it (c)IBIRE 9 AT E 5 FE BGRE BR &L
M
Unaudited Audited
KREEEG RET
30 June 31 December
6 A30H 12A31H
2009 2008
2009 2008 &
1 ELAR 418,925 771,614
122%F — 27,255
2E L 697,763 697,763
1,116,688 1,496,632
8. RHEEWR
Unaudited Audited
REGEET BB
30 June 31 December
6 H30H 12H31H
2009 2008
2009 F 2008
BRI S TE R IEIR 322,040 331,254

BRETRERMELREGREERFEE
HIM A R R B 8 TR S ER ATt E /Y
BHEBERAEMRENRNDBITERA -

9 HFRBHEE

B NIRE RERTTAERRTIRA

Unaudited Audited
RGEST BB
30 June 31 December

6 H30H 12A31H

2009 2008
2009 & 2008 &
58,100 65,700
(10,900) (22,000)
47,200 43,700

2,641 3,552
49,841 47,252

2

(i)  EZE2009F6A30H 1 ZRHBIFZIELEB
—FEHOELERRES -
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10. Share capital

Movement of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully paid up
capital for the period is tabled below. All of the Company’s shares
are ordinary shares with par value of one Renminbi.

10 KA

ARRABEPETE - EBITRARRAR S
RIOT - FIBARRMBENHAAEREEBEAR
TR AR -

Unaudited
RGE
“A" shares “H"” shares
AR H g
PR il
mERD RBERG PEE O RBERG a5t
Restricted
circulating Circulating Circulating
shares shares Subtotal shares Total
At 31 December 2008 720084 12 A 31 H 664,087 423,141 1,087,228 340,000 1,427,228
Release of restricted
circulating shares R Z R (664,087) 664,087 — — —
At 30 June 2009 7200946 A30H — 1,087,228 1,087,228 340,000 1,427,228

“A" shares represent shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
and “H” shares represent shares listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. All the “A” and “H" shares
rank pari passu in all respects.

The restricted circulating “A” shares relate to shares held by TMICL,
whereby TMICL can only sell a maximum of 10% of its total shares
within 3 years after the stock reform in March 2006.

Certain 664 million restricted circulating shares held by TMICL
became non-restricted since from 20 April 2009. As at 30 June 2009,
all of the Company'’s shares are circulating shares.

AR RIEE LBESFX S EWHRD - MH
REREBERHARSMER MR, o
BABRKHEESETTHBZEERS#ER -

ERKAEMBRIEEBRABMFEENIR A
FAR - REMBIRE AR A FE20069F3A
HRESBETREN=FRARZ A HEERD
HEEEIN0% B AD o

E2009F 4 A20R#E » KEMBIREBRA A
BEARNAIEDH664HERNZRTBERGD
BEKTRBERY - HZE2009F6A308 1 © &
REIFBERNARBRD -
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11. Borrowings

Non-current:
Long-term bank borrowings
Less: Current portion

Other borrowings

Current:
Current portion of

long-term bank borrowings
Short-term bank borrowings
Other borrowings

(a) Long-term bank borrowings

Borrowings from:

State Development Bank

Industrial Commerce
Bank of China

Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank

Agricultural Bank of China

China Construction Bank

China Everbright Bank

Bank of China

China Zheshang Bank

=E
REIRITRER
R —FAEIEIEE S

FGH

—FRIHHRHER
2 BRI TE R
HABER

BREKE:
BIRFEERTT

B TR aRAT

ERRERRT
B R ERT

B RRIRTT
FRIRTT
FPEIERTT
ATRRTT

11 X

Note
T

(@)
(a)

(©

(@)
(b)
©

(a)

Note
T

)
(ii)

(iii)
W)
0)
(i)
(vii)
(viii)

Unaudited Audited
REGEE BB
30 June 31 December

6 H30H 12HA31H
2009 2008
2009 F 2008
3,016,090 2,812,950
(192,050) (494,790)
2,824,040 2,318,160
130,909 130,909
2,954,949 2,449,069
192,050 494,790
477,000 821,890
199,349 167,491
868,399 1,484,171
RHISRITER

Unaudited Audited
RGEET BB
30 June 31 December

6 H30H 12HA31H
2009 2008
2009 & 2008 £
270,000 337,000
662,800 683,000
20,000 320,000
618,000 668,000
1,250,290 704,950
50,000 50,000
45,000 50,000
100,000 —
3,016,090 2,812,950
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0]

(iD)

(iii)

()

)

(vi)

Secured by TMEB’s guarantee together with its toll road
and sewage fee collection rights.

Includes Rmb504.8 million(31 December 2008: Rmb525
million) secured by the Company’s guarantee and the
remaining Rmb158 million (31 December 2008: Rmb158
million) is unsecured.

Includes Rmb20 million (31 December 2008: Rmb 20
million) secured by the Company’s controlling
shareholder’s guarantee.

Includes Rmb498 million and Rmb55 million (31
December 2008: 548 million and Rmb55 million) secured
by the guarantee of Tianjin Municipal Infrastructure
Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd. and the
Company, respectively. The remaining balance of about
Rmb65 million (31 December 2008: Rmb65 million) is
secured by the Company’s guarantee during the
construction period of a subsidiary together with certain
of the subsidiary’s concession right.

Includes Rmb175 million (31 December 2008: Rmb180
million) secured by the right to receive tap water and
sewage processing fees (Note 5(b)). Includes Rmb400
million (31 December 2008: Rmb150 million) and Rmb25
million (31 December 2008: Rmb31.25 million) secured
by the guarantee of Tianjin Municipal Infrastructure
Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd and the
Company, respectively. The remaining balance of about
Rmb650.29 million (31 December 2008: Rmb343.7
million) is unsecured.

Secured by the TSC's right to receive sewage processing
fees.

(vii) Secured by the Company’s guarantee.

(viii) Unsecured bank borrowing.

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

ZAE TR R T BUR IR AR 78 A
HEBRBOTENSKEREEKER
TERIEA

Hrh AR #504,800,0007T (20084
12A318 : AR®525,000,0007T)
HARARRHERKRE - BINARE
158,000,0007T A& # 1 {& 3K (2008
F12A318 :+ AR ¥ 158,000,000
JT) e

Hd AR #20,000,0005T (20084
12A31H : AR #20,000,0007C)
AR AR IR AR IR R AE -

H e AR#498,000,0007T (20084
12A318 : AR®548,000,0007T)
A R #55,000,0007T (20084 12
A318 : AR#%55,000,0005T) 5
BRI EEMA R R HRE -
246 A R #65,000,0007T (20084
128318 : AR #¥65,000,0005T)
EF—RMBAGMERBPEHEAEAR
RIRMRE  BEHLLHAKRAR
RIERINAZM B A RTE B TR
F R R A B DR AR (R -

EHrh AR#175,000,0007T (20084F
124318 : AR®180,000,0007T)
BB 3R - DA B 2R U AR RS K B
BUAEEAER (HIEE5(0) : B
AR #400,000,0007T (2008412 5
318 : AR®150,000,0007T) F1 A
R #25,000,0007t (20084 12 A 31
H : AR®31,250,0007T) A% E
ERMARRDBIRERE BT A
R # 650,290,0007T (20084 12 A
318 : AR®343,700,0007T) A&
BRER -

ZiERABKRBIARFAHEA NS
KEBBREREHERER -

ZfER B AR B RERE

(vii) ZIEKBERER
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(ix) Summary of terms of long-term bank borrowings:

Secured ERER
- Pledge — 3
- Guarantee —RFE
Unsecured ERER

(x) These long term bank borrowings are all interest bearing
with weighted average effective interest rate at the end
of this period of about 6.7%.

(xi) Long term borrowings mature as follows:

Within one year —F AR AT
In the second year E_FRAXMN
In the third to fifth year E=FEFERAFAIN
After the fifth year RFLAE AT

(xii) As at 30 June 2009, the fair value of the long-term fixed-
rate bank borrowing is Rmb210 million (2008: Rmb199
million).

(xiii) Bank borrowings which are exposed to interest-rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows:

6 A REA
6Z=121@A

6 months or less
6 - 12 months

(ix) REVRITERGHERNT

Unaudited Audited
KRECEG RET
30 June 31 December

6 A30H 12A31H
2009 2008
2009 & 2008 &
495,000 567,000
1,612,800 1,444,250
908,290 801,700
3,016,090 2,812,950

(x) AHREHERITEROMEFHE

AR E6.T% °

(xi) REMEFRHABEFHANT
Unaudited Audited
RIGEE R
30 June 31 December
6 A30H 12A31H
2009 2008
2009 & 2008 &
192,050 494,790
596,570 627,030
1,555,410 1,115,070
672,060 576,060
3,016,090 2,812,950

(xii) L ZE2009F 64308 Ik @ EFE F =X
FHRTERNAABENAAR
#2108 BT (20084 : AR 199

i —

BHET)

(xii) RRAFBREMNBZEHNHH I E

MERITREFAT -

Unaudited
REEEE
30 June

6 H30H
2009
2009 &

598,000
2,209,800

Audited
RES

31 December
12A31H
2008

2008 &

1,389,460
727,000

ARAXBREEBROVERL2AGO-_ZZANEEFHRRSE
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(b) Short-term bank borrowings (b)

Note
E

Borrowings from: fERRE :

China Minsheng Bank PEIRARTT

China CITIC Bank FIEIRTT

Jinggang Entrust Company 2BEF 0]

China Zheshang Bank AREERTT (ii)

Huaxia Bank FEBIRTT

Industrial Bank B IRTT

EHER AT A K

0]

(it)

(iii)

(v)

)

This is an entrusted borrowing from Jingang Entrust
Company via China Construction Bank. The borrowing
bears interest at 7% per annum in 2008.

Guaranteed by TMICL.

The remaining borrowing is unsecured except for
mentioned in (ii). The weighted average interest rate of
short-term bank borrowings at the end of this period is
5.19% per annum.

The carrying amounts of short-term bank borrowings
approximate their fair values as at 30 June 2009 either
due to their short-term maturity or because they bear
interest at prevailing market rates throughout their
maturity period.

Summary of terms of short-term bank borrowings:

Secured ERIER
- Guarantee —{RFE
Unsecured ZARER

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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Unaudited Audited
KREEEG REST
30 June 31 December

6 A30H 12A31H
2009 2008
2009 F 2008 F
87,000 187,000
200,000 200,000
— 299,890

— 45,000
90,000 90,000
100,000 —

477,000 821,890

HWEAESBEATRABAPHER
RITMETLENR » E2008F FF =
B7% °

HRETHRREBR AR EHR

gFE—f °
BRGi)INEBRIE R BEERER
NEKREHRITERNINEFESF
FRAE519% o

H 1F2009F6 A30H © AR LE
BETERNEHRND HE AIRTT
MHF R E - WEIRAE AT
WATHE -

REHIRITIE IR E RN T

Unaudited Audited
RIGEET BB
30 June 31 December

6 A30H 12A31H
2009 2008
2009 £ 2008 &
— 45,000
477,000 776,890

477,000 821,890



(c) Loans payable:

Long-term

REGES

Due to:

-TMEB (note(i))

Short-term FRBfES
Due to:
- TMEB —RETHB
e Current portion of o REMERA
long term loan (note(i)) SEEE )

e Others (note(ii))

o Hfith (i)

- Tianjin Municipal

0]

(it)

(iii)

Government (note(iii))

A Rmb180 million loan was taken from TMEB during 2005
specifically for construction of sewage water processing
plants. The loan is repayable in equal installments over
eleven years from 2007. The current portion of the long-
term loan is Rmb16é6million as at 30 June 2009. (31
December 2008: Rmb16 million) The loan bears interest
at 5% per annum for the first six years. From the seventh
year to maturity, the interest will be based on the one-
year deposit plus 0.3% premium.

Amount due to TMEB of Rmb102 million (31 December
2008: Rmb93 million) is specifically for the same purpose
and under same terms as the loan described in note (iii)
below.

The Rmb81 million (31 December 2008: Rmb59 million)
was borrowed from other Tianjin Municipal Government
bodys. Rmb13million is used for the construction of the
water recycling plant of Ji Zhuang Zi. Rmb68 million was
borrowed from Tianjin finance bureau for the construction
of the water recycling plant of Dong Jiao and Bei Chen.
The loan is interest free and the method and date of
repayment which is supposed to be determined after the
completion of the said plant has yet to be finalised.

The repayment scheme for the Rmb102 million and
Rmb81 million loans mentioned in (ii) and (iii) above is
still being negotiated. As the terms are uncertain, these
loans have been classified as current liabilities.

—REMBE  (FE1)

(iTFE3)

—FEWMBE (i)

H Al 5 K

(ii)

(iii)

Unaudited Audited
RIGE RETT
30 June 31 December

6 A30H 12A31H
2009 2008
2009 & 2008 &
130,909 130,909
16,364 16,364
101,885 92,514
81,100 58,613
199,349 167,491

MAETHRREEVEMERAR
#1818 7T 220065 )5 /K R IB M R
EEEEE S - ARERHK2007F
BT FEEER - AtEE R
20094 6 A30H 5t & — & (N 3| £
NEHTBOBAREIGEE T
(20084128318 : 16E&JT) ° {&
REFZRBI6F A5% » {FETFERLRE
B FRRAE1FHFRFEM
03B &E D& °

REERETHBHORIEIARELD
1025 & st (2008 12A31H : 93
BET) C EEREHMERERS
SEI TR GIFTR o

AR 818 &t (20085F 124 31
H : 5988 AlEAREM MR
HmEr s ARE1SEETARKG
HT7SKERAIRER  AR®6S
BELARNQRMRETHHEE
ENHEEES  AREITBEKE
MR B AR TREZ - Uk
ERTFEBEERAHMAER £
MEREEKEEE -

T DA _E SRR (D) AN Gii) P 51 R B A RS
102 B TMARKSIEETHIE
FOERET B M P - AR E R
HEERHR  ELERELEHE
SEERPEE -
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(d) As at period end, the Group has the following
committed undrawn banking facilities:

Floating rate:
- Expiring within one year

12. Trade payables

FBFIE:

— 1 FARNEEA

12

As at 30 June 2009, the majority of trade payables are aged within
one year. The carrying value of trade payables approximates their

fair value due to their short-term maturities.

13. Operating profit

13

Operating profit is stated after (crediting)/ charging the following:

Crediting:
Rental
Interest income on bank deposits
Interest income on financial assets

Charging:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Staff costs
Raw materials and consumables used
Repair and maintenance expenses

WA

HEHA
RITFFPTELEN S UA
EREEMELN WA

Ik -
e R HE R
BIAA
TR R S A% S 8 FA
BEE

(d) BLEBR AEEBEWOTREANERIT
RE#RE :

Unaudited Audited

RIGEE RETT

30 June 31 December

6 A30H 12A31H

2009 2008

2009 2008 &F

202,000 250,000

EZRAR

K2009F6H30H - BESENFRREEE—
FUR - EFEMGRAREIHRNDE EQAR
EEEREEELM -

reEEF
wERF B WA) /B TYIEE -
Unaudited
RIGEE
For the six months ended

HBZ6 A30HIEAMEA
30 June 2009 30 June 2008

2009 & 2008 &
(6,040) (4,642)
(7,043) (2,829)
(5,636) (5,559)
94,989 90,287
43,123 35,330
15,287 15,275
13,304 10,834
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14. Finance costs-net

15.

Interest expenses of borrowings
Less: Capitalised interest

Less: Interest income
- long-term receivables
- bank deposits

Income tax expense

B B X
W BAMERE

W FBIBA
— R
— SRR

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group has no
assessable profit in Hong Kong as at 30 June 2009 (2008: Nil). PRC
income tax ranges from the concessionary rate of 7.5% to the
statutory rate of 25% for the period (2008: 7.5% to 25%).

Tax charge comprises:

Current PRC income tax
Deferred income tax

PRSI :

EHPEMEH
BEIEPTISTH

14 BERS - FE

15 FREHER

Unaudited
RE&EE
For the six months ended
BZ6 A30HLEAEA
30 June 2009

30 June 2008

2009 & 2008 £
124,036 99,792
(1,303) (2,976)
122,733 96,816
(5,636) (5,559)
(7,043) (2,829)
110,054 88,428

AR AEEEEHE2009F6A30H LW HEE
VDR & FE R TR A R (20084F « &) » ATIAAR
HESEMEH - PRAFNZHANTRER
RETE%ZEETEME25% (2008FE : 7.5%

£25%) K& E -

Unaudited
KREEEG
For the six months ended
BZ6 H30AHIEAREA
30 June 2009

30 June 2008

2009 F 2008 &
38,123 31,892

852 1,918
38,975 33,810

ARAXBREEBROVERL2AGO-_ZZANEEFHRRSE
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16. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company of Rmb108 million (2008: Rmb100
million) and weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,427
million shares in issue during the period (2008: 1,427 million shares).

Diluted earnings per share is calculated using the same bases as
described above for calculating basic earnings per share as no
transaction affecting the Company’s ordinary shares in issue is

existed.

Profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue (million)

Basic earnings per share (Rmb per share)

17. Interim dividends

2008 final, declared of Rmb0.04 (gross tax)
(2007 final, paid of
Rmb0.04 (gross tax)) per share

No interim dividend was proposed by the Board of Directors of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2009 (2008: nil).

16 BRER

E ARG 5 DA SR B R AR B i AR AR B AV 4R
ERAMARK1088E T (20084 : AR¥100
BET) BRARQ R EITEINL @R Ik
HIH14.278 K (20084F © 14.27180%) 51 & -

HRAARE TN FEZEARRETHEING B
ROEBERE SHBESRRAENFTERER
Bl AR -

Unaudited
KREEEG
For the six months ended
BZ6 A30HIEAREA
30 June 2009 30 June 2008

2009 & 2008 £

AARERFE ARG EF 108,013 100,308
BT RRLN

MEFHE (&) 1,427 1,427

BREXEZF (BRARET) 0.08 0.07

17 FHERE
Unaudited
ReEER

For the six months ended
BZ6 A30HINEAR
30 June 2009 30 June 2008

2009 £ 2008 £
2008 FE - EERBARKE 0.04 TEH
() (2007 FE - HEE
AR 0.04 TEE (£%)) 57,089 57,089

NATEEESHNE2009F6 8308 1F/5E A
AR P M R B P BAAR B (20084F ) o
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18. Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments at the balance sheet date are as

follows:

Sewage water
processing plants in:
- Hang Zhou
- Wen Deng
- Jing Hai
- Wu Han
- An Guo
- Qu Jing
- Xian Yang Lu

(upgrade project)
- Bei Cang
(upgrade project)

Tap water plants in:
- An Guo
- E Zhou

Water recycling plants in:

- Dong Jiao

- Bei Chen

- Xian Yang Lu

- Ji Zhuang Zi
(expansion project)

SEKERIERRIER ¢

— M
—XE
—BE
—B=
—H

— 5

— RS RS
(FHpesiE)
—itE
(FHpesiE)

B IOKEIER ¢
-%
— )

FOKRIER -
-8
—dbx
— 5
— T

(BER)

18 RIEEE
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Contracted but
not provided for

EELNARBHE
Unaudited Audited
RIGEE RETT
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
2009 F 2008
6 A30H 12A31H
Rmb’ million ~ Rmb’ million

AREBEZET AREHET

HEEEREBERA  NEENEAEEMNTAHR

Authorised but
not contracted for

ERUERED
Unaudited Audited
RIGEE RETT
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
2009 & 2008
6 A30H 12A31H
Rmb’ million ~ Rmb’ million

AREBEZET AREHET

341 341 — —
40 60 — —
17 22 — —
89 108 — —
24 24 — —
14 — 165 —
20 — 284 —
_ — 200 —
10 15 — 33
— — 95 95

8 8 46 48

4 11 51 51
— — 49 48
14 — 58 _
581 589 948 275
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19. Related party transactions 19

In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere in the
condensed consolidated interim financial information, the following
is a summary of significant related party transactions entered into in
the ordinary course of the business between the Group and their
related parties during the period.

(i) Income:

Related parties Nature of transaction
RS NERE REME

TICIG Rental income

W EE HERA

(ii) Key management compensation for the six months
ended 30 June 2009 is summarised as follows:

Salaries and other short-term

employee benefits ITEREHE TR
Other long-term benefits E A R HItE A

BB S

AHIE - BRABAGEE TR BEER T KE
MBI XZEMN  AEEEERTERE
BETETHEMERARZZMT

(i) WA

Unaudited
RIGEE
For the six months ended
BZ6 A30HLAAEAR
30 June 2009 30 June 2008
2009 2008
Rmb’ million Rmb’ million

ARBEER ARBEER

(i) BLEEEHZEMN2009F6A30H LL61E
FHBRMEANT

Unaudited
RGEE
For the six months ended
BZ6 A30HLAAEAR
30 June 2009 30 June 2008

2009 £ 2008 F
3,534 3,443
519 432

4,053 3,875
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(2) Prepared in accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards

Balance Sheets
As at 30 June 2009

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and bank balances
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Prepayments
Inventories

Total current assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables due after one year
Long-term equity investments
Investment properties
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Intangible assets
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

gE
RBEE
s%Ee
FEYRAR
At UK
BNRR
7

RBEESH

FRBEE
e
RERERE
REBEREIE
ETAE
TERIR
EBIAE
EHEREEE

FRBEESF

BEAG

AERMEX
20096 H30H

(Z) RBEFESTRAGR

(BHR RIS HEEMLBARETIT)

Group Company
a8 KRR

Notes Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
7 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
liop3 REE BB REE BREH
(t) 2009% 20084 20095 20084
6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
Q) 1,318,464 909,047 579,478 275,440
2 418,925 798,869 342,434 742,879
(3) 67,824 52,137 271,554 300,769
4) 115,399 81,987 64,449 33,813
5) 8,929 9,448 4,015 3,360
1,929,541 1,851,488 1,261,930 1,356,261
(6) 1,019,803 1,029,017 1,019,803 1,029,017
(7) 42,951 43,878 1,099,981 1,094,981
(8) 117,221 118,692 91,661 92,876
) 1,939,011 1,985,415 1,793,154 1,837,744
) 253,644 207,122 122,608 111,767
(10) 2,311,098 2,277,399 368,898 389,561
(1) 49,841 47,252 47,200 43,700
5,733,569 5,708,775 4,543,305 4,599,646
7,663,110 7,560,263 5,805,235 5,955,907
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LIABILITIES AND

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short-term borrowings

Trade payables

Advances

Wages payable

Taxes payable

Other payables

Dividend payable

Long-term borrowings due
within one year

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term borrowings
Other non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital

Capital surplus
General reserves
Undistributed profits

Equity attributable to
the shareholders
of the Company
Minority Interests

Total shareholders’ equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

BERRRER

RBRE
AR
FERERAR
EEE N
FERTEE T30
ERHE
AR
FES R
—FRIIH

RN

At REaE

RBRESH

FRBEE
RHAUER
EERAE
ELAEHARE

FRBREAH
A
EEL

ok

A0

BB

AR B

BERELT
RREZA

PERRES

RREZSE

BERRRERAG

(12)
(12)
(16(c))

(13)
13)

—

(15)
(16(2))
(16(b))

Group Company
&6 NN

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
REET BRE REET BRET
2009% 20085 2009% 20085
6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
477,000 821,890 477,000 776,890
57,986 17,841 6,035 7,277
245,560 228,716 67,086 61,130
2,972 5,054 2,065 3,587
41,248 23,678 37,659 21,188
129,433 99,848 158,499 132,928
59,130 2,048 57,851 766
192,050 494,790 134,000 434,000
199,349 167,491 84,464 64,364
1,404,728 1,861,356 1,024,659 1,502,130
2,824,040 2,318,160 1,542,000 1,259,000
130,909 130,909 130,909 130,909
24,492 23,640 10,858 12,258
2,979,441 2,472,709 1,683,767 1,402,167
4,384,169 4,334,065 2,708,426 2,904,297
1,427,228 1,427,228 1,427,228 1,427,228
383,338 383,338 380,788 380,788
253,093 253,093 253,093 253,093
1,094,967 1,044,043 1,035,700 990,501
3,158,626 3,107,702 3,096,809 3,051,610
120,315 118,496 — -
3,278,941 3,226,198 3,096,809 3,051,610
7,663,110 7,560,263 5,805,235 5,955,907
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Income Statements

For the six months ended 30 June 2009

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Income from operations

Less: Cost for operations
Business tax and surcharges
Administrative expenses
Financial expenses - net

Add: Investment (loss)/income

Including: Share of (loss)/profit
of an associate

Operation profit
Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

Including: Loss on disposal
of non-current assets

Total profit
Less: Income tax

Net profit

Attributable to shareholders
of the Company
Minority interests

Earnings per share
(in Rmb yuan)
- Basic
- Diluted

ERUA
W : BEAR
BEHERA
EEEA
BHBEA—9E
m:EE (B%) /s
5 HBELRORE
(%) /s

BEFR

s ERINEA

B BRI

E ERBAE
RERK

GilyFa s
B EHER

RRE

BEERFAFRR
HFRE
DBRRRHE

=106
(AR%R)

HEAERYE

wEskis

Y E
#E 2009 % 6 A 30 A1L 6 1A
(BHFBIaEEAS) » 2REE BARKETIT)

Group Company
&b NG|
Notes Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
7 six months six months six months six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 2009 30 June 2008 30 June 2009 30 June 2008
if3 REBET RBES REBE RBES
(t) B Z2009% B Z2008%F B Z2009% B Z2008%F
6A30H 6A30H 6A30H 6A30H
1E6fE A 1618 A 1618 A 1618 A
(Restated) (Restated)
(BEm) (BE)
(18) 587,660 513,786 389,910 352,705
(18) (270,037) (222,815) (137,541) (124,721)
(19) (21,168) (20,159) (19,924) (19,744)
(40,036) (46,046) (25,232) (30,485)
(20) (112,122) (90,979) (70,997) (64,410)
) (1,075) 2,051 200 —
(927) 2,051 200 —
143,222 135,838 136,416 113,345
5,745 292 — 4
(160) (331) 97) (200)
148,807 135,799 136,319 113,149
1) (38,975) (33,810) (34,031) (28,287)
109,832 101,989 102,288 84,862
108,013 100,308
1,819 1,681
(22)
0.08 0.07
0.08 0.07
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Cash Flow Statements

For the six months ended 30 June 2009 # 2 2009 F 6 A 30 A1 6 EIA
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (BR1FRIFEERS) - 2 REE [ BARKTFT)
Group Company
A NG|
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
six months six months six months six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 2009 30 June 2008 30 June 2009 30 June 2008
RSE RSE RSE KGR
B Z2009F B Z2008F B Z2009F B Z2008%
6A30A8 6A30R8 6A30A 6A30H
68 A IE6f@ A 68 A 68 A
Cash flows from operating activities —EEFHELNELHE
Cash received from sales of goods HERM - RURS
and rendering of services YRR S 994,349 413,448 802,249 258,206
Cash received from tax refund T B RE 5,559 — — —
Cash received relating to W ) H BT B
other operating activities BENRE 82,798 111,344 91,485 159,573
Sub-total of cash inflows BEEFREFANG 1,082,706 524,792 893,734 417,779
Cash paid for goods BEEm BXEBXM
and services HRE (153,628) (116,629) (73,243) (53,584)
Cash paid to and on behalf XHRRIARAET
of employees YRR E (48,435) (34,036) (26,691) (17,843)
Payments of taxes and levies YRNSERE (47,713) (129,795) (41,186) (118,892)
Cash payments relating to IR B EEE)
other operating activities AENRE (92,220) (25,528) (42,943) (13,257)
Sub-total of cash outflows BEEHES RN (341,99) (305,988) (184,063) (203,576)
Net cash flows from KEETHEEN
operating activities BeREFH 740,710 218,804 709,671 214,203
Cash flows from investing activities = REZBELNELRE
Cash received from disposal of investments KB EMEINES 100 2,885 200 400
Cash received from returns on investments DEREREKEINES 279 800 — —
Net cash received from disposal REETEEWENE S
of fixed assets 20 87 — 4
Cash received relating to WeBImE i B BIEE
other investing activities BRNEE 33,100 64,707 20,100 62,186
Sub-total of cash inflows RERPREMANG 33,499 68,479 20,300 62,590
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets,
intangible assets and other BRETEE BVEEM
long-term assets HiwRMEAEMZANHS  (89,221) (854,920) (18,572) (518,023)
Cash paid to acquire equity investments ERtREMXANRS - - (11,590) (282,000)
Cash paid relating to XEMERREEE
other investing activities BEHENEE — (688) — —
Sub-total of cash outflows REZHERML/ G (89,221) (855,608) (30,162) (800,023)
Net cash flows from investing activities RETHELENRLRETFE  (55722) (787,129) (9,862) (737,433)
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Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from borrowings
Cash received relating to

other financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Repayments of amounts borrowed
Payments for distribution of dividends
or profits and interest expenses
Cash payments relating to
other financing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from
financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes on cash

Net increase in cash
(Note 7(24)(b))
Add: Cash balances
at beginning of period

Cash balances
at end of period

Group Company
aft b NG|
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
six months six months six months six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 2009 30 June 2008 30 June 2009 30 June 2008
REBET RBET RIBET RIBET
HZ2009%F BZ2008%F BZ2009% BZ2008%F
6A30H 6H308 6H30H 6H308
It6f@ A It6f@ A It6f@ A It6f@ A
= EETHELENEERE
ERAGINRE 750,000 1,367,890 500,000 1,007,890
WEIRE b EREE TR
BENEE 11,100 37,020 3,000 25,576
LEIHBL TN 761,100 1,404,910 503,000 1,033,466
EBEEBIZINAE (898,340) (382,388) (816,890) (322,000)
AERF - FEHERFE
RS (125,231) (143,084) (78,881) (111,391)
Y RMEMEAEEES
el ok (2,000) (39,065) — (30,003)
ey A ¥ (1,025,571) (564,537) (895,771) (463,394)
BETHELEN
ReREFH (264,471) 840,373 (392,771) 570,072
- EXSBHESNTE — — — —
I ReFEmE
(HEE£(24)(b)) 420,517 272,048 307,038 46,842
m: BYEenE 887,047 324,971 262,440 80,633
A BRESHE
1,307,564 597,019 569,478 127,475
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six months ended 30 June 2009
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1.

COMPANY PROFILE

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
(the “Company”) was established on 8 June 1993 in Tianjin, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") as a joint stock limited liability
company.

In 2008, the name of the Company was changed to Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection Group Company Limited from Tianjin
Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited.

The holding company and ultimate holding company of the
Company is Tianjin Municipal Investment Company Limited
("“TMICL") and Tianjin City Infrastructure Construction and
Investment Group Company Limited (“TICIG”) respectively.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) include processing of sewage, tap water, recycled water
and receipt of toll road collection as described below:

(a) Processing of sewage

Pursuant to relevant agreements (“Sewage Processing
Agreements”), the Group currently provides sewage processing
services via the following plants:

Plant Location Agreement Date

TE S HINEE

On-going agreements signed in prior years:

BT FEZFTLATERTTAIE R

10 October 2000
2000108 10H
10 October 2000
2000108 10H
10 October 2000

Dong Jiao, Tianjin
RE R

Ji Zhuang Zi, Tianjin
RE KHET

Xian Yang Lu, Tianjin

RE BGE 2000%10H10H
Bei Cang, Tianjin 10 October 2000
X2 dbE 20004 10A10H
Guiyang, Guizhou 16 September 2004
'aM &B 2004497 16H

Baoying, Jiangsu
L& EHIE
Fuyang, Anhui

13 June 2005
2005%F6H13H
18 December 2005

Z8 RS 2005512 A18H
Quijing, Yunnan 25 December 2005
TH B 2005%12H25H
Honghu, Hubei 29 December 2005
A O 2005512 H29H
Hangzhou, Zhejiang 20 November 2006
AL A 2006411 A20H
Jing Hai, Tianjin 12 September 2007

X% W8
Wen Deng, Shandong

2007F9A12H
19 December 2007

s & 2007512 819H
Xi‘an, Shanxi 18 March 2008
pRFE A% 2008%3F18H

HZE2009F6 A30H 1618 A
(BRI, » 2B ABAREFIT)

DREFER

KEBERREERNDBERAR ([ARQF]) 2
MR1993F6 A8AEHREARKLRE ([FE])
KEMEMA IO EREERF] o

2008 F AR R BHHAREZAERRBNHERA
ARARZEERREBBRNHERAT -

RAEMBEEARAR ([MHEREA]) BAAT]
IERAR] s RERMERREERRESEE
BRAR(WIREE]) BEAARNELIERA
7 o

ARRAREFAR ((ASE)) F BEFEE
SAKERTR + B SRR - ok R Y b
%o REmT

(a) J5KEHEET

KBREEHE ([CSRERZEWH
Y] AEERBU TS KEIRBIE 4t
SEKE R IR

Customer

BF

Tianjin Sewage Company (“TSC")
REMHKRE ([HEKAFA)

TSC

21NN

TSC

71 /NG|

TSC

7NN

Guiyang City Administration Bureau
EEHTEER

Baoying Construction Bureau
BERBERD

Anhui Fuyang Construction Committee
BEEmERZES

Qujing City Water General Company
IS T KB A R

Honghu Construction Bureau

HOAT RSB

Hangzhou Sewage Company Limited
TN EEKB R AR

Tianyu Science Technology Park
REMBEMEXERRXTFHEIEEEZES
Wendeng Construction Bureau
NEMRERD

Xi‘an Infrastructure Investment Group
AZMERREERRELRF]
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The principal terms and the pricing formula as set out in the
relevant agreements are briefly summarised below:

Dong Jiao:

The Company will have full recovery of actual operating costs,
including depreciation of fixed assets, excluding interest
expenses and foreign exchange gains or losses and at minimum:

(i) earnsareturn of 15% per annum of the average balance
of the monthly net book value of fixed assets (as defined
in the agreement) of the plants; and

(i) incentive pricing adjustments will be made for cost saving
and/or when actual processing volume exceeds the
minimum processing volume stipulated in the agreement.

Ji Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang:

Based on the supplementary agreement reached with TSC on
10 March 2006, the Company is entitled to a predetermined
sewage processing fee from the completion date of
construction to the completion date of inspection of Ji Zhuang
Zi, XianYang Lu and Bei Cang plants. After the inspection of
these plants is completed, processing fee will be collected from
TSC based on the same principle as for Dong Jiao plant as
described above.

Other sewage processing plants:

Initial sewage processing prices are predetermined, thereafter
processing price may be revised after considering various factors
including renovation of equipment, additional investment,
power and energy and labour force, and other significant
changes of government policy;

All sewage processing plants outside Tianjin are guaranteed a
minimum processing volume by their respective customers
except for Gui Yang. If the actual volume is lower than the
guaranteed volume, processing fee will be settled using the
guaranteed volume.

On 6 December 2006, Guiyang Price Bureau confirmed a new
price for the year 2007 which will allow full recovery of all
actual costs, including operating cost, amortisation, income
tax and a return of 8% on budgeted net assets of the plant.

HEABZNERZGRARTANEENER
XAt

RAB

AREEZHEBAERNKERAN - BFE
EEENHE  ETEEMNSRXER

Ba o &K

() MBS KEEZXBHABETEE
(EERRH&) OEAFHKREFE
MFEEFHHFAF16%MEHR - LA
Ko

(i) BESHERAXNEEREEERSB
15 & MR E BY SR K B 12 B B A BR D T
EFHE -

T BB RIER

RIFEBEK AR E200693 A10HEMRKHY
FRbstpis - AARIREHT « BB L
BSKEEMEIE S IOKE EEERERT
B A MERA - RRATEHEBWREUS
KEIEE o B TRHBIAZARD B mBEK
A AR BR 1 B 2055 K BR 1 TR 5 (R A9 R R Uk
BUS/KERES o

H b5 KR

1h &% AR E A K E (BIE 1F S H4A5 7K B HE AR
BEBEE YA ARBEEEERRRA
R#EMFREANRRIERBRE - H718
BRENMEREN - S8 BFBENE
RE(CERZETHE

BRERS - HiihREF &8 A S ERER
RIESKEEE  IRERERESENZ
ERKE - BIIS/KERIE B IRIRIERKEL

=
o

20065 12A6H  EETYWERKE
2007 EHTHER - A 25 KEEER
PEBAMAERNEENRAN  BRETK
AW PRSI RB% M E FEERD

3 -
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(b) Tap water supply business

Pursuant to an agreement reached with Qujing City Water
General Company on 25 December 2005, a subsidiary of the
Company, Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd., will provide tap water
supply service to Qujing City via the Yunnan Quijing tap water
processing plant at pre-determined pricing. In addition:

(i)  Processing price as pre-determined above may be revised
after considering various cost factors based on contract
terms; and

(i) Qujing City Water General Company guarantees a
minimum supply volume. If the actual volume is lower
than that guaranteed, supply fee will be settled using the
guaranteed volume.

(c) Toll road collections

Tianjin Municipality Engineering Bureau (“TMEB"”) granted
collection right for six toll stations from 1 July 2003 to 28
February 2029 to the Company but it is not allowed to transfer,
lease or pledge the right to other parties without TMEB’s
consent.

In tandem, the Company entered into an agreement (“Toll
Collection Agreement”) with Tianjin Toll Collection Office on
24 July 2003 with the following principal terms:

e  the Company engaged the Toll Collection Office to collect
the tolls at the six toll stations on its behalf for which it
will pay a management fee;

e the Company is to receive the actual tolls collected from
the six stations for the corresponding period/year, subject
to minimum toll fee for each period/year based on the
forecast traffic flow and tolls for the corresponding period/
year as stipulated in a traffic flow and tolls forecast report
for the six toll stations issued by a professional consulting
company in July 2003; and

e any shortfall to the Company between actual and the
agreed minimum will be compensated to the Company
by the Toll Collection Office.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group adopted the Basic Standard and 38 specific standards of
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance on 15 February 2006, and the Application
Guidance for Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises,
Interpretation of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and
other relevant regulations issued thereafter (hereafter referred to as
“the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises” or “CAS”).

(b) BRKMEKER

1% B8 A i 3 T 4 T AR UK AB R B 72 2005
F12A2HEIMHE - AQFZFA
AIEB A KIS AR ARBIBZEMBEA
RN BE R R A 49 TE BB R 12 fH B 2RO K
R - W E -

() EHOKRBEEBZRERLOE
MERRIBEZ EKERTEEZNE
BMmETHE

(i) HIEHHIKER R SH AR RHE
RE&EBAKHEKE - MREE M
KEBERZERKE - BIHOKIRE
BERRERKERE

o

(c) BERRWE

KAEMBRBE T AR B)6 &Y E i &) U =
7 - HAFR B 2003F 7 A 1H#E E202942
A28R 1k « RERETHB AT @ AR
AINE Rz EEEE  HEHER -

ANATF2003FE7 A24 R EHET B

o ARAEFAEBEME6EKEWLETT
W BYNEEEE

o ARARIMN—REEEMARIEZME
W B IR 2003FE 7A R BN BN
EMBTENBEAREFRIIANHS
HE FEREBSEEAZTE R
SHE/ FERERIATERA
BIZE &

o ERBAERRLSERARER
EZRHARBUMREEARRF -

MBERRNERER

B 75 3R R R BR B B ER A 200642 A 15 H 4845
R EEFER — —EARERHFMIEAES
TR K BAHCESERIERER -
ESHEANBRBUEREMBBRE A TE
IS EL])RE -
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OF CAS

The financial statements of the Group and the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2009 truly and completely present the
financial position as of 30 June 2009 and the operating results, cash
flows and other information for the period then ended of the Group
and the Company in compliance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

M

(2)

3)

)

(5)

Accounting period

The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31
December.

Recording currency

The recording currency is Renminbi (“Rmb”).

Measurement bases

The Group adopts historical cost convention, unless otherwise
measured in fair value, net realizable value or .present value.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Rmb using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currency are translated into Rmb using the spot
exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising from these translations are recognised in profit or loss
for the current period, except for those attributable to foreign
currency borrowings that have been taken out specifically for
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Non-
monetary items denominated in foreign currency that are
measured in terms of historical cost are translated at the balance
sheet date using the spot exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. The effect of exchange rate changes on cash is
presented separately in the cash flow statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash comprises
cash in hand and deposits held at call with bank, cash
equivalents refer to short-term and highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

BRELXSTENNESR

AEEFMARREZE2009F 67308 1-61E A
WBBRFTELESHEINNER BEE -7
B R T AR BRI A F2009F6 A30H K
R AN REZE2009F6 A30H
R AMNEHRARIKERNRNRERES
BREAEE -

EESTREMEF A

eEE
eHEEAAEIRIBREI2A318 1L °

FERRAS L %
CRANESARE

EI‘I_f
o

B

BREFRSARAAREE  J2RFE - RE
SHEBEZN  —RIERBELKATE -

SNEITE

INER SRR ZHEE A AHE X INE S HR
FERARBEAR -

REEBEBERRB IEEKHHEERAEER
BRANMBERFTESARYE - TELNT
EEZEBRTABRIEENEENMGMHNE
EMEANINEEPFIERELENELZRIZE
e RAIZIESN - BERFTAEHMIBE - UE
SERAFTEMINEFFERIUEIRR  REERE
REFBRSEEANNPERNE - EXH
BHASNTERERERERTEBIR -

RERREEEY

JIRRBRERERTHNRAESREEFRE LA
BREARINMOER  ReEEYREFEN
HiRE  RBER  ZRER[/CHERED
REEZHEBRIIKE -
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(6) Financial assets

Financial assets include receivables, which are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, which include trade receivables
and other receivables (Note 4(7)).

(a) Recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised at fair value on the balance
sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. The related
transaction cost of other financial assets are included in
the initial recognition amounts. A financial asset is
derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset have expired or all substantial
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset have
been transferred.

Receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses the carrying amount of a financial
asset other than that at fair value through profit or loss at
each balance sheet date. If there is objective evidence
that the financial asset is impaired, the Group shall
determine the amount of any impairment loss.

If an impairment loss on a financial asset carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of loss is
measured at the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred). If there is objective evidence that the value of
the financial asset recovered and the recovery is related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed and the amount of reversal is recognised
in profit or loss.

(7) Receivables

Receivables comprise accounts receivable and other receivables.
Accounts receivable arising from sale of goods or rendering of
services are initially recognised at fair value of the contractual
payments from the buyer. Receivables are presented at
amortised cost using the effective interest method net of
provision for bad debts.

Receivables that are individually significant are subject to
separate impairment assessment, if there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect the full amounts
according to the original terms, a provision for impairment of
the receivable is established at the difference between the
carrying amount of the receivable and the present value of
estimated future cash flows.
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(8)

)]

Receivables that are not individually significant together with
those receivables that have been individually evaluated for
impairment and found not to be impaired are grouped on the
basis of similar credit risk characteristics. The impairment losses
are determined, considering the current conditions, on the
basis of historical loss experience for the groups of receivables
with the similar credit risk characteristics.

Inventories

Inventories include raw materials, finished goods, spare parts
and low cost consumables, and are presented at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighed average method. The
cost of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct labour
and an allocation of all production overheads expenditures
incurred based on normal operating capacity. Low cost
consumables are expensed upon each usage.

Provisions for declines in the value of inventories are determined
at the carrying value of the inventories net of their net realisable
value. Net realisable value is determined based on the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs to completion and estimated costs necessary
to make the sale and relevant taxes.

The Group adopts the perpetual inventory system.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments comprise the Company’s long-
term equity investments in its subsidiaries, the Group’s long-
term equity investments in its joint ventures and associates as
well as the long-term equity investments where the Group does
not have control, joint control or significant influence over the
investees, and which are not quoted in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all investees over which the Company is
able to control, i.e. has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their
operating activities. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights (including that derived from the convertible
bonds and warrants that are currently convertible or
exercisable) is considered to determine whether the Group
has control over the investee. Investments in subsidiaries
are measured using the cost method in the Company’s
financial statements, and adjusted using the equity
method when preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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(b)

Long-term equity investments accounted for using the
cost method are measured at the initial investment cost.
Investment income is recognised in profit or loss for the
cash dividends or profit declared by the investee. Such
recognition is made only to the extent of the distributions
received from accumulated net profits of the investees
arising after the investment was made. Cash dividends
or distributions received in excess of such profits are
regarded as a recovery of the initial cost of the
investments.

Associates

Associates are all investees that the Group has significant
influence on their financial and operating policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method. Where the initial investment cost exceeds
the Group’s share of the fair value of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the time of acquisition, the
investment is initially measured at cost. Where the initial
investment cost is less than the Group's share of the fair
value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the time
of acquisition, the difference is included in profit or loss
for the current period and the cost of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly.

When using the equity method of accounting, the Group
recognised the investment income based on its share of
net profit or loss of the investee. The Group discontinues
recognising its share of net losses of an investee after the
carrying amount of the long-term equity investment
together with any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the investor’s net investment in the investee
are reduced to zero. However, if the Group has obligations
for additional losses and the conditions on recognition of
provision are satisfied in accordance with the accounting
standards on contingencies, the Group continues to
recognise the investment losses and the provision. For
changes in owner’s equity of the investee other than those
arising from its net profit or loss, the Group record directly
in capital surplus its proportion, provided that the Group's
proportion of shareholding in the investee remains
unchanged. The carrying amount of the investment is
reduced by the Group’s share of the profit or cash
dividends declared by an investee. The unrealised profits
or losses arising from the intra-group transactions between
the Group and its investees are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's interest in the investees, on the basis of
which the investment gain or losses are recognised. The
loss on the intra-group transaction between the Group
and its investees, of which the nature is asset impairment,
is recognised in full amount, and the relevant unrealised
gain or loss is not allowed to be eliminated.

(b)
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(c) Other long-term equity investments

Other long-term equity investments where the Group
does not have control, joint control or significant influence
over the investee, and which are not quoted in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
are accounted for using the cost method.

(10) Investment properties

Investment properties are buildings that held for the purpose
of lease, is measured initially at cost. Subsequent expenditures
incurred for an investment property is included in the cost of
the investment property when it is probable that economic
benefits associated with the investment property will flow to
the Group and its cost can be reliably measured, otherwise the
expenditure is recognised in profit and loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

The Group adopts the cost model for subsequent measurement
of the investment property. Buildings and land use rights are
depreciated or amortised to their estimated net residual values
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives,
the estimated net residual values expressed as a percentage of
cost and the annual depreciation (amortisation) rates of the
investment properties are as follows:
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Annual
Estimated Estimated depreciation
useful lives residual value rate (amortisation) rate
FmEHEASS AEERER FIE () X
Buildings 40-50 years 5% 1.9%-2.4%
FREEY) 40-504F

When an investment property is changed to an owner-occupied
property, it is transferred to fixed asset at the date of the change.
When an owner-occupied property is changed to be held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation, the fixed asset is
transferred to investment property at the date of the change
at the carrying amount of the property.

The estimated useful life, net residual value of the investment
property and the depreciation (amortisation) method applied
are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate at each financial
year-end.

An investment property is derecognised on disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
The amount of proceeds on sale, transfer, retirement or damage
of an investment property less its carrying amount and related
taxes and expenses is recognised in profit or loss for the current
period.
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(11) Fixed assets

Fixed assets comprise buildings, machinery and equipment,
motor vehicles, computer and electronic equipment and office
equipment. Fixed assets purchased or constructed by the Group
are initially measured at cost at the time of acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset are included
in the cost of the fixed asset when it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the fixed asset will flow to
the Group and its cost can be reliably measured. The carrying
amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognized and
all the other subsequent expenditures are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of the assets to their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives. For the fixed assets being
provided for impairment loss, the related depreciation charge
is prospectively determined based upon the adjusted carrying
amounts over their remaining useful lives.

The estimated useful lives, the estimated residual values
expressed as a percentage of cost and the annual depreciation
rates are as follows:
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FE REEY 10-50%F
Machinery and equipment 10-20 years 0% to 5% 4.8% to 10%
R 10-20%F
Motor vehicles and others 5-10 years 0% to 5% 9.5% to 20%
EEBEmR M 5-104F

Pipelines network laid outside the plant are included in
structures and are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
of 25 years.

The estimated useful life, the estimated net residual value of a
fixed asset and the depreciation method applied to the asset
are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate at least at each
financial year-end.

A fixed asset classified as an asset held for sale is presented as
other current asset at the lower of the carrying amount and
the fair value less costs to sell An excess of the original carrying
amount over the fair value less the costs to sell is recognised as
an asset impairment loss.

A fixed asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The
amount of proceeds on sale, transfer, retirement or damage of
a fixed asset net of its carrying amount and related taxes and
expenses is recognised in profit or loss for the current period.
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(12) Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at actual cost. Actual cost
comprises construction costs, other costs necessary to bring
the the fixed assets ready for their intended use. Borrowing
costs that are eligible for capitalization incurred before the assets
are ready for their intended use. Construction in progress is
transferred to fixed assets when the assets are ready for their
intended use, and depreciation begins from the following
month.

(13) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are including land use rights and concession
rights.

(@

(b)

©

Land use rights

Land use rights are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 25 to 50 years. If the
purchase costs of land use rights and attached buildings
cannot be reliably allocated between the land use rights
and buildings, for the purchase costs are recognised as
fixed assets.

Concession rights

Concession rights represent the rights to charge users of
public service that the Group obtained under service
concession arrangements, which are amortised on the
straight-line basis over its respecting concession periods
of 25 to 30 years.

Periodical review of useful life and amortisation method

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, review and
adjustment on useful life and amortization method are
performed at each year-end.
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(14) Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, construction in progress, intangible assets with
finite useful lives, investment properties measured using the
cost model and long-term equity investments in subsidiaries
and associates are tested for impairment if there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired at the balance date. If the result
of the impairment test indicates that the recoverable amount
of the asset is less than its carrying amount, a provision for
impairment and an impairment loss are recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. A
provision for asset Impairment is determined and recognised
on an individual asset basis. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable
amount of the group of assets to which the asset belongs is
determined. A group of assets is the smallest group of assets
that is able to generate independent cash inflows

Once the asset impairment loss mentioned above is recognised,
it is not allowed to be reversed for the value recovered in the
subsequent periods.

(15) Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition and construction of a fixed asset that needs a
substantially long period of time of acquisition and construction
for its intended use commence to be capitalised and recorded
as part of the cost of the asset when expenditures for the asset
and borrowing costs have been incurred, and the activities
relating to the acquisition and construction that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use have commenced.
The capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the asset
under acquisition or construction becomes ready for its
intended use, the borrowing costs incurred thereafter are
recognised in profit or loss for the current period. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in which the
acquisition or construction of a fixed asset is interrupted
abnormally and the interruption lasts for more than 3 months,
until the acquisition or construction is resumed.

(16) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently stated at amortised
cots using the effective interest method. Borrowings of which
the period is within one year (one year included) are classified
as the short-term borrowings, and the others are classified as
long-term borrowings.
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(17) Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include wages or salaries, bonuses,
allowances and subsidies, staff welfare, social security
contributions, housing funds, labour union funds, employee
education funds and other expenditures incurred in exchange
for service rendered by employees.

Employee benefits are recognised as a liability in the accounting
period in which an employee has rendered service, and as costs
of assets or expenses to whichever the employee service is
attributable.

(18) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are calculated
and recognised based on the differences arising between the
tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount
(temporary differences). Deferred tax asset is recognized for
the deductible losses that can be carried forward to subsequent
years for deduction of the taxable profit in in accordance with
the tax law. No deferred tax liability is recognised for a
temporary difference arising from the initial recognition of
goodwill. No deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is
recognized for the temporary differences resulting from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities due to a transaction
other than a business combination, which affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (or deductible loss) At the
balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for deductible
temporary differences, deductible losses and tax credits to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available in
the future against which the deductible temporary differences,
deductible losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference, and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. When it is
probable that the temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates will be reversed in
the foreseeable future and that the taxable profit will be
available in the future against which the temporary differences
can be utilized, the corresponding deferred tax assets are
recognized.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when:

e The deferred taxes are relate to the same tax payer within
the group and same fiscal authority, and;

e  That tax payer has a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

(19) Revenue recognition

The amount of revenue is determined in accordance with the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group'’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, rebates,
discounts and returns.

Revenue is recognised when the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group, the relevant revenue
can be reliably measured and specific revenue recognition
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below:

(i) Rendering of services

Services income is recognized upon services rendered.

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
are transferred to the buyer, the Company retains neither
continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold, and it is probable that the economic benefit
associated with the transaction will flow to the Group
and the relevant revenue and costs can be measured
reliably.

(i) Transfer of asset use rights

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Income from an operating lease is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(20) Dividend distribution

Proposed cash dividend is recognised as a liability in the period
in which it is approved by the shareholders’ meeting.
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(21) Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and are de-consolidated from the date
that such control ceases.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted in
accordance with the accounting policies and accounting period
of the Company during the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, where the accounting policies and the
accounting periods are inconsistent between the Company and
subsidiaries.

All significant inter-group balances, transactions and unrealised
profits are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
The portion of a subsidiary’s equity and the portion of a
subsidiary’s net profits and losses for the period not held by
the Company are recognized as minority interests and
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet within
equity and net profits respectively.

(22) Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged in providing an individual product or
service or a group of related products or services and that is
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
other business segments.

(23) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical accounting
estimates and key judgments applied based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The critical accounting estimates and key assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are outlined below:

Impairment for receivables

The Group determines the impairment of trade and other
receivables based on objective evidence of impairment and
historical loss experience of the respective individual balances.
Management believes that trade and other receivables as at
30 June 2009 are not impaired.

-
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The details of changes in accounting policies which are relevant to
the accounting period on 1 January 2008 have been reflected in the
financial statements as follows:

(a) Summary of the effects of the adoption of China
Accounting Standards Interpretation 2 No.5 (“CAS Int
2”)

In second half of 2008, the Group adopted CAS Int 2 relating
to contractual arrangements whereby a private sector operator
participates in the construction of infrastructure for public sector
services in way of Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT"”), which is
relevant to its operations. Consequently, certain comparatives
of first half of 2008 have been restated accordingly.

CAS Int 2 applies to contractual arrangements whereby a private
sector operator participates in the construction of infrastructure
for public sector services in way of Build-Operate-Transfer
(“BOT"). The adoption of CAS Int 2 resulted in a change in
accounting policy for the Group’s sewage treatment, tap water
supply and toll roads operations.

Before adoption of CAS Int 2, the Group’s sewage treatment,
water supply and toll roads assets were recorded as property,
plant and equipment. In accordance with CAS Int 2, the Group's
sewage treatment infrastructure outside Tianjin and water
supply infrastructure was recognised as intangible assets, to
the extent that the Group receives a right to charge users of
the public service. The toll road infrastructure was recognised
as financial assets, to the extent that the Group has an
unconditional contractual right to receive cash at the direction
of the grantor.

7 EARSFHBEREE

BH2008F 1AVHAMBENFEER  WEE
AP IEREP RO ST BEREEFHBOT ¢

(a)

RACXEFTRABEE _FERLRYE
S

2008 T FFE  AEBRATHEE
ERENCESHENREE _RERK
EERAEREEBRIA (BOT) 20
AHERRBEREY  AUFTEY
2008EF¥FENHLHFHEELETE
it o

>

ESHENBREE _RERIRERAND
XRAZREEBZAABOT2HLAHK
EMBHEERER - HALE ST LR
BECRERKRERAEERNSKER
B RO IE BRI B TSRS ST R 3
EEE .

S|

RACRETERIRES B kA
REEE G BSKERIE « B RKEK - B
WERHREERRRBEEEE - RIEEE
SRFENRESE _RERKHER - KA
SECERARIKRBOERE K ENE
BRI 2 SMNIT KR IE B B SROKER s B
RRELEE  ARASBEREHERMAN
BT EEUA - B IS 58 B B Ut 3R it
ERRSETMEE -
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(b) Effect of changes in accounting policies on prior period

The following tables illustrate the adjustments made to each
of the financial statements line item as a result of the adoption
of CAS Int 2 No.5 in respect of income statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2008 presented.

Income statements for the period ended 30 June 2008

Income from operations
Cost for operations
Financial expenses - net

Operation profit

Total profit
Less: Income tax

Net profit

Net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

Earnings per share
(in Rmb yuan)
- Basic
~Diluted

EE LN
MHER-F8

BXAR

pileFat
B FTSHER

FRE

)N
AR B3
LERRER

S
(AR¥T)
—EARERYE

(b) B BRKRSEHAPBBENTE

TREBRELXGTEUREE RS
hffk - EZE2008%6A30R LL61E A FH

REMBFHHAE -

# F20084%F6 H30H 1616 A FH %

Group Company
&t LN
Increase/ Increase/
As previously  (decrease) As previously  (decrease)
reported ¥,/  Restated reported #i,/  Restated
BiA (B2) B BA () Bk
527,559 (13,773) 513,786 366,478 (13,773) 352,705
(238,699) 15,884 (222,815) (132,711) 7,990 (124,721)
(96,538) 5,559 (90,979) (69,969) 5,559 (64,410)
128,168 7,670 135,838 113,569 (224) 113,345
128,129 7,670 135,799 113,373 (224) 113,149
(31,893) (1,917) (33,810) (28,343) 56 (28,287)
96,236 5,753 101,989 85,030 (168) 84,862
95,643 4,665 100,308 85,030 (168) 84,862
593 1,088 1,681 — — —
0.067 0.003 0.070
0.067 0.003 0.070

-hEskE
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6. TAXATION N BE
The applicable taxes and tax rates of the Group are mainly presented AEBAFEHANEEHERER KR
as follows: N
Tax by category Tax rate Basis of Tax
BE BE
Enterprise income tax 7.5% to 25% Taxable income
EMEN 75%%25%  FEMBEHE
Value Added Tax 6% to 17% Taxable value added amount (Tax payable is calculated using the taxable
sales amount multiplied by the effective tax rate less deductible VAT input
of current period)
REDR 6%E17% FEMTRIBERE (RN R IR BT S ERRINE AT EGE R AE
HREERENSRESE
Business tax 5% Taxable service income
EHEM 5% JEMTR & X5
City construction tax and 7% and 3% The amount of business tax or value added tax
education surcharge
WOE R A BN 7% 3% BEBBAEERSR
7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +t MBBRME
(1) CASH AND BANK BALANCES (1) E¥ES
Group Company
&6 VAN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
REES BRET REES BRET
20095 20085 720095 20085
68308 12A31H 64308 12A31H
Cash on hand and in bank HEFIRITHER 1,365,664 957,747 626,678 319,140
Less: Restricted bank deposits A RIERBEE
included in non-current FIRHERIRITER
assets (note (a)) (3tE()) (47,200) (43,700) (47,200) (43,700)
1,318,464 909,047 579,478 275,440
Including: Her:
- Special funds for —EETIRERES
construction in progress (FE(b)
(note (b)) 84,651 38,609 84,651 38,609
— Restricted bank deposits ——FREIH
due within one year EIRRITIFR
(note (c)) (%) 10,900 22,000 10,000 13,000
(@) Asat 30 June 2009, the restricted bank deposits (Note 7(11)) (a) M2009F6A30H ' X RiRTTHFE (M
represent deposits for entrusted loan due after one year (2008: HEEM) ARIEBB-—FUENEXER
deposit for entrusted loan). RE® (2008%F : ZEEHRRESR) °
(b) The special funds for construction in progress represent the (b) ERIRBERAESTZERTKEERER
unutilised balances of the special loans for sewage processing HAEEFERP RARE A RITFREREE o
plants projects.
(c) The bank deposits represented deposits for project bids due (c) RFE2A—FRIHPNEBRERESH

within one year of Rmb10.9 million (31 December 2008:
Rmb22 million).

i A R ¥ 10,900F 7T (20084 12 A 31
B : AR®22,000F7T) °
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(2) TRADE RECEIVABLES (2) EWERR
Details of accounts receivable are as follows: FEUR BT -
Group Company
&6t ¥ NN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
REET BRET REET SRE
200945 200845 20094 20084
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
Due from TSC for: ez NG
- Construction of sewage — KRR
processing plants ERBRA 466,185 466,185 466,185 466,185
- Sewage processing — KB IA
services 534,912 955,992 534,912 955,992
1,001,097 1,422,177 1,001,097 1,422,177
Less: Portion deemed B REBEYR
non-current (697,763) (697,763) (697,763) (697,763)
Individually items with BHESEEKX
significant amount 303,334 724,414 303,334 724,414
Other items with HtEIFSBEIEKR
insignificant amount 115,591 74,455 39,100 18,465
418,925 798,869 342,434 742,879

(a) Pursuant to an agreement (“Construction Agreement”)
between the Company and TSC dated 24 September 2001,
the Company is to provide construction services to TSC in
respect of the three plants of Xian Yang Lu, Ji Zhuang Zi and
Bei Cang. The principal terms of the Construction Agreement
are summarised below:

a fee will be paid by TSC during the period of construction
as a reward to remunerate the Company for accepting
the responsibility to construct the sewage processing
plants;

A fee is payable by TSC in advance on a monthly basis
according to the percentage of completion of the
respective construction projects estimated by the
Company. The percentage of completion of each project
will be adjusted on a quarterly basis according to the
certifications issued by qualified independent surveyors
or engineers;

the Company is responsible for the funding of the
construction cost of these plants; and

upon commencement of operations of these sewage
processing plants, the rights and obligations between the
Company and TSC will follow the terms as specified in
the Sewage Processing Agreement as applicable to the
Tianjin plants.

REA X

RIEARRFR20015F9 A 248 EBE/KAF
FEAIMC5KERE (B ERIRKER
B ([2RkBERZE])  AQRAHEKA
FHREEREBGE  £ETANILESE =/
SRR A RS o il A0 3 B KK
N

.« REHE ARRERRSKER
B2 TRZRMA - Yok A AR
EAAAALNREEA -« (EAK
BYR 2 AR R S KR R BT R
TR R -

s BRERWEWZ  HKARES
ARBAARRENEBESHBE
AR TASLRAARRENEZE
RER RREBFTELERE R
BB IR TRAHE KT
RENZEFLERRE

s ARABNBEGKEEMAERZTRE
MBEEENEE UK

e REARQREHKABETNH
#oEEESKEERMAREE
® ETOREMNERBKRRERS
KEEREHZNABRENT
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(b) On 25 August 2003, the Company entered into an agreement (b) ZARAFIR200358H25H HEHEK A FIERE]

with TSC (“Co-operative Agreement”). The principal terms of T—theaERE((atEBE]) - REZ
which are: e

e the Company would be responsible for the overall
execution of the construction of the three plants;

e TSC would be responsible for making use of the original
loans from two foreign banks (the “Foreign Loans”) to
fund certain property, plant and equipment used in these
plants;

e TSC will sell to the Company these Foreign Loans funded
property, plant and equipment after their installation and
the receipt of the relevant verification reports, at their
carrying value. On 17 April 2004, TSC confirmed its
intention to settle its debt due to the Company with these
mentioned assets.

ARARBARSKEEREZTZRA
BREE

PKRARIBENAEBRINEERK
FRRERTISKEERMSE D
BEEEE

BKRBIFIBINEERRBNETE
BEETRZRILEARRBWE
BE—RMEEEKARNEREEREE
iE T RND A o R2004F 4817
B BEKAREREANA L EE
EBERBAARNRRMFIE -

As mentioned, the construction of these assets was completed il KR B 52 B A 2005 F REARTEAK
in late 2005, and based on the third party completion RIE2007F12278HHE = F HEMHK
verification reports dated 27 December 2007 which Tianjin REMH BRI AR THBRAERE -
Finance Bureau approved, the verified value of these completed FEERAEECESAREG.98ETT ©

assets amounted to about Rmb698 million.

(c) Settlement plan: (c) #HEFTE:

e On 17 April 2007, Tianjin Construction Administration
Committee, (“TJCAC"), the government body overseeing
the management of construction and operation of
infrastructure in Tianjin, reconfirmed that the Tianjin
Municipality has agreed to the settlement of the
Company’s debts in manner as agreed by TSC in (b)
above. In addition, the remaining debt outstanding after
such assets settlement will be settled by way of cash.

e On 8 April 2008, TJCAC confirmed that there will be no .

legal obstacle to the above mentioned assets settlement.

o In December 2008, Tianjin Finance Bureau approved TSC .

to sell the assets above to the Company.

o Based on the procedures undertaken to recover the debts o

as described above, the Directors believe that the amount
due from TSC is eventually fully recoverable. On the basis
that the assets settlement will eventually be finalized,
about Rmb698 million due from TSC as at 30 June 2009,
representing the verified cost of the assets has been
reclassified to non- current trade receivables (31
December 2008: Rmb698 million).

o During from January to June 2009, TSC settled about .

Rmb780 million of its debts relating to sewage water
processing services to the Company.
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(d) Aging of trade receivables prior to the reclassification mentioned (d) PrELEIE SRR E YRR AT -
in (c) is as follows:

Group Company
&6t YN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008

RACEL EEE RACEL EREE
M 20094 720084 2009 20085

6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H

Within one year 1 FAA 418,925 771,614 342,434 721,733
One to two years 1-24F — 27,255 — 21,146
Over two years 2F L 697,763 697,763 697,763 697,763
1,116,688 1,496,632 1,040,197 1,440,642

(e) As at 30 June 2009 there were no trade receivables from any (e) M2009F6H30H FEUBRN P EIFHE AL
of the shareholders of the Company who hold 5% or more of A15% (&5%) A _E R AR M )RR A
voting shares (31 December 2008: Nil). R (2008F 128318 : ) »

(f)  As at 30 June 2009 the top five debtors is about Rmb1,089 (f) 720096 A30RA FEMIERAI ABEBHA
million, representing 97% of total trade receivables. (31 RYEEEEFTR/RARE1,080BET - 15
December 2008: Rmb1,472 million and 98%) Among which, JE U BR FR 4B BE MY 97 % (20084 12 A 31
Rmb391 million is aged within one year and Rmb698 million H: AR¥1,472B87TMI8%) - A1
is over 2 years (31 December 2008: Rmb722million and FUARHOARBEINEEL » 26U LD
Rmb698 million). AR¥698HE L (20085F12A31H : A

R¥722688 LM AREGISEHEE L) ©

(3) OTHER RECEIVABLES (3) HfFEWR
Other receivables include: Hib el e
Group Company
&6 RATH
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008

REEE BREE REES BREER
20095 20085 20095 M20085

6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H

Project deposits BHEES REERES 28,928 29,893 27,050 25,550
Other receivables from customers AZFPRBER 10,228 8,914 — —
Receivables from subsidiaries FEW-FABIFIE — — 216,000 262,000
Others HHh 28,668 13,330 28,504 13,219
67,824 52,137 271,554 300,769
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(@) The ageing of the Group's other receivables is analysed below: (a) AfFEMEYRFTIREDITOT -
Unaudited Audited
30 June 2009 31 December 2008
RGEG g2REs
7A2009%6H30H 720085 12H31H
% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
©HE GEELA ©HE GEELA
Within 1 year N 16,263 24% 14,060 27%
1 to 2 years —H|=4F 45,681 67% 32,067 61%
2 to 3 years ZR=4F 5,810 9% 5,677 11%
Over 3 years =FUE 70 — 333 1%
67,824 100% 52,137 100%
(b) As at 30 June 2009 there were no receivables from any of the (b) 7200946 A 30H H i fE U R EREE A M
shareholders of the Company who hold 5% or more of voting BARRTFIL% (25%) LA _EFRIRHERA H
shares (31 December 2008: Nil). R H R 5k (2008F 128318 : ) o
() Asat 30 June 2009, the top five debtors is about Rmb38,447 (c) PA2009%46 A30H E M fE UK RI 7 & &
thousand, representing 57% of total other receivables (31 ARFREGEET A38,447F L 15HAM
December 2008: 38,514 thousand and 74%). Among which, JEUL SR 4B RE )57 % (2008F 12 A31H
amount of Rmb4,711 thousand (31 December 2008: 38,5614FTM74%) o HARIRETE —F LA
Rmb2,136 thousand) is aged within one year, amount of MN4,711F 7T (20085F12A31H « AR
Rmb31,016 thousand (31 December 2008: Rmb30,938 2,136F L) + —FE2ZF31,016F T
thousand) is between 1 to 2 years, and amount of Rmb2,720 (2008%F 128 31H : A R % 30,938F
thousand (31 December 2008: Rmb35,440 thousand) is over 2 Jo) + LA £2,720F 5T (2008F 12 A
years. 31H : AR¥S5,440F 1) ©
(4) PREPAYMENTS (4) FEMNFIE
(@) The aging of prepayments is analysed as below: (a) FEFMFIEHREMOT :
Group Company
&t NG
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
REES 2REH REE 2REH
R20094 R20084 R20094 R2008%
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A318
Within 1 year 1R 90,737 59,303 60,965 30,391
1to 2 years 12 4 24,662 22,684 3,484 3,422
115,399 81,987 64,449 33,813
The prepayments aged over one year were mainly for recycled IRECEE B F A ENTRNRIBEZRF K
water pipeline connection for which the projects have not EEERIED AAIRMRET @ &%
completed and hence balances remain outstanding. FIERARTEES °
(b) As at 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008, there were no (b) FA20094% 64 30HF2008F12A31HTE

prepayments to any of the shareholders of the Company who
hold 5% or more of voting shares.

NRERBEPEFELARAL% (E5%)
PA £ FRORBE B A B0 BUR B9 RK
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(5) INVENTORIES (5) 7&

Group Company
&6t YN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008

REEH  SEFH  REEY  SEFH
20095 20085 20095 ®2008F

6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
Raw materials M 7,918 8,458 3,923 3,257
Finished goods ERX @ 3,768 3,768 — —
Spare parts and THHAEE S FEm
low cost consumables 243 222 92 103
11,929 12,448 4,015 3,360
Less: Provision for declines B FEREERE
in the value of inventories (3,000) (3,000) — —
8,929 9,448 4,015 3,360
(6) RECEVABLES DUE AFTER ONE YEAR (6) RHEIFEWIR
Group Company
&6 YN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
RBES BRE RBES ERE
R20094 R20084 R20094 R2008%F
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
Due from TSC (Note 7(2)(b)) MK AT (HFE+2 (0) 697,763 697,763 697,763 697,763
Receivables from toll BREIHCERMES
road concession (note) MEWER (&) 322,040 331,254 322,040 331,254
1,019,803 1,029,017 1,019,803 1,029,017
note: R
Receivables from toll road concession represent the minimum guaranteed toll fee B S RTRE TR R RIB IR TE S RS & B LA R 2R
from Toll Collection Office, calculated with reference to forecast traffic flow over RBREMNBRAERAENHBENAZMREN
the concession period. BNBITERA -
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(7) LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Investment in

subsidiaries (note (a)) FRARIRE (GHE @)
Less: Impairment provision A RERERE
for long-term investment T GEE ()
(note (c))
Investment in an BEMERE (GEE (1)

associate (note (b))
Other long-term equity investments Eft REIRERE

(7) REKRERE

Group Company
&6t b N

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
REEE BRE REEES BREE
20094 20084 20094 20084
6A30AH 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
— — 1,117,981 1,112,981

— — (22,000) (22,000)
— — 1,095,981 1,090,981

38,951 39,878 — —
4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
42,951 43,878 1,099,981 1,094,981
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(@)

Investments in subsidiaries

The Company’s subsidiaries are registered and established in
China other than Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection

(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd, which is registered in Hong Kong.

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

Xi'an Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Hangzhou Tianchuang
Water Co., Ltd

Quijing Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd.
Guizhou Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Capital Environmental
Protection (HK) Co., Ltd.
Wendeng Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Wuhan Tianchuang Environmental

Protection Co.,Ltd

Fuyang Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Anguo Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Chibi Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Baoying Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Capital New
Materials Co., Ltd.

Honghu Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Jinghai Capital
Water Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Kaiying Environmental
Engineering Technology

Consultant Co., Ltd.

The Group is not exposed to significant restriction on recovery

RRAFKBERAR

MMNREPKBERAF
HEAIEKBERAR
KETKEBAEFAH
i3
&

bl

bl

BMEFKBERAR
%m%m (&%)
BRD

X%ﬁ%Kﬁﬁ@ﬂﬂ

/b\\

/b\\

/

N

HEXBIRRAR
ERAIEKH AR
ZERIFKIEAEN

REARKBERART
BRAZKBERE

puEp St

>
maaaa

REAREMERAR

R AR KBEERRA

REFBAFKBERAR
B

R SORG TR Rl
BRART

Investment
cost at

the beginning
Ik

RERA
270,000

180,212
108,081
98,000
95,000

62,988
48,000

47,230
44,100
41,000
33,250

~El 26,600

D

26,500
18,020

12,000

2,000

or remittance of return on long-term investments

REBER

(a)

sk

-
AVAR

ARBRBEF ARG RERAEERAR

FRRKE

BRREAERR(BE)BRAREDER
HitFRARYESBEHEAZMR

Carrying Value
REEE
31 December Additions 30 June
2008  during this 2009
20084 period 2009%
12A31H KHEM 6A30H
270,000 — 270,000
180,212 — 180,212
108,081 5,000 113,081
98,000 — 98,000
95,000 — 95,000
62,988 — 62,988
48,000 — 48,000
47,230 — 47,230
44,100 — 44,100
41,000 — 41,000
33,250 — 33,250
26,600 — 26,600
26,500 — 26,500
18,020 — 18,020
12,000 — 12,000
2,000 — 2,000
1,112,981 5,000 1,117,981
AEETNFERAREZER M
PR il ©

REBROGAERIE =

Interest
Held(%)
BRI A%

100

70
90
98
95

100
100

100
99.90
100
99.75
70

71
90
100

100

2ERHEX

ZEAFEFHES
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(b) Investment in an associate: (b) ErZdERE

For the
six months
ended
30 June 2009
BZ2009%
30 June 2009 6A30H
20096 6A30R AR
Percentage of
shareholdings
and
Registered voting rights Total Total
Capital BRE assets liabilities Revenue Net loss
HAMER  RRELH BEAE  AfgE BEBA BE%
Tianjin International KR BIBRHA
Machinery Co., Ltd BRAT 120,000 27.5% 543,075 388,829 572,206 (3,371)
Tianjin International Machinery Co., Ltd. (TIMC) is a sino- REFEEEBABER AR A —KIMRRETL
foreign joint venture registered in the Tianjin Economics BRMAERNPINGEDLE  HEBHESR
Development Area. The principal activities of TIMC include RO RBOMEELENMFEE  REBER
research and development, production and sale of environment WNEER R IERMHN  #EEONES @
protection equipment; engineering technical consultation; RAREBHEEHEES -

trading; manufacturing and sale of general equipment.

The movements of the Group’s investment in TIMC are as REBEHRZEBEHMBR D AHNKREZ SN
follows: K
Investment
cost at 31 December Adjusted 30 June
the beginning 2008 net loss 2009
N 20084 RESE 20094
RERAK 12A318  HAEWEEX 6A308
Tianjin International
Machinery Co., Ltd REEBRERER AT 33,000 39,878 (927) 38,951
() As at 30 June 2009, impairment provision for long-term (c) #E1E2009F6A30H @ AARIHBENK
investment of approximately Rmb22 million (31 December REIEEM AR A RRER RBEEERLD
2008: Rmb22 million) represents the estimated impairment of /AR 228& 77T (20085F 124318 :
the investment in Tianjin Capital New Materials Co., Ltd. 2288 °
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(8)

)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Buildings
2EY

Cost
At 31 December 2008

At 30 June 2009
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2008

Charge for the period

At 30 June 2009

Net book value
At 30 June 2009

At 31 December 2008

FIXED ASSETS AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

(a) Group

Cost
At 31 December 2008

Transfer from construction
in progress

Additions during this period

Disposals during this period

At 30 June 2009

Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2008
Charge for the period
Disposals

At 30 June 2009

Impairment

At 31 December 2008/
At 30 June 2009

Net book value
At 30 June 2009

At 31 December 2008

(8) REMEME
Group Company
&6t N
RE
2008 12 A31 H 129,005 102,279
200946 H30H 129,005 102,279
2iE
2008 F 12 A31H (10,313) (9,403)
REAEHR 1,471) (1,215)
200946 A30H (11,784) (10,618)
HE
200946 A30H 117,221 91,661
2008 12 A31H 118,692 92,876
(9) BEEEEREERIR
(a) &pf
Buildings and Motor vehicles
structure Machinery and and others
EEX  equipment ERER Total
BEY HERE REA CEl
(note (i))
(REE(0)
RE
2008512 A31H 2,433,113 251,364 111,871 2,796,348
ERTIEEA
— — 1,330 1,330
AREREL A AN 261 2,449 2,122 4,832
NN — — (4,045) (4,045)
20096 A 30 A 2,433,374 253,813 111,278 2,798,465
BIHE
#2008 12 A31H (554,334) (183,956) (62,643) (800,933)
RHEEHR (41,923) (5,542) (3,949) (51,414)
AR D — — 2,893 2,893
20096 A 30 A (596,257) (189,498) (63,699) (849,454)
WEER
200812 43180,/
20094 6 A 30 H (5,000) (4,068) (932) (10,000)
HE
20096 A 30 H 1,832,117 60,247 46,647 1,939,011
200812 A31H 1,873,779 63,340 48,296 1,985,415
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(b) Company

Buildings and

(b) 7]

Motor vehicles

structure Machinery and and others
EEX  equipment ERER Total
BEY EES REM &t
(note (i))
GGEE®)
Cost RE
At 31 December 2008 72008412 A31H 2,314,587 204,660 82,215 2,601,462
Transfers from construction ERTIEEA
in progress — — 332 332
Additions during this period 7R ERE fth 5 A 261 — 1,977 2,238
At 30 June 2009 20094 6 A30 A 2,314,848 204,660 84,524 2,604,032
Accumulated depreciation R iE
At 31 December 2008 20084 12 A 31 H (540,236) (166,506) (56,976) (763,718)
Charge for the period ARERHE (41,063) (3,423) (2,674) (47,160)
At 30 June 2009 2009F 6 A30 H (581,299) (169,929) (59,650) (810,878)
Net book value FE
At 30 June 2009 20094 6 A30 A 1,733,549 34,731 24,874 1,793,154
At 31 December 2008 20084 12 A 31 A 1,774,351 38,154 25,239 1,837,744

0]

(it)

(iii)

(iv)

All of the Group’s buildings, structures and plants are
located in the PRC.

Of the Group’s net book value of fixed assets as at 30
June 2009, about Rmb262 million (As at 31 December
2008: Rmb231 million) relates to the Company’s
subsidiary, Tianjin Water Recycling Co. Ltd. As at 30 June
2009, the accumulated loss is approximately Rmb10
million (31 December 2008: Rmb11 million). However,
given the promising prospects of water recycling industry
as encouraged by the PRC government, the Directors
believe there is no indication at the current stage that
these assets may be permanently impaired.

Ownership of certain land and buildings included in
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and
land use rights with cost of Rmb311 million (31 December
2008: Rmb311 million) has yet to be or is in the process
of being transferred to the Group. As these assets are
supported by legal sale and purchase agreements, the
Directors believe that the titles will be received in due
course without additional significant cost to the Group,
if any.

Buildings and structures include pipeline networks with
carrying value of approximately Rmb675 million as at 30
June 2009.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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EX-Vik



(v) Asat 30 June 2009, fixed assets include the Company’s
sewage treatment infrastructure located in Tianjin with
net book value of RMB1,728 million (31 December 2008:
RMB1,772 million). The terms of the related service
concession arrangements are currently under negotiation,
the results of which will determine the eventual
classification of these assets.

(c) Construction in progress comprised of the following projects:

31 December Additions

2008 during

Budget cost 2008%  this period
RER 128318 BB

Water recycling plants: K

H 1F A 2009F6A30H - BIE&E
AR ELHE AN R B R B9 55 7K BR B
HEREmREEAAREE1,7288E T
(20084 128 318 : 1,7728 &
JL) o AR BR TS AT A B R A 1K
HEEHEzT - HiBEsERER

TEELEENSZKDE -

() ERIEBEEBEMT

- Dong Jiao -0 129,072 70,037 3,343
- Bei Chen -1k 97,000 34,193 5530
Sewage processing plants: /57K

- XianYang Lu -FE% 4970 537
- Dong Jiao -53 41 -
Others 1) 2,155 1,763
Total - Company CERV 111,767 1,173

Water recycling plants: K

- Xian Yang Lu il 141,000 93,773 2,450
- Ji Zhuang Zi -RHF - 15,946
Others £t 1,582 18,283
Total - Group A58 207,122 47,852

Including: Capitalised Ed EHER
borrowing costs EAlLeE 2,445 713

Transfers to
fixed assets Incurred costs
during to budget
this period 30 June 2009 costs ratio (%)
THEA 2009%  Sources of funds IRRALEE
BEgE 6A30R E&RR B bt A %)
- 73,380  Self-raised fund 5% 57
- 39,723 Self-raised fund B 41
— 5,507 Self-raised fund 5
— 412 Self-raised fund B2
(332) 3,586 Self-raised fund E%
(32) 122608
- 96,223  Self-raised fund E& 68
— 15,946  Self-raised fund EZ
(998) 18,867  Self-raised fund E£
(1,330) 253,644
- 3158

Borrowing costs have been capitalized for the six months ended
30 June 2009 at an average interest rate of 6.5% per annum.

2009 1-6 A M fEE B AR BERER TR
BREEXREMEE.5% °
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(10) INTANGIBLE ASSETS (10) B EE
Group Company
&6t ¥ N
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
RBESH BRES RBEsH BRES
M2009%F 20085 M2009%F 20085
6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
Concession rights (note (a)) stk T2 (a) 1,938,626 1,884,264 — —
Land use rights (note (b)) TiiEAE (GH2 (b)) 372,472 393,135 368,898 389,561
2,311,098 2,277,399 368,898 389,561
(a) The movements of concession rights are as follows: (a) BIFAREEZHMT
Group
A
Cost AR
At 31 December 2008 20084 12 A 31 H 2,022,574
Additions during this period AHERREhN 90,791
At 30 June 2009 20094 6 A30H 2,113,365
Accumulated amortisation HEtEs
At 31 December 2008 2008 % 12 A 31 H (138,310)
Charged for the period ANERHEEH (36,429)
At 30 June 2009 20096 A30H (174,739)
Net book value FE
At 30 June 2009 20096 A30H 1,938,626
At 31 December 2008 20084 12 A 31 H

Certain of the concession rights with net book value of Rmb267
million (31 December 2008: 272 million) have been secured
against loan facilities (Note 7(13)(a)(v)).
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(b) Land use rights

Cost
At 31 December 2008
Additions/(decrease) during this period

At 30 June 2009
Accumulated amortisation
At 31 December 2008
Charged for the period

At 30 June 2009

Net book value
At 30 June 2009

At 31 December 2008

(11) OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(o) b fE A

Total restricted bank deposits

Less: Due within one year
included in cash and
bank balance (Note 7(1)(c))

Deposits due over
one year (Note 7(1)(a))
Others

RBRITER

B REBERIIR
H— AR D
(PREEE (i)

—F LR
(MfFE4 (1)(@))
it

Group Company
At AAH
RE
20084E 12 A 31 H 495,927 485,454
AEREN CRid) (14,988) (14,988)
20094 6 H30H 480,939 470,466
Ef: £
20084 12 A 31 H (102,792) (95,893)
RN EEE i35 (5,675) (5,675)
20094 6 A30H (108,467) (101,568)
FE
200946 A30H 372,472 368,898
2008 % 12 A 31 H 393,135 389,561
(1) HtiERe&EE
Group Company
=L YN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
REET BREE REEE ERE
20094 20084 2009 R2008%F
6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
58,100 65,700 57,200 56,700
(10,900) (22,000) (10,000) (13,000)
47,200 43,700 47,200 43,700
2,641 3,552 — —
49,841 47,252 47,200 43,700
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(12) TRADE PAYABLES, ADVANCES, TAXES PAYABLE AND OTHER (12) Ef R - HWRIER - EXHEBER HMEN

PAYABLES N
Group Company
&6t b NN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008

RACE B RACET EEE
720094 720084 72009 720084

6A30H 12A318 6A30H 12A31H
Trade payables (note (a)) ERERR (GHE (@) 57,986 17,841 6,035 7,277
Advances (note (b)) TBUERT (G212 (b)) 245,560 228,716 67,086 61,130
Other payables (note (c)) HAERR G () 129,433 99,848 158,499 132,928
432,979 346,405 231,620 201,335
(@) As at 30 June 2009, the majority of trade payables are aged (a) H200996A30R ENBEARRAREEE—
within one year. FLAR ©
(b) Advances comprise: (b) TEUERFREAALAT
Group Company
&6 AAR
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008

RACE B RACET B
720094 720084 720094 720084

6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H

For pipeline connection FEFKEEERE 178,151 167,586 — —
Received from project FEHOEEIER R

of Han Gu 39,701 32,220 39,701 32,220

Received from TSC TEUHE K AR FIA 27,385 27,385 27,385 27,385

Other advances Hith 323 1,525 — 1,525

245,560 228,716 67,086 61,130
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(c) Other payables comprise: (c) HAbREMFREAAMMT -

Group Company
&6t YN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008

RACEL EEE RACEL EREE
M 20094 720084 2009 20085

6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
Construction costs payable — FEfTE2ERA A 96,021 53,708 93,440 34,823
Payable for purchase of fixed ~ JE{< & & & E & E A
assets and concession KBRS S S IR
rights of plants 20,373 26,610 — —
Others Hith 13,039 19,530 65,059 98,105
129,433 99,848 158,499 132,928
There were no trade payables, advances and other payables FEATIR TR - FE R TR R0 B Ath FE 5 3R EF R B
from any of the shareholders of the Company who hold 5% or BAEISARDALSY% (B5%) L ERR
more of voting shares. RERL D BB ER B FRIR o
(d) The balance of taxes payable mainly comprise income tax (d) EXWMERBEEISREILEMSEH -
payable.

(13) Long-term borrowings, short-term borrowings and other (13) RHIER - EHERREMEE

liabilities
Group Company
=L KA
Note Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
=i REET BREE REET ERE
20094 20084 #2009 R2008%F
6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
Non-current: RE
Long-term bank borrowings REIRITRER (a) 3,016,090 2,812,950 1,676,000 1,693,000
Less: Current portion B —FRIEEHES () (192,050) (494,790) (134,000) (434,000)
2,824,040 2,318,160 1,542,000 1,259,000
Other non-current liabilities HipdEmEa s (@) 130,909 130,909 130,909 130,909
2,954,949 2,449,069 1,672,909 1,389,909
Current; KER
Current portion of long-term  —& R Z|H]
bank borrowings M RARE (a) 192,050 494,790 134,000 434,000
Short-term bank borrowings RERIRTTIER (o) 477,000 821,890 477,000 776,890
Other current liabilities HitRe A’k (c) 199,349 167,491 84,464 64,364
868,399 1,484,171 695,464 1,275,254
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(@) Long-term bank borrowings: (a) EHIRITER
Group Company
&6t b NN
Note Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
a2 RBEG BB REET BB
20094 20084 20094 20085
6H30H 12A318 6H30H 12A31H
Borrowings from: fEFRE
State Development Bank B F4R1T 0} 270,000 337,000 270,000 337,000
Industrial Commerce PR TAERTT
Bank of China (ii) 662,800 683,000 158,000 158,000
Shanghai Pudong PR RERRT
Development Bank (iii) 20,000 320,000 — 300,000
Agricultural Bank of China # Bl 2 %R17 (iv) 618,000 668,000 498,000 548,000
China Construction Bank P EIZRIRTT ) 1,250,290 704,950 600,000 300,000
China Everbright Bank B KIRTT (vi) 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Bank of China REIIRTT (vii) 45,000 50,000 — —
China Zheshang Bank ATEERTT (viii) 100,000 — 100,000 —
3,016,090 2,812,950 1,676,000 1,693,000

)

(it)

(iii)

()

Secured by TMEB’s guarantee together with its toll road
and sewage fee collection rights.

Includes Rmb504.8 million (31 December 2008: Rmb525
million) secured by the Company’s guarantee and the
remaining Rmb158 million (31 December 2008: Rmb158
million) is unsecured.

Includes Rmb20 million (31 December 2008: Rmb20
million) secured by the Company’s holding company’s
guarantee.

Includes Rmb498 million and Rmb55 million (31
December 2008: 548 million and Rmb55 million) secured
by the guarantee of Tianjin Municipal Infrastructure
Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd. and the
Company, respectively. The remaining balance of about
Rmbé65 million (31 December 2008: Rmb65 million) is
secured by the Company’s guarantee during the
construction period of a subsidiary together with certain
of the subsidiary’s concession right.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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)

(vi)

Includes Rmb175 million (31 December 2008: Rmb180
million) secured by the right to receive tap water and
sewage processing fees (Note 7(10)(b)). Includes Rmb400
million (31 December 2008: Rmb150 million) and Rmb25
million (31 December 2008: Rmb31.25 million) secured
by the guarantee of Tianjin Municipal Infrastructure
Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd and the
Company, respectively. The remaining balance of about
Rmb650.29 million (31 December 2008: Rmb343.7
million) is unsecured.

Secured by the TSC's right to receive sewage processing
fees.

(vii) Secured by the Company’s guarantee.

(viii) Unsecured bank borrowing.

(ix)

)

Summary of terms of long-term bank borrowings:

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

H AR#175,000,0007T (20084
12A318 : AR%180,000,0007T)
B TR 0 DA B ARk U A RE NS5 K
B ABRERE B (MF
(10)(b)) : Z= 4N A R ¥ 400,000,000
7t ( 2008%F 12A8 31H

150,000,000) F1 A &% 25,000,000
ot (2008%F 12A 31H « AR ¥
31,250,0007T) M & EBFIAR QA
DRIEREER BT ARE
650,290,000 ( 2008%F 128 31
H : 343,700,000) Az B

ZERBBKARNEREENS
KEBEBRERREHEMER -

ZERAARBERIER

ZERRERER -

(ix) REAIRITIE IR EL DT -

Group Company
&6t KA
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
REET ERE REET SRE
R20094 R20084 R20094 R2008%F
6A30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
Secured FERER
- Pledge — K8 495,000 180,000 320,000 —
- Guarantee —{RE 1,612,800 1,831,250 498,000 935,000
Unsecured fERfER 908,290 801,700 858,000 758,000
3,016,090 2,812,950 1,676,000 1,693,000

These long-term bank borrowings are all interest bearing
with weighted average effective interest rate of about
6.7% per annum for the six months ended 30 June 2009.

(x)

20094 1-6 A REfE XA N FHF
R E6.T% °
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(xi) These borrowings mature as follows: (xi) REAEFEEEERBAMDT -

Group Company
&6 b N
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008

RACE B RACET EEE
720094 720084 72009 720084

6A30AH 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
Within one year —FENAZ T 192,050 494,790 134,000 434,000
In the second year BZFENIH 596,570 627,030 493,000 541,000
In the third B=FZF
to fifth year FERAFANZR 1,555,410 1,115,070 1,049,000 718,000
After the fifth year REEZR 672,060 576,060 — —
3,016,090 2,812,950 1,676,000 1,693,000
(b) Short-term bank borrowings (b) FEHARTITEN
Group Company
&6t EAT
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
REE BRE REE 2B
HM2009%F 20085 H2009%F 20085
6A30R 12A31H 6A30R 12A31H
China Minsheng Bank PERARTT 87,000 187,000 87,000 187,000
Huaxia Bank EEWRIT 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000
Jinggang Entrust Company  £/#8({57 — 299,890 — 299,890
China CITIC Bank HEHRTT 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
China Zheshang Bank ATERTT — 45,000 — —
Industrial Bank FEIRTT 100,000 — 100,000 —
477,000 821,890 477,000 776,890
(i) Above loans are all unsecured loans, and the weighted ()  EaifEFHI BEREK - 2009F1-6
average interest rate of short-term borrowings for the REBHERNMETFHIENER
period ended 30 June 2009 is 5.95% per annum. 5.19% -
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(i) Summary of terms of short-term bank borrowings: (i) EERITIERIGMHEZDT
Group Company
&6 YN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
REGE BRE REEE ERE
20094 20084 20094 R2008%F
6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
Secured FERER
- Guarantee —(RE — 45,000 — —
Unsecured fEREN 477,000 776,890 477,000 776,890
477,000 821,890 477,000 776,890
(c) Other liabilities (c) HitvBfE
Group Company
=L KAF
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
REE BB REE ERE
20094 20084 20094 #2008
6A30R 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
Non-current: &A -
Due to: R
- TMEB (note(i)) —REMRE GHE () 130,909 130,909 130,909 130,909
Current: KE
Due to: U
- TMEB —REMRE
Including: Hefr
Current portion of REERH—FR
long-term loans (note ()  ZIEAEHS (GHE () 16,364 16,364 16,364 16,364
Others (note (ii) =l (GER (i) 101,885 92,514 — —
— Tianjin governmental — REMHT
bodies (note (iii)) (FE72 (i) 81,100 58,613 68,100 48,000
199,349 167,491 84,464 64,364

)

A Rmb180 million loan was taken from TMEB during 2005
specifically for construction of sewage processing plants.
The loan is repayable in equal installments over eleven
years from 2007. The current portion of the long-term
loan is Rmb16 million at 30 June 2009 (31 December
2008: Rmb16 million). The loan bears interest at 5% per
annum for the first six years. From the seventh year to
maturity, the interest will be based on the one-year deposit
plus 0.3% premium.

(i)

HAETHRREEZEMNERAR
#1.81B T A20059F 5 /KR IR ME R
BEEEEES - AHERN2007F
BONMFEFHEE - AL IBERER
R—ERBHNEHENHAEAR
¥16H &t (20084128318 : 16
BEL) o BREFERFH5% -
WEIFRERNE - FFEAH1FH
FRFE 0. 3EE DI -
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(i)  Amount due to TMEB of Rmb102 million (31 December (ii)
2008: Rmb93 million) is specifically for the same purpose
and under same terms as the loan described in note (iii)
below.

(iii) The Rmb81 million (31 December 2008: Rmb59 million) (iii)

was borrowed from other Tianjin governmental bodies.
Rmb13 million is used for the construction of the water
recycling plant of Ji Zhuang Zi. Rmbé68 million was
borrowed from Tianjin Finance Bureau for the construction
of the water recycling plant of Dong Jiao, Bei Chen and
Xian Yang Lu. The loan is interest free and the method
and date of repayment which is supposed to be
determined after the completion of the said plant has yet
to be finalised.

The repayment scheme for the Rmb102 million and
Rmb81 million loans mentioned in (ii) and (iii) above is
still being negotiated. As the terms are uncertain, these
loans have been classified as current liabilities.

RGRETBRBAFEAREL102
BET (20085E12HA31H © 9388
Jo) - EAEFRE MAERER B AW
TR Gi)FR e

AR®81H B (20085 1278 31
H : 598 &) AERMKEM MBI
HEaEpry - ARBEISEETARL
HFSKOBIRER  ARK6S
BELAARGRRKENTVRBE
FHEEES  ARRBHEK
R~ bR B A KRR N RS B 05 7K R
FARBGER TIRER o A EERT
FFEBERBEHMEER L TE
TERRIETEE ©

FELA EFEE (DF ()R PIREIAR
10288 tMARKS1B&ETH
BRERTEWNEETPR - AR
RIETEFHR - ELERE LW
EHBEERTAE -

(14) DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (14) EEFEHEE
Unaudited Audited
ES Sy BRET
30 June 2009 31 December 2008
200946 A30A 2008%12H31H
Deferred Taxable Deferred Taxable
income tax temporary income tax temporary
liabilities differences liabilities differences
FFEHasE URMER FEHasE ERMER
Depreciation of fixed assets ETEENE 24,492 97,968 23,640 94,560
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(15) SHARE CAPITAL

Movement of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully paid up
capital is tabled below. All of the Company’s shares are ordinary

shares with par value of one Renminbi.

(15) &

ARBHVEE - EBTRARRENE )R
T - ARRRNRNESEREEARSE
TLRY BB -

A shares H shares
HE
Circulating Circulating
shares Subtotal shares Total
wBR G MEF wBR G &
423,141 1,087,228 340,000 1,427,228

664,087 — — —

Restricted

circulating

shares

PR 1%

wBR A

At 31 December 2008 20084 12 A31H 664,087
Release of restricted BEBR IR Bk D

circulating shares (664,087)

At 30 June 2009 2009 6 A 30 H —

1,087,228 1,087,228 340,000 1,427,228

“A" shares represent shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
and “H” shares represent shares listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. All the “A” and “H” shares rank pari
passu in all respects.

The restricted circulating “A” shares relate to shares held by TMICL,
whereby TMICL can only sell a maximum of 10% of its total shares
within 3 years after the stock reform in March 2006.

Certain 664 million restricted circulating “A” shares held by TMICL
became non-restricted since from 20 April 2009. As at 30 June 2009,
all of the Company'’s shares are circulating shares.

(16) CAPITAL SURPLUS, STATUTORY COMMON RESERVE AND
DIVIDEND

(a) Capital surplus: Capital surplus principally comprises share
premium arising from the issuance of shares. This surplus can
be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or for issuance of bonus
shares.

(b) Statutory common reserve: According to the PRC
Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association, it
is required to transfer 10% of its net profit for the year to the
statutory common reserve, which can be ceased till the reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital. This reserve shall only
be used to make up losses; or to increase the capital of the
Company upon approval from the shareholders.

AR EE LBEFZ SR TR - HBE
EEEMARSA LML o FTEARMH
BESTEHZFERE#ES -

AR REMBIREBR AR MFENZRRB
BARR - REMBIRE B R A FL200643 A
MR ESEXKENZFARZAIREERN
BEEH10% WD -

20094208 + RKIEMBEFEEBERARFE
RN ERIE D B BRE i @A (664,086,598
f%) FimiE o Bl E 2009946308 @ A
FTE RGO ABERE G RBER

(16) EXRAERBRABERKRA

(a) BARDE  SRETIERETROHOBAE
B - AT A7 o8 7 DA BT 4F 2 5 18 3K 48 pn A
N o

(b) BERAE : BIE(PEARKMERRLE)
MARNRER  ARBIEEEFHHEN
0% RICGEERB LTS  EXATEL
NES RETEEIRAA50% A L -
ARERE o« AEBBABSEHEEZT
FAREMEER » &M -
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(c) Dividend

Dividend declared: A dividend in respect of year ended 31
December 2008 of Rmb0.4 (gross tax) for every 10 shares held
on the basis of the total share of 14.27 billion as at 5 August
2009, amounting to a total dividend of Rmb57 million, was
declared at the Annual General Meeting on On 17 June 2009
(2008: a dividend of Rmb0.4 (gross tax) for every 10 shares,
amounting to a total dividend of Rmb57 million.)

(17) MINORITY INTERESTS

Minority interests attributable to respective subsidiaries” minority

shareholders are set out as below:

Hangzhou Tianchuang Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Baoying Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Guizhou Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Honghu Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Capital New Materials Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd.
Chibi Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Fuyang Capital Water Co., Ltd.

il

EERBBRA - A QF]H2009F6A17H
BHRMBRR A RBARS B E22008F
12A31H IEFE 2B FILAE Z20094F 8
BB5B IF 2 AR A14 2718 I A E &
10REIR SBEFARE0.4T (EF) F
fEER - HEF ARB0.57187T (20084 -
10REIR SBEFA R4 (EF) F
fEER - HEEFARYO0.57(8T)

(17) BB RER

MMKEIKBERAR
BRI KBEREEAF
HIBEIZKBERAF
BMEIFKBERAT
AT RIEKBERAR
REREENBARAT
REFKEREEAH
FRERIFKBEARAT
RIEIEKBERATA

FENEFRARLBBREN SRR ER

Group
&t

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
ARG =R [REE=
720095 720084
6H30H 12A31H
85,035 83,088
12,593 12,569
11,076 11,536
6,562 6,299
1,961 1,944
1,838 1,838
1,164 1,149
75 64
11 9

120,315 118,496
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(18) INCOME FROM AND COST FOR OPERATIONS

(18) BRI AME ERAE

Group
&t
Unaudited Unaudited
six months ended six months ended
30 June 2009 30 June 2008
RGBT REET
B Z2009F6A30R L6f8 A E Z2008F6H30H LL618 A
Income from Cost of Income from Cost of
operations operations operations operations
ERWA EERK ERWA B ER K
Income from principal operations FEER 580,084 267,459 505,195 220,785
Other operating income Hibh %% 7,576 2,578 8,591 2,030
587,660 270,037 513,786 222,815
Company
VNG|
Unaudited Unaudited
six months ended six months ended
30 June 2009 30 June 2008
REE REET
B Z2009F6A30R LL6f8 A EZ2008F6A30H LL6f8 A
Income from Cost of Income from Cost of
operations operations operations operations
ERWA EERK =E LN - J2%:
Income from principal operations & ¥7% 383,170 135,554 345,209 121,867
Other operating income Hibh %% 6,740 1,987 7,496 2,854
389,910 137,541 352,705 124,721
(@) The Company’s principal operations are substantially from (a) ARAHNFEEBRTKEBIRER -
processing of sewage.
(b) No geographical segment analysis is presented since all of the (b) HANAEBEMAENEGHEPREL

Group's operations are in the PRC.

(19) BUSINESS TAX AND SURCHARGES (19) B S KM N

Group Company
= AT

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

RBET REGET REGET REGET

six months six months six months six months

ended ended ended ended

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

2009 2008 2009 2008

Bz HE HE HE

2009 F 2008 F 2009 F 2008

6 A30H 6 H30H 6A30H 6 A30H

Ik6{@EA L 6{EAR L 6{EA L 6{EAR

Business tax =) 20,937 18,177 19,924 17,949
City construction and W ERRE

maintenance fee 153 1,376 — 1,256

Education fee surcharge HEBHM 78 606 — 539

21,168 20,159 19,924 19,744
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(20) FINANCIAL EXPENSES — NET

Interest expenses of bank borrowings
Less: Capitalised interest

Net interest expenses

Less: Interest income from:
- long-term receivables
- bank deposits

Others

(21) INCOME TAX

Current income tax
Deferred income tax

(20) G5B A — FH

Group Company
&t N

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

REGE RigES REGE RIQE

six months six months six months six months

ended ended ended ended

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

2009 2008 2009 2008

S kS a8z kS

2009 £ 2008 & 2009 £ 2008 F

6H30H 6H30H 6H30H 6H30H

- 6f8A 1 6{8A F618A 1 6f8A

AR EZ 124,036 99,792 78,873 67,901
o BREFLE (1,303) (2,976) — —

F B HHER 122,733 96,816 78,873 67,901
A FIEHA (12,679) (8,388) (7,916) (6,020)
— RHEEUTHM B (5,636) (5,559) (5,636) (5,559)
—SRITEFHMELA (7,043) (2,829) (2,280) (461)

HAh 2,068 2,551 40 2,529
112,122 90,979 70,997 64,410
(21) FiEBLER
Group Company
&0t KA

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

REES REET RGES REET

six months six months six months six months

ended ended ended ended

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

2009 2008 2009 2008

BZE Bz 8z Bz

2009 & 2008 & 2009 & 2008 F

6 A30H 6A30H 6308 6308

L 6f@A L 6{EA 1 6f@A L6f@A

2 HIFTEE 38,123 31,892 35,431 28,343
EEFTISH 852 1,918 (1,400) (56)
38,975 33,810 34,031 28,287
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(22) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company of Rmb108 million (2008: Rmb100
million) and weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,427
million shares in issue during the period (2008: 1,427 million shares).

Diluted earnings per share is calculated using the same bases as
described above for calculating basic earnings per share as the
transactions of the Company’s convertible bonds is not applicable
for current period.

Profit attributable to shareholders BERAA TR EMFE

of the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (million shares)

Basic/Diluted earnings per share AR Wegikis
(Rmb per share) (ARBETER)

(22) R W H

EAXAGREEUBBRARR LT ERKRRENE
BHFERE108E & 7T (20084FHH : ARKE100
BET) BRARD R EITEINL B INEF
14271 1%) 515 -

114,278 M (20084 :

MR ARBETFEABRESEREE &

HEESREENFERERNGRKDAR -

BITEINEBRAINETFSE (BER)

Group
&t

Unaudited Unaudited
RECEG RECEG
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 2009 30 June 2008
HZ 2009 F HZ 2008 F
6 H30H 6 H30H
IE618A IE61EA
108,013 100,308
1,427 1,427
0.08 0.07
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(23) NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

(23) e REBRMFE

(a) Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from

operating activities

Net profit

Add/(deduct)

Depreciation of fixed assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Losses/(gain) on disposal of
fixed assets

Finance expenses-net

Investment loss/(income)

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in operating receivables

(Decrease)/increase in operating
payables

Net cash flows from
operating activities

Net increase in cash

Cash at end of period
Less: cash at beginning of period

Net increase in cash

FE

/s CR)
BEEEENE
BV BESE

REETEEFEK (W)
MHERFR
REBK/ ()
FRIRD, (BN
LR EYOR B RIE
REMENERN

(M) /&

REZHEEN
REREFHE

REFRmER

RemHIRGE
B RE MR

R FEmaE

(a) BFFBAGAKEETDHIRE

Group Company
&6 KAF

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
REGHET REGES REGHET REGET
six months six months six months six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2009 2008 2009 2008
Bz BE BZE S
2009 2008 2009 2008 £
6A30H 6A30H 6A30H 6 A30H
L 6f@A L 6{EA L 6f@A L 6{EA
109,832 101,989 102,288 84,862
52,885 48,489 48,375 44,166
42,104 41,798 5,675 16,210
27 120 — 4
122,733 91,575 78,873 62,282
1,075 (2,051) (200) —
519 (7,376) (657) (160)
457,483 (184,574) 493,778 (104,632)
(45,948) 128,834 (18,461) 111,479
740,710 218,804 709,671 214,203
1,307,564 597,019 569,478 127,475
(887,047) (324,971) (262,440) (80,633)
420,517 272,048 307,038 46,842
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(b) Cash and bank balances include the following for the (b) FIFRAEHRERNESEHE
purposes of the cash flow statements:

Group Company
&t NN
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
REGE RiQES RIQES RIQES

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2009 2008 2009 2008
72009 £ #2008 & 72009 £ #2008
6HA30H 6A30H 6H30H 6A30H
Cash and bank balances EBEe 1,318,464 909,047 579,478 275,440
Less: Restricted bank deposit o RER (10,900) (22,000) (10,000) (13,000)
Cash and bank balances shown JIRRBEERER
in the cash flow statements HIRE 1,307,564 887,047 569,478 262,440
SEGMENT REPORTING N DEB®RE
(a) For the period ended and as at 30 June 2009 (a) EZE2009F6H30H L6MEA MR REAR
Recycled
Sewage water and Sub-total of
processing  Road toll  pipeline Tap water principal
services  collection connection supply Others operations Others Group
TERR
FREE  ERKE  hkEE VY Eh gt At A
Income from EEWA
operations (F3E018))
(Note 7(18)) 515,917 24,249 21,012 18,609 237 580,084 7576 587,660
Cost for operations BENA
(Note 7(18)) (Frzt(18) (228469)  (3,560)  (16970)  (17,985) (476)  (267,459) (2,578)  (270,037)
Other expenses EtER (166,964) 3,486 (3,931) (6,591) (400)  (174,400) (1962)  (176,362)
Segment profit DEHE 120484 24175 171 (5,967) (639) 138225 303 141,261
Operating profit LB 120484 24175 171 (5,967) (639) 138225 4997 143202
Segment assets AHEE 6,234920 412,635 518655 303370 2,678 7493258 169,852 7,663,110
Segment liabilities R =1 3,783,989 20,584 414775 140,585 2152 4,362,085 22,084 4,384,169
Depreciation ik 46,163 - 5332 - 40 51,535 1,350 52,885
Amortisation s 38,059 18 4,027 — 42004 Al
Capital expenditures B 99,901 — 58,558 5 — 158,464 — 158464
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(b) For the period ended 30 June 2008 and as at 31

December 2008

For the six months ended
30 June 2008

Income from
operations
(Note 7(18))

Cost for operations
(Note 7(18))

Segment profit
Operating profit
Depreciation and

amortisation
Capital expenditures

As at 31 December 2008

Segment assets

Segment liabilities

(b) B ZE2008%F6H30H (- HI R K& A 2008F

12A31H
Recycled

Sewage water and Sub-total of

processing  Road toll  pipeline Tap water principal

services  collection connection supply Others operations Others Group

B

FKEE  ERUE  PKEE ARk b st A A
HE20085
6A30HI61EA
EXRIA
(et (1)

440,689 2,157 2434 18,915 — 505,195 8,591 513,786
R
(FzE4 18)) (335,835) (33)  (18,080)  (18946) (388)  (373,282) (9723)  (383,005)
pE:vill 104,854 23,124 4354 31) (388) 131,913 (1132) 130,781
=E i) 104,854 23,124 4354 31 (388) 131,913 3925 135838
e
i 79,615 - 4123 4446 612 88,796 1491 90,287
it 763,110 - wm 3 — 763405 2822 766227
200812 A31A
HHEE 6,211,058 350295 493,689 283811 2309 7,361,162 199,101 7,560,263
PHas 3,729,579 2512 404792 148,593 16136 4,321,612 12453 4,334,065

(c) The geographical segment analysis is not applicable since all ()
of the Group’s operations are in the PRC.

MR ASEMBEERHEHETEEAR Bt &

ARE D MHiER
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9

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors:

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks.
The Group’s overall risk management seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Group.

Foreign currency risk:

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk as the
operations and customers of the Group’s subsidiaries are located
in the PRC with most of the operating assets and transactions
denominated and settled in Renminbi. All of the Group’s
borrowings are denominated in Renminbi.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk:

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities, other than bank deposits, long term receivables and
borrowings.

The Group has significant bank borrowings. Those taken at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk,
whilst those taken at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk.

The table below sets out the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure to interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
maturity dates.

h HBERER

(a)

BERAKBREE :
$Elm¥%éﬁﬁﬁ B SRR - A
EENEERBREER &%ai%iﬂﬂ

;TZIKEIHI%’{%FE’J EETNEE

bEE =K [l

HRAKEETARNEE REFPBMUR
FEIRA - EXBNELBERRZHE

AARKER - BREBEMERHTEUAA
REE - Bt AEEEEANEXR
|§nu o

ReRnERAAENRER :

BRIRTTIER - REIEUGR R AE RS -
By EEMBEAGFEEERAE -

S-S

K‘il%ﬁikﬁ’ﬁﬁfﬂﬁ*” ° 'ﬁ@ﬂﬂ%%
RLAREBAXRSREN K@ - ME
ol f§ﬂ9$‘il7¥<*"fﬁﬁﬂfﬂ

G o
N

DAT%T%&E%THS%&HSQETE@%'J%@
BEENTRBPNEENRBERIR
ﬁf‘@ AFEAE 55 -

Group Company
aff X
Non-interest Non-interest
Fixed  Floating bearing Total Fixed  Floating bearing Total
BEdZE  FENE &8 BEdZE  FBAE i CH

At 30 June 2009 200956A30A
Assets AE
Cashand bank balances R R R{T54#E 10,900 1,307,564 — 1318464 10,000 569,478 — 579,478
Long-term receivables REEYR 322,040 - — 322,040 322,040 - — 322,040
Liabilties B
Current borrowings i JEES 406,364 279,050 182,985 868,399 406,364 221,000 68,100 695,464
Non-current borrowings ~ FEEEIE S 339,199 2,615,750 — 2,954,949 288,909 1,384,000 — 1,672,909
At 31 December 2008 200812318
Assets AE
Cash and bank balances B4 R3RiT5% 22,000 887,047 — 909,047 13,000 262,440 - 275,440
Long-term receivables REEUR 331,254 — — 331,254 331,254 — — 331,254
Liabilities BfE
Current borrowings HBEH 606,254 726,790 151,127 1,484,171 606,254 621,000 48000 1,275,254
Non-current borrowings ~ FEiEIE ! 332,609 2,116,460 — 2,449,069 288,909 1,101,000 — 1,389,909

REBER

REBROGAERIE =

ZEAFEFHES

1
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At 30 June 2009, if interest rates on bank borrowings had been
1% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit
for the year would have been lower/higher by Rmb26 million
(31 December 2008: Rmb17 million).

The Group also analyses its interest rate exposure by considering
refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative
financing.

Credit risk:

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and credit exposures
to customers.

The Group manages credit risk on bank deposits by placing
the majority of its cash and bank balances with state owned/
listed banks in the PRC. The Group has not had any significant
loss arising from non-performance by these parties in the past
and management does not expect so in the future.

The credit risk on trade receivables is concentrated on a few
customers, all of which are PRC government bodies. Thus,
management considers that the risk is limited.

The maximum credit risk of the Company includes the carrying
value of its financial assets on books and is increased by the
notional amount of financial guarantees issued for its
subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk:

The Group manages its liquidity risk based on a rolling working
capital forecast which comprises a 3-5 year long term plan
and a 12 months monthly working capital forecast. The long
term plan is renewed annually and the monthly working capital
forecast is prepared based on daily operating needs, capital
expenditure requirement from new and existing projects and
cash received from revenue, to ensure whether the Group has
sufficient cash support during the following 12 months.

Generally, approximately 60% of budgeted capital expenditure
for new projects is projected for external financing. One of the
considerations for management to assess the feasibility of new
projects is whether the return can cover the cost of the project
external financing and provide a reasonable return to the
shareholders.

7200946 A30H © & RITE K EF
2/ BIET1%  MATAEMEEEET
£ AREHOFAIHEREFASAR
#26H & T (20085 12A31H « AR
17B&TT) °

AEBETERNBERE  BAERDE
IR EM A RANREE T ROMEN K
[

SEER

EERBKARS RRITER - TAXA
EPMERER

AEEHRITFFINVEARRER - 28K
AEABRE RIRTEFFHFRETBEIRAD
B/ LEHRIT - ZEE—EEEEAR
RIELIRITEEMERNIBR T HERE
BHRRETEHEUFRER -

HEWERRERRR  EEETRIHBET
F - AAELEFPHETEBGHE - B
bt EEERREARERERS

AREEAERRRBRESRBEEN
REEE - WAREENTHEMNSET
RERHOMBERER -

REE T E

AEEHN RS UERRNEERKEARR
PORSEEIET  RANRSEESR
ERFNI-6F R AN R B MRE A RK
NEANZARENFHAE - REAHRE
EBFFVERN - 2 RREFAKE
LEESHFRNEBERFR(EH &
HB)UERRSWARENRBEETE
HRUABERKI2ZEANRGRZER R
IR & S o

HRFIER - RE—RENINEIREGO
%A WKAEIRRB ATTIE TR R AHE
HENRERBRENRERALRBER
EREBEREREBENZRAEZZ

— o
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(b)

The Group’s financial liabilities (inclusive of interests) are
analysed into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date, using the contracted undiscounted cash flows,
as follows:

AEENSHARBENE) RBHEED
AR EEEEEGERBIINBABEH
TR E DT - AEAMARBENIR SR
=1/

Less Between Between
than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
180k 015225 2FZ55E 5FME &3t
At 30 June 2009 2009 %F 6 A30H
Long-term bank borrowings RHFRITE 207,603 636,746 1,650,189 724,208 3,218,746
Long-term payables REAFER X 17,182 17,182 50,344 67,122 151,830
Trade and other payables  JE{SBRFR R H At FEAF 30 168,099 — — — 168,099
At 31 December 2008 742008512 A31H
Long-term bank borrowings RHFRITE 530,768 668,164 1,189,293 620,926 3,009,151
Long-term payables REAFER X 17,182 17,182 50,344 67,122 151,830
Trade and other payables  JE{SBRFR K H At FE 1S 30 117,689 — — — 117,689
Capital risk management (b) BELRABER

In managing its capital risk, management considers capital to
include paid up capital from shareholders and borrowings. The
Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure an optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and
projected strategic investment opportunities.

HREZRBNER FAEERERER
B BABREWRER  mEmaiBaAR
RITRLE - ZEENEERENEARNE
B RRTHERRGHEEBER—ERE
g DRHERGEBRAFTEA

AEETBWEROERREREERLS
B NEREREEBMNERNGEBLIBRRD
o AEBIAEERREANFRRE
AHME - BHELNRASRE BN
EAMHAXLERBRREKES -
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The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio of about REENKBRABMNISGABHL XERE

40% - 60%. The gearing ratio of the Group is as follows: 40%E60% 2 B o NEE & F L X 40
T -
Unaudited Audited
RGERT ERER
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
2009 & 2008 &
6 A30H 12A31H
Total borrowings HBIETN 3,841,748 3,933,240
Less: Cash /JEK CBE (1,307,564) (887,047)
Net debt B 55 2,534,184 3,046,193
Total equity Bl 3,278,941 3,226,198
Total capital BB 5,813,125 6,272,391
Gearing ratio BB 44% 49%
(c) Fair value estimation (c) AREMF
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is TREBENDABEKENE S ZMFTE
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at WARAREHNREME - B RITHH X

the current market interest rate that is available to the Group ERHEAEEREUERIA -

for similar financial instruments.
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10. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND + EXRBEEIBERAERS
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Related parties that have controlling relationship (a) TFEEZEHBROVBEES
Registration Relationship with  Type of Legal
Name of related party address Principal activities the Company enterprise representative
BEhAR Eaur IZEH HALARR BEnE EERRA
Tianjin Municipal Investment Tianjin, the PRC Development, Controlling Limited company Ma Bai Yu
Company Limited (“TMICL") construction and shareholder of
management of the Company
municipal infrastructures
RETRRERRAT hEXE i H AR R BERBR ERAF =k
(FBRE) RUERREEER
Tianjin Infrastructure Tianjin, the PRC Investment and construction of ~ Ultimate holding Limited company Wang Zhou Xi
Construction Investment Group urban environmental company
Co., Ltd. ("TICIC") infrastructure, market

establishment and development
services, lease of private properties,
|ease of infrastructures, and
development and operation of
public facilities projects
REATERRIEERRE hEXE HTRRERRENRE . BRERAA ERAT IRE
EEFRAE (HREE) BR MERRRERE
AEEERE  ARREEE
RORZREARRELE

Qu Jing Capital Water Co., Ltd. Qujing, the PRC Sewage processing, Subsidiary of the Limited company ZhangWen Hui
tap water supply Company
HEEFKEERAR hE S AKEE - ARKEK FAH ERAF FE
Gui Zhou Capital Water Co., Ltd. Guizhou, the PRC  Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company Lin Wen Bo
Company
EMEEKBERAT G BKEE FRF ERAF IR
Fu Yang Capital Water Co., Ltd. Fuyang, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company Zhang Wen Hui
Company
EREEKBERAT HEARE KRR TR BRAA RIE
Bao Ying Capital Water Co., Ltd. Baoying, the PRC  Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company Lin Wen Bo
Company
BEAFKBAERRELT hHERE YA TR ERAF IR
Chi Bi Capital Water Co., Ltd. Chibi, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company Zhang Wen Hui
Company
BB ERAT B e 247 ARAT e
Hong Hu Capital Water Co., Ltd. Honghu, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company Zhang Wen Hui
Company
HATEEKBERAA HELH KRR TR ARAA RIE
Tianjin Capital Environmental Hong Kong, Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company Ma Bai Yu
Protection (HK) Co., Ltd. the PRC Company
REAZER(BE)BRAA hEEE YA FRE ERAF =k
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Registration Relationship with ~ Type of Legal

Name of related party address Principal activities the Company enterprise representative

BEntE s TEEH HEALARR EEnE EERRA

Tianjin Jing Hai Capital Water Co., Ltd. ~ Tianjin, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company GuQiFeng
Company

Hang Zhou Tianchuang Hangzhou, the PRC  Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company Gu Qi Feng

Capital Water Co., Ltd. Company

AMREKBERAT BN YN FRF ERAT B

Wen Deng Capital Water Co., Ltd. Wendeng, the PRC  Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company Lin Wen Bo
Company

XBEFKBERAA hEXE AKEE TR BRAR R

REBSEHFIKERLA hEXE AKEE FRF ERAT BRE

Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd. Tianjin, the PRC Production and sales of Subsidiary of the Limited company Gu QiFeng

recycled water, development Company
and construction of recycled
water facilities, and technical

consulting for water
recycling business
REFKEREELT hEXE PKEEHE - FRE ERAT B
PRREAEER
PRI
Xi'an Capital Water Co., Ltd. Xi'an, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company Zhang Wen Hui
Company
ARAFKBER AT HERZ AKEE FRA ARAR FIE
Tianjin Kaiying Environmental Tianjin, the PRC Environmental engineering, Subsidiary of the Limited company GuQifeng
EngineeringTechnology Consultant protection and Company
Co,, Ltd. technical consultation
REFRRRLIRRD hEXE REIRRE TR ERAT BRE
ARARAT RS
Anguo Capital Water Co., Ltd. Anguo, the PRC City water supply and Subsidiary of the Limited company Zhang Wen Hui
discharge and sewage processing  Company
REMFKBERAT hERE REMA Bk BKEE  FAF ERAA w08
Wuhan Tianchuang Environmental Wuhan, the PRC Sewage processing and Subsidiary of the Limited company Zhang Wen Hui
Protection Co. Ltd tap water supply Company
BERARRERAT RERE AKEEME RKEK L7 ARAT 08
Tianjin Capital New Materials Co., Ltd.  Tianjin, the PRC Production and sales of new Subsidiary of the Limited company FuYaNa
types of construction materials ~ Company
REEXENERAH hEXE THREMHOREREE  TOF ERAT EL

116 Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited ¢ 2009 Interim Report



(b) Paid up capital of related parties that has controlling (b) FHEEZEHERNBEBEINIMERR LS
relationship and their movements 1t
Additions
31 December during 30 June
2008 this period 2009
20085 ®2009F
12A31R A MB 64308
TMICL MEIRE 1,820,000 — 1,820,000
TICIG Wi EE 67,700,000 — 67,700,000
Qu Jing Capital Water Co., Ltd. IS EIZ KB AR AR 120,000 5,000 125,000
Gui Zhou Capital Water Co., Ltd. EMBIFEKBEERAR 100,000 — 100,000
Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd. REFKBREEAT] 100,000 — 100,000
Tianjin Capital New Materials KZRIZEZEMBR AR 37,500 — 37,500
Co., Ltd.
Fu Yang Capital Water Co., Ltd. BISRIZKBEHR AR 45,000 — 45,000
Bao Ying Capital Water Co., Ltd. EEAIFKEBRELAT 38,000 — 38,000
Chi Bi Capital Water Co., Ltd. TREERIZFKIERIR AR 35,000 — 35,000
Hong Hu Capital Water Co., Ltd. AT BIZE KIS BRAR] 20,000 — 20,000
Hang Zhou Tianchuang Capital TNREIRE AR AR 257,445 — 257,445
Water Co., Ltd.
Wen Deng Capital Water Co., Ltd. X ZEAIZ¥EKEARAA 48,000 — 48,000
Tianjin Jing Hai Capital Water REFBRIZKBARAR 12,000 — 12,000
Co., Ltd.
Xi‘an Capital Water Co., Ltd. AZEIZEKEARAR 270,000 — 270,000
Tianjin Kaiying Environmental RGN HKIRIE TR 2,000 — 2,000
Engineering Technology HABRAT
Consultant Co., Ltd.
Anguo Capital Water Co., Ltd. ZEIRIE KB BERAR 41,000 — 41,000
Wuhan Tianchuang Environmental — EJEREIRIRGR A A 47,230 — 47,230
Protection Co., Ltd
usD’000 usD’000 usD’000
ETTFT ETTFT ETTFT
Tianjin Capital Environmental REBIFERR (FF)
Protection (HK) Co., Ltd. BRAR] 7,840 — 7,840
(c) Share or equity of the Company held by a related party (c) FEEHBRNBEESISEAQATRMDE
and its movements EEREZL
Reduction
31 December 2008 for the period 30 June 2009
#2008%12A31AR AL E #2009%6A30R
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
2 (F7) aatt 28 (Fr) Aot 28 (Fr) Bk
T™ICL REMBEEBRATF 774,985 54.30 (874) (0.06) 774111 54.24

ARAXBREEBROVERL2AGO-_ZZANEEFHRRSE
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(d) Related party transactions (d) B S RERE

In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere ARH - BRARBA TS HRER B B EE BV R 05 A2
in the financial statements, the following is a summary of ZERI  REEEREKRTERTEEESD
significant related party transactions entered into in the ordinary ETHEMERZSHT ¢

course of the business between the Group and its related parties
during the period:

(i) Income:

A
six months ended six months ended
Related parties Nature of transaction 30 June 2009 30 June 2008
B ZE2009%F B E2008%F
BBHH AN ReE1HE 68300 1L61E A 6830R L61E A
TICIG Rental income
WIREE HE2 A 3,230 3,869
(i) Key management compensation
R E IR A B B 4,053 3,875
11. COMMITMENTS t- EEBHE
The Group's capital commitments at the balance sheet date are as HEBEBERA  AEENERAGENT :
follows:
Contracted but not Authorised but not
provided for contracted for
EEAREE EHEREN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
REGER eRE ES<$: eRE
BZE2009F #ZE2008F #E2009F HZE2008F
6A30HL 12A3181L 6A30HL 12A3181
In Rmb million In Rmb million In Rmb million In Rmb million
ANREBET AEEEET AREKBET ARKEESET
Sewage processing plants in: VEKERIEHIAR
- Hang Zhou =AM 341 341 — —
- Wendeng —X& 40 60 — —
- Jing Hai -5 17 22 — —
- Wu Han —EE 89 108 — —
- An Guo —% 24 24 — —
-QuJing — g 14 — 165 —
- Xian Yang Lu (upgrade project) — — if5 88 FHAR it 20 — 284 —
- Bei Cang (upgrade project) —dteAgsE — — 200 —
Tap Water plants in: BAOKEIER :
- An Guo —% 10 15 — 33
- E Zhou — 5B — — 95 95
Water recycling plants in: HOKRIAR -
- Dong Jiao —RABEAK 8 46 48
- Bei Chen —dbR A IKER 4 11 51 51
- Xian Yang Lu — B5 5K BRI — — 49 48
- Ji Zhuang Zi (expansion project) —#ZitT (BhiER) 14 — 58 —
581 589 948 275
12 APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ T= M R& & b
The accounts were approved by the Directors of the Company on A BFHREBARRESTER2009F8A21H

21 August 2009. BUESRE -
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VIII. Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the

IX

Company’s listed securities

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the reporting
period.

Audit Committee

On 31 July 2001, the Board approved the establishment of the Audit
Committee to review and supervise the Company’s financial
reporting procedure and internal controls. The Audit Committee
comprises the independent non-executive Directors Messrs. Ko
Poming, Xie Rong and Di Xiaofeng. The Audit Committee, together
with the management of the Group have reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed with
the management of the Group the internal controls and financial
reporting matters including the review of the unaudited interim
results and the Interim Report. The Audit Committee agreed with
the accounting principles, standards and methods adopted in the
preparation of the Group’s unaudited interim accounts for the six
months ended 30 June 2009.

X. Code on Corporate Governance Practices

XI

None of the Directors is aware of any information that would
reasonably indicate that the Company is not or was not, for any
part of the reporting period, in compliance with the code provisions
of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by the Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the securities
transactions by the Directors and Supervisors on the term exactly
the same as the required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company, having made specific
enquiry of all the Directors and Supervisors, confirmed that all the
Directors and Supervisors have complied with the code of conduct
regarding the securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors
during the reporting period.
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Xll.Documents Available for Inspection

1. Text and summary of the 2009 Interim Report signed by the vice-
chairman of the Company;

2. Financial statements signed and sealed by the legal representative,
officer in charge of the accounting function and the officer in charge
of the accounting department of the Company;

3. Original copies of the documents and announcements of the
Company which were publicly disclosed on newspapers specified
by CSRC during the period covered by this report; and

4. The Articles of Association of the Company.
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Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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21 August 2009
20094 8H21H

Gu Qifeng
B R

Vice-chairman
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